SHORTER NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 11T ANNLIAL GENFRAL MFETING OF THE MEMBERS
OF SOLARWORLD ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE UMITED (“THE COMPANY") WILL BE HELD ON
WEDNESDAY, 18™ SEPTEMBER 2024 AT 11:00 AM. AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY
AT sg-i, gwm-mmc&; 86, NEHRU PLACE, NEW DELHI-T10-019 TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING
BUSINESS: _ '

1. To consider and adopt the audited Financial Stalements {Standalone and Consolidated)
of the Company for the financial year ended 313t March 2024 together with the report of
the Baard of direclotsand the Auditons thereon. )

“RESOLVED THAT the Finahcial Statements (Standalone.and Consalidated) of the Cormpany
for - the yeor ended 31 Morch 2024, along with the Reporis of ite Board of Directors: o
Aucitors thereon, as circulofed fo the Members and laid befare the Meeting, be and are
hersby recelved and adopled.” .

2. Tore-appoint § § Kolhar Mehta & Co LLP, Charfersd accountonts {FRN 000756800441}
as joint statutory auditers of he Company aid fo fix their rermuneration thereof.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to-the provisions-of Sectian 13% and other dopiicable provisions |
oy, of the Companigs Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thieseunder, as amended from fime
to firme, 5 § Kothar Mehta & Co LLP, Chartered Accountarnits (FRN 000756N/NS00441) be
and are hereby re<oppointed as Joint Auditors of the Company to hold office from the
conclusion-of this Annual General Meeting H#il the conclusion of the 180 Anngadl General
Meefing of the Campany, al such rerunerafion as may be decided by the Board in
consuttation with.the Auditons.™

3. Regularizafion of Addilional Director, Mr. Sushil Kumor Jain (DIN 00002049) os Director of the
Company,

To consder and if thought fit, 1o poss with or withod maditication(s), the following
resciution as ordinary resolufion:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuont to the provisions of Seclion 152 and any other applicable
provisions, If any, of the Cofrpaniies Act, 2013, read with the: Rules mads thefe uncet
fincluding any stafutory modification(s). amendmeriils} or resenactment(s} thereof] {'the
AGE). Mr, Sushil Kummor Jain (DIN OD002089). who wess appointed os an Additional Directar of
the Compohy by the Board of Directors with effect from 265 March 2024, in terms of
Section 161 of e Companies Act, 2013 and the Arficles of Assoclatfion of the ‘Compary
and whose term of office expres of the Annual General Meeting, be and B hereby
appointed s a Disctor of the Compony whose periocd of office shall be lable to
IE determination by refirernent of directors by rotatton,
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Boord of Directors and Key Manageral Persontiels of the
Compaony be angd are hereby authotsed, jointly andfor severally, o file necessary
infimation, forms efc., with the office of the concerned Registrar of Cormiparies and other
authorities and 1. do all such acls, deeds, matters and things, as may be requited o
considered necessaty, for giving efféct to this resotufion.”

4. Change of designetion of Mr. Mangel Chand Teltia (DIN: 00002184} from execufive director
to non-execulive non-lndependent director of the Company:

Ta consider and i thought fit, o pass, with or without modification(s], the foflowing
resclution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, consent of the membens be and i hereby aceorded to change the
designafion of Mr, Mangat Chand Tetfia (DIN; 00002186}, frers. Executive Director to Non-
Executive, Non-indeperident Director of the Company whose period of office shall be
fable 1o deterrningtion by refirerment of directors by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Boord of Ditectors and ey Managetiol Pefsonnels of the
Compariy be. and ans hersby authorised fo file necessary Intimation forms ete. with the
office of the concerned Registrar of Comparies and other authotifies and 10 dley aill sugch
acts, deeds, matters and things, os may be required or considered necessary: for gving.
sftact to this resolution.”

5. Appoliniment of Mr. Karlik Tellfa {DIN 83610105} a3 Mandging Direcior of the Company,

To consider and if thaught fit, fo poss, with of without miadificalionis) the fnllowing
resolution s Special Resolufioh:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuan? fo: the provisions of Section 2(51), 2{54}. 196, 197, 203 read with
Sehedule vV and all other applicable provisions, i any, of the Act fincluding ony stalutory
modification(s}, -amendmentls} of . re-enaciment(s). thereof) read with Rules ‘mode
theretmder and the Aricles of Assaciafion, consent of the membersof he Company be and
is hareby accorded. fo the appoinfment of Mr. Karlik Teltio {DIN 06610105} os o Managing
Director ond Key Manoagerial Persornet of the Company, not lidbie To retire by rotation, for @
ferva of 3 {three} years commendcing from. 18t Septémber 2024 on the terms und cohdifions
as set-outin the Explanalony Statement annexed o this Notice, including the remuneration
1o be paid in he event of toss or iadequacy of profits in-any fingneidd yedr.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT tha terms ond conditions af appaintenent and remimeration
specified in the Explanatery Staterment may be.revised, enhanced, ateéred and varied from
timie to time, by the Board of Direciars of the Compuany, including any Commiftee therect
{nerainatter referred to as the *Board:). Os if may: i s discretion cleern fit, so as pot to
excesd the limits specified n Section 197 tead with Schedule: V to the Act including any
Gerendments, modifications made hereinatterin this regard.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Boar of Direciars of the Carmpany be ainet is hareby nuthorizesd
1o do it such acts, deeds and things, as it may, in its absclute discration, consider necewsary,
expedient or desirablg including the power to sub-delegate, in order 1o give affeci to this
resolution or as oherwite considered by the foard o be in the best inferest of the
Cormpany, o it moy deem fit."
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5. Appolntment of #r. Rishabh lofn (DIN 05115384) os Whola-Time Direclor of fhe Company.

To .consider and if thought fif, fo pass, with or without mocddification(s), the: following,
resolution.as $pectal Resolulion:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to-the provisions of Section 2(51}, 2(94), 196, 197, 208 read with
Schedie V and ol other applicable proviions, if-any, of the Act (inchiding any statulory
mocification(s}, dmendment(s] or re-enachmenifs) theisof) read wilhv Rules made
therguncier and ihe Articles of Association, consant of the mermbers of the Company be
ond §§ hereby gccorded 1o the appointment of Mr. Rishaioh ol {DIN 05115384 a3 @
Whole-Tme Director: cmd Key Managetial Personnel of the Comparry, rot lable o retre. by
rotation, fora femn-of 3 {ihree) yaas commencing from 18 Sepfember 2024 aon ihe ferms
‘ahd ‘condifions os set-out In the Explcnatory Statement gninexed to fhis Natice, incliding
thé remuneration 1o be pald in the event of loss or Inadeguacy of profits In any fnancial
yeaor.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the ferms ond condifians of ‘appointrment and remuneration
specified in the Bxplonatory Staterent may be revised, enhdhced, afered and vafled
from fime to time. by the: Board of Directors-of the Company. includifig afy Comiritles
therest (hereinafter refered 1o os the ‘Board'}, s it rmay, in Hs discretion deer fit; so ds not
i exceed the Bmits speciffed in Section 197 read with Schedule V 1o the Act including dny
amendments, modifications made hereinalter in this regord.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of the Combarny, bé cing is hereby authorized o do of
sugh dets: deeds and things, as if may, in 15 absolute discretion: comsider necessary.

expedient or dedrmble including the power 1o sib-delegate, in order fo givereffect fo this
resoiution or ds difierwise considered by the Boord fo be in the best interest of the
Company, as i may deem it

7. Appoinient of Ms. Rinl Chordid [DIN 07285481) as independent Direclor of he Company.

To consider-ond it thaught fit, o pass, with: or without mocdifieation, folliwing fesoiution os
Speclal Resolution:

*RESOLVED THAT putsuant to the resolufion passed by the Board on 16" Septembber 2024,

and in complarce with Seclions 14% and 152 redd with Schedule [V and other applcable
provisions of the Companles Act, 2013, and the nies made thereyrider, each s omended
{fhe "Companies Act'} tind the Securfies and Bxchange Board of India {Lisiing Ciodigations
and Discloswre Reguisments] Regulctions, 2015, as amendad (the “SEB! lisfing
Reguiations”}, and ofher appicable fuw and pursuant to the provisions. of the oricles of
asocigtion of the Company, Ms. Rini Chordia [DIN 07285481}, wht passesses relevant
expertise and sxperience and hos signified her comsent 1o actas an Independent dfnecior
of the Company, and submitted 4 decloration that she meels the criteda for apbainiment
of oniridapeandant director under the Companies Act orird the SEBI Uisfing Regulations and is
atherwise eligible for appeintment, be and'is hereby appointed as an indlependeni director
of the Compaiy hot fable o refre by rofation for a period of five [05) consecutive years
from the dote of the Annudl Generat Meeting of the Comipany L&, 18" September 2024, Mes.

Rini Chordla shigll be éntifled 1o recelve siting fess for atteniding meetings of the Board or
any commiitees therect, as may be deternined by the Board from time o fime.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the code for indebendent diractors os stafed in Schedule v of
Companizs Act be and is hereby placed before the members of five Compony for
information and for further compliance 1hene~nf by Ms. Rinf Chordia as independent Director,
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the ferms of oppiintrent of Ms. Rini Chordio os Independant
Dector pursuant 1o the pravisions of the Companies Act, @ ciraft sl-which was Srculated fo
the mermbers, be ond oré hereby approved andrecorded,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpcse of giving effect fo the above resolufions, the Board
of Directors and Key Mandgerial Persannels of the Company be ond.are hereby guihorized.
o5 5o ofl sucheacts, deads, mertters and things.as thiey may. In their ahsoiute discrefion, desm
necassary, proper or desirable for suth purpese, including fo moke any tilings, furmish dhy
retums or submit any other docurments fo ony govemment, statulory o regulatory authoritias
as may be réquired, to settie any question, difficulty or doubi and {o-negotiale, fingize and
execute oft agresmerts, documents, papers, instruments and wilings o8 they may deem
nevessary, proper, desrable or expedient and to give such directions and/for instructions as
they may tom: fime, 1o ime gecide and give sffect to such modifications, teminafions,
changes. voriations, alterations, deletions and/or addifions os regarcs the ferms and
conditions as may be required; and any docurnents so-execuled and dellvered or agts and
things dohe. or caused 1o be done sholl be condlusive: gvidencs of the outhorily of The
Compdriy in-sc¢ doing and: any -docurnent so executed and delivered or ucts and things

déne orcaused o be done-prior to the date-hereot ure nereby ratifled, confirmed and

approved as the def ahd deed of fhe Company s 1he case may be.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT culy certified copies of the above resclutions be fumished 1o any
govemiment, statutary or tegukitory cuthoriy as may berequired from time fo time.”

Appolntment of Mr. Bamakant Pationaik {DIN 10724945} as Independent Direcior of the.

-Crompany:

To consider and if thought fit, te pass. with oF without modification, following resolufion as
$peclal Resolulion:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the resolfion passed by the Bogird ob 1467 September 2024, ond
i compliarce with Sections 149 ond 152 read with Schedule IV dnd othér opplicdble
provisions of the Compomies Act, 2013, andithe nies made thereuriger, each as amended
{the “Companles: At} and the Securities and Exchange Boatcd of thelia {Listing Obligations
and Disclasure Requirerments} Regulgfions, 2015, as amended (fhe “SEBY Lisling Regulalions”].
and other opplicable law and purstiont 1o/he provisions of the arficles of association of the
Comparty, Mr. Rarakant Pattanaii {DIN 10724749}, who passesses relevant experise and
esperience ond hos signified his consent 10 ‘dct as an independent direcior of the

Cormpany, and submitted & deciaration that he meets the ariferia for gppointment of an
Independent director under the Gompanies Act, and The SEB! Listing Reguiafions and fs
otherwiss eligible for appaintment, be and is hereby appointed as an independent director
of the Company: niot liable to'retire by rotation for o pesiod of five {05) consecutive yeors
from the date of the Annual General Meeting of the Coripdny Le. 18" Septerroer 2024, Mr.

Ramakant Pattandik sholl be enfiled 1o receive sitfing fees for altending mestings of the

Board or any commitess thersof. as may be determined by the Boerd from time fo fime.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the code for independent directors as stafed in Scheclule W of
Comparies Act be ond &5 hereby pliced belore the members of the Company for
information and for further complidnee therect by. Mr. Ramakant Paftandik s Independent
Director.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT fhe ferms of appoinfment oft Mr. Ramakani Pattanak o

Independent Director pursuant fo ther provisions of the Comparies Act. o draft of which was
circuiated to the members, be and are hereby approved and recorded.

h- (=)
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purmose of giving effect to the ohaove resalutions, the Baord
of Directors and Key Manageriol Parsonnels of the. Company be and ore hereby authorized
to do ofl suchr acts, deeds, matters and things as they may, In thelr absolute discretion, deem
necessary, proper or desirabilé for such purpose, ncluding to maks any filings, furnish ry
retums orsubmit any other docdments Yo ony govemment, stotutory or regukitory duthorifles
o5 may be required, to settle any guestion, difficulty or doubt and o negotiate, finalze and
execute ol ogreements documents, pooers insfrurmsnis and writings os they may desm
necessary, proger, desrable or expedient and to give such directions and/or Instructions as
fhey may from fime to fime decide and give effect 1o such miogitications, temingions,
changes, variations, dfterations, defefions and/or cddiffons as fegards the. terms and
conditions os.may be required; and any documientsso exaculed and delivered or aicts and
things done o caused to be daiie. shall be conclusive evidence of the autharty of the
Company In so doing and. any documant so execluled and dalivered or acts ond things
dane of coysad 10 be done-prior fo the ddle hétsof are hereby ratified, confimed and
approved os the.act and desd of the Company, as the case may be;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT dluly certified copies of the above resoliifions be fumished to any
government, statutosy or regulatory auihority as miay be required from fime 16 fifme.”

‘Approval of borowing limils under Seclion 180{1){c) of the Companles Act, 2013

To consiger and if thought fit, to pass, with or without mgdificationls), fallowing resoltion as
Speciaf Resolulion:

“RESOLVED THAT pussuant fo the provisions of Section 180{1)(c} ond other applicable
proviskenis, ¥ any. of the Companies Act 2013 and the rules. made theretinder, sach as.
amgnded [the “Compunies Act”), fhe enabling provisions. of the memorandum ©f
association and fhe aricles of association of the Company, and subject fo such ofher
gpprovals. and pemissions as may be required, the apgproval of the members of the
Company be and Is hereby aecorded o borow from time fo fime ony sum or sums of
monies: (exclusive of inferest and In one or more franches) on such temms and coneitions as
may be delémined by the Board, from anyone or more of the Campony's bankers and/or
frorm anyone o more -other Banks, parsors, firns, companiesfbodies &arpomfe, financial
institudions, institutional investor(s), mutual fundis, insurance companies, pension funds and or
any enﬁfy[ent:ﬁes of autherity/authorities, whether in indio or abroad, and whether by way
of cash credit, odvance or deposits, loans or bt discounting, lssue of débentures,
commercial papers; long/short ferm loans, suppliers’ tredit, securiized insruments such dis
fating rate nofes; thed role rofes, syndicated loans, commerciol borrowing from fhe
private sector window of multiiateral financlat institutior, sither In rupees ancilor In such other
foreign cureéncies ‘o3 may be permitfed by low from tme fo fime, and/or any other
instruments/securities or otherwisé and whether unsecured or secured by morigage, charge,
hypothecation or lien or pladge of the Company's astets, licenses and proparties, whether
immiovadble or movable and afl:or any of the undertaking of the Cormpany, nohwithstanding
that thies moneys o bé borrowed iogether with the moeneys dready borrowed by the
Cormpany (aport from femporary loans obtained from the Compdry’s bankers in the
oreliriary” course of business) will exceed the aggregate of the pald-up capited of the
Cormpany, I free reserves and securitles prernium, that & 1o say. reserves nof set apart for
any specific purpase, so that the lotal amount up o which the moneys may be bomowed by
ihe Comparny dgnd ouistanding otany fime.shall not exceed the sumof T 500 Crores {Rupees
Five Huhdred Crores Only),

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above resoltiohs. the-Board
of Diractors and Key Manageriél Personnets of ihe Campany be and are hereby authorzed
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te Ao all such acls, deeds. malters and things as they may. i their gbsolute diserafion, deem
necesary, proper or desirable for such purpose, including to make any filings, futnish any
returns or submit any othér documents fo any govermment, stofutory.or regulatory: authcrities
as may be required. o settie any question, difficully or doubt and 1o negotigte, finafize and
execute oll agreements, documents, papers, instrurnents ard wriiings as they may deerd
necessary, proper, desirable or expedient and fo give such drections andfor Instruciions as
ey moy frorm fime fo time decide and give effedt 1o sldh rmodifications, lerminoflons..
changes, varations, alterations, deletions andior additions s regords the farms and
cohditions gs may berequired; and any documents & exetUted and delivered or acts and
things done or caused to be done shall be conclusive evidence of the authofity of the
Corripany in 5o doing ond any document 30 exgcuted and delivered of .ocks anc things
done or caused to. be done-prior 1o the dole hereof ore hereby ratified. confimed and
approved as the act cnd deed of the: Compony, as the casemay be.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT cluly cerfified copiées of the above resolufions be fumished o any

govermment, statutory or regulaiory Guthority.osmay: be required from time o time.”
Inciedse Ininvestment firalis for non-resident indians and averseas citizens of lndia.

Tor consicier and if thought fit. ta pass. with & without modificotion(s), tallowing resolution as
Special Resolifion.

"RESOLVED THAT pusuant to the applicable provisions of the Foreign Exchange
Managemernt Act, 199, as griended {“FEMA"), the Toreign Exchange wManagsment {Nor-
debt Instrurmentsj Rules, 2019, ds amended, and the Consolidated FDIPolicy Clreular of 2020,
asamended, the Comgidnies Act, 2013 and the riles mode tereunder, each os amandad
{collectively retered fo as the “Companies Act") and subject 1o alt applicable approvdls,
permissions and sonctions. of and/or fiings with the Reserve Bank of india, the Minisiry. of
finance, the Minishy of Corporate Aftalrs, Government of India ornd ofher concemed
authorifies and: subject o such conditions s may be preseribed. by any of the sald
concemed authorities while granting such approvals, permissions. or siinctions which may be
ngreed o by the Roard, the aggregate it of MR and OCT investment on o repaiction
bads in the equity shates of face value of ¥ 5 [Rupees Five Only} each of the Company,
Including, without kmitation, by, subscription in fhe inificl public affering in accordance with
the Secuilies and Exchange Board of India {ksue of Capital and Disclosufe Raduiraments)
Reguiations, 2018, as amended, or dirsct purchase or aequisition from the open marke! o
‘othemidse, Is incraased from 10% 1o 24% of the polid-up equity share capital of the. Company
on g fully dihvited bass. provided however hat the sharsholding of eoch NRI or OCtin the
Compdny shall nat excead 5% of the paid-up.-equity share capital on a fully ditvted basis or
such other fimit as'may be stipulated under appicable faw in each case; from time 1o timer
or such other firil gs friay be stipulated under cpplicable taw in ecch case; from fime 1o
fime, ‘

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose. of giving eftact 1o the obove resclutions, the Baord
of Directors and Key manageral Personnels of the Company bs and aré hereby oythorized
to do ol such acts; deeds, matters and things s they may. in thelr absolyte dscretion, deem
naceisary, proper of desirable for such purpose, incluging fo make any filings, fumish any
retums or submit any other docurments 1o any govemment, statutory of regutatory authorities
as may be reguired, 1o sattie any question, difficuity of doubt and to negofiate, finalize and
executs all agrsements, documents, papers, insfruments and wiilings s they may deearn
necessary, broper, desirabie o expedient and fo give such directions andfor instructions as
they maoy from fime fo fime decide ond give sffect fo such modfications, terminafions,

changes, varations, oferafions, deletions and/or additions as regords the terms and

/) condifions as ray bé required; and any documents o exscuted and delivered or acts and
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fhings. dobe or cotised 1o be done sholl he conclusive evidence of the avthorty of the
Company in so doing and any: document 3o executed and delivered or acts and things
dons of caused to be done-prior fo the date hereof are hereby rafffied, confimed and
approved as the act and deed of the Company, ds fhe case mdy be.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT duly cerified copies of the dbove rssalutions be furnlshecl to any
govemmeent, stertetory orregulatory ou sthority as may be reduired from fime: to s,

t1. To make invesiments, glve loans, guaraniees and securlly In excess of limifs specified under
section 186 of the Companles Act, 2013,

To gonsider and If thought fit, to pass, with or without rodification, foliowing resolufion os
Special Resolulion:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant 1o the provisions of Section 186 and other applicable provisions, if
any. of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rulss made thereunder, each as amended e
“Act); the enablng provisions of the memorandum of cssociation and the arileles of
associafion of the Company, aind sublect to such appravc!s and permissions s may be
required. the:consent of the members be and is hereby Yo, Inter aiia. (o} give any
lsan to.any personis) or.other body comgoratals; zbjgwa cmy guarnn?ee or provide: security
In connection with a loar 1o any perscnis) or other body corporate(s); and o) acaguire by
way of subscription, purchase orotherwise, secunties of any oflier body corporate from fime
fo fime i one or more franches as the Bogrd of Directors ds in thair gbsolute discrelion deem
‘beneficial andih the interest of the Company however, that the gagregate of the loans and
investmenis s¢ for made, fhe dmount forwhich guaraniees o securities so far provided 1o or
in aft -other body cerporate aldng with the additional investments, loans, guorantses or
secutifies. proposed 1o be made or givan by the Company. from fime to fime, shall not
exceed; o any fime € 1,000 crores {Rupees One Thousand Crores Oniy) over and above the.
Imit of sixty per cent of the paid-up share copimi free reserves ond securtios premium
decoivnt of the Cotmpany orone hundréd per cent of free reverves and secwriffes premidm
dacount of the Company, whichever js more,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect 1o the above resolutions, the Board
of Directors.and Key Managenal Personngls of the Company, be, and dre hereby authorized
to do ¢l such acts; deeds, matters and ihings as they may, i their absohsde discretion, deem
nhecessary, proper or desirable for such purpese, including fo rrictke any flingys, furnish any
returns or submit any ofher docdurhents fo any government, statutery or regulatory authorities:
a5 icly be requirad, fo seifie any question, difficulty o doubt and 1o negofiate, finalize and
execute ol agreements, documents, popers, srurents and writings- as they may deem
hecassry, propet; dedrable or expedidnt anat’ to give sweh directions andjor insiruations os
they may from fime 1o fime decide and give effect to such madifications, fermincdions,
changes, vargtions, alterafions, deletions andfor additions as regards the terms and
condifions as ray be required: and any documents so executed and deliversd or acts and
things done orcaused fo be done shall be conciugive evidence of fhie authorly of the Board
in so dolng and dhy docwment so executed and delivered of ach and things dane or
saused o be done-prior fo the date hereof are hereby ratified, confimed and gpproved os
the cict anid deed of the Board, ds fhe case may be:

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT duly certified copies of the above resolutions be fumished o ary
government, stitutory orregulatory autharity as migy be reguired from time o ime.”

12, _!miﬁcuﬂ_on :‘_ﬂ. remvn_mﬁon ot Cost Auditors of ke Company for the Financlal Year 2023-24.
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SOLARWORLD ENERGY SOLUTIONS PVT. LTD,

for consider and if thought fit fo-pass wilh of without modification(s). the following resohtion
os Ordinary Resolytlon:

RESOLVED THAT pussuant fo the provisions-of Section 148 and other opplicable provisions, if
any, of ihe Commparies Act, 2013 read with the Comparias [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
and thé Companies {Cost Records ond Audiff Rules 2014 {including ony statutory
miodification{s) of re-endcimentls) thereot for the firne being in foree], the remuneration
paydble 1o M/s MM@Assoclates [Reg. No. 000454), the Cost Accountant in praciice,
appointed by the Board of Directors (the *Board') fo-conduet the audit of the cost records
of tha Company for the financiol yeor 2023-24, dmoimting 1o & 45,000/ {Rupsees Sidy Five
Thousand only] plus applicable: texes and reimbursernent of out-of pocket expenses, if oy
be and is hereby ratified and confimed.,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Baord of Directors of the Company be-and is hersby otithorired
to undertake ol aets, deeds, things-and matters and 16 give aft such directions ds it may In its
absolute discretion deem necessary, proper or expedient o give effect 1o 1his resalution.”

13. Rafificetion of temuneration of Cost Auditors of the Company for the Financlal Year 2024-25.

To consider and If fhooght fif, fo nogs with orwithout prodiication]s}. the following resolstion
‘as Ordinary Resolulion:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuont fo the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions, i
any, of the Compianies Act, 2013 read with the Companifes (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
and the Companies {Cosi Records and Audif] Rules, 2014 finciuding any stedutory
rrodificationts) o re-anactment(s] thereof for the time being in farcel, fhe ramunerafion
payable to Mfs MM@Associatas (Reg. Mo, 000454), the Cost Accountant in practice,
appolnied by the Bodrd of Direciors (the 'Board’} fo conduct the gudi of the Sost records
of 'the GCempany for the findnclal year 202425, -crnounting 1o € 45000/ (Rupees Shudy-Five
Thausang only plus applicable foxes and relmbursament of out-of pocket expenses, if any.
be dnd is hereby rafified ond confirmed.

RESOLVED _EBW_ER THAT the Hoard of Directars of the Company- ber aindis hereby authorzead
1o underake all acts, deeds, things and matters and o give clf such:directions as itmay Inls
absolufe discretion deem receassary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resalution.”

1. 7o consider and approve ‘Solarworld Eniployee §tock Oplion Plan 2024'.

T consider and it thought it to passwith arwithoot rediticationts), the: foliowing reseiution
s $pecial Resalution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant fo the provisions of Section £2{T}p). and ali other applcable
provisions, § any, of the Companies Act 2013, read with Rule 12 of the Companies {(Share:

Capital ond Debentures) Rules, 2014, the relevant provisions of the Memorandum of
Assaciation and Articies of Association of the Company. in tefrms of the nrovisions of the
Securities ofid Bxchange Board of india {Share Based Employes’ Benelits and Swaat Bauity}

. Regukations, 2021 and subject to such otherapprovals, permissions and sanghions as may be
N\ necessary and subject io such conditions and ‘modifications ¢ meay be prescibed or
\ \\impased whife grarting such Gpprovails), the consent of the rmembers of the Company be
| £ | eind i hereby accorded fo The intraduction and implementafion of Solatworid Employess
) /S;iﬂ’fiik Ootion Plan 2004 {“ESGP 2024"/ *Scheme"} and autharizing the Board of Ditectors of
the Company {hereinafter refefred 16.qs the "Board” which term shall be deemed fo include

. any Commiftee, including the Nomingtion and Remuneration Coemmittee which the Bodrd

L/ has conshiftuted) 1o creale, offer, issue, grant and aligt from fime fo fime, in ohe of more

Rogd. Office; 501, Padma Palace, 86, Nehru Place, New Dethi-110019, india
Corp. Office: 3id Floor, A-45 to 50, Fioneer House, Sec-16, Nokia-201301 (L5, India.
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tranches, not exceeding 10 45.000 fTen Lakhs Sixty Five Thousand) emoldyes stock options
{“OpHions"} fo such permgnent amployess of the Company, working in or gutside !ndk:t as
determined In terms of the ESOP 2024, exercisable into not more han 1065000 {Ten Lakhs
Sixty Five Thousand) equity shares of face value of Rs. 5/- (Rupses Five Orly} sach fully paid-
up, where orig Option would converi info ohe equity shdre upon exercise, o such ferms
and in fUCH manner, in accordance with the provisions of the applicable laws and the
roviskons of the Scharme

“RESOLVED FURTHER TMAT the equily shares to be isued ond allotted as mentioned
herelnbefore shall rank par passy with the then existing eqully shares of the Company,*

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAY in case of any compdrate achion{s} such as fghits ksues, bonus
ssties, margar and sale of division efe, # ony odditional Options dre grarited or equily shares
are issued by the Company, to the Opfions groriees for the purpose of making o fair ani

redsonable adjustment o the Ophcns granted eorfier, the eeliing of total nuber of Qpfions
‘and equity shares specified above shalt be deemed io be increased 1o the exfent of sich

additiondl Ogitlons granted or equity shomsisyed®

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in ctise the -aguily shares of the Compary are elifier sub-divided or
consolidated, then the number 6f shiares to be aliotted and the price of gequisition payable
by the option grantees under the Scheme shall sutomatically sfond rediced or augmented,

-as the oase may be, in the same proportion as the face vailue per equity share shalt becr fo

the fevised face value of the equily shares of the Company after such sub-division or
consciidafion, without daffecting any ofher rights ar obligations of the said graniees.”

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the. Compidiny shall conform fo the accousting poficles prescribed
from fime fo'fime undéer the applicoble lows.™ :

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Kartik Tetia, Mr. Rishabh Jain, Drectors, Mr. Mukut Goyal, Chief
Finandcigh Officer, Ms. Varsha Bhcitl, Company Secrefary of the Company be and ore herfeby
avthorizad joirlly and severolly 16 do all such acts, deeds, maters and fign deeds,
documents. lettersand such other- papers os oy be necessary. desirable and expedient for
approvat of the Schems,”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Bowmrd be and is hereby authofsed 1o delegoie all or any

powsrs confermad hersin, to any commitiee of direclors with o paver 1o further delegate to
any executives / officers of the company o do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as

oo o execute such documenis, wltings etc- as gy be nacessary o give eftect to this

rasclution,”

To consider and approve grant of Employee Stock Optivns fo the Employees of Subsidiary
Company(les) or Holding Company of the Company under “Solarworkd Energy Stock Oplion
Plan 2024'.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant fo the providons of Section A2{1}Hb} and ol other applicable
provisions, i ony, of he Compunies Act 2013, read with Rule 12 of the Companias [Share
Capital and Debentures) Rulgs, 2014, the relevant provisions of fhe Mermorandurn of
Association and Articles of Association of the Company and subject to such other approvals,
pemissions and sanchions s may be necessary and subject to such condifions and
rodifications as may bie prescribed or imposed while gronting such approvalis), the consent
of the shareholders' of the Cornpany be and s hershy accordend 1o autharlie the Boord of
Directars of the Company (hersinafter referred 1o as the “Board® which feérm shall be
desmed fo inciude any Commiltee, including the Nomination ond Remuneration
Committee which the Board has constitufed)] fo offer, issue, grant and ofiot from fime fo

=
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firie, I one of riore ranches: employee stock opfions {*Opfions"! under Sl
Employes Stock Option Plon 2024' {*ESOP 2024"/ *Scheme™), to such permanent employees
of its subsiciiary company(ies) of Holding Company, wha are working in of ovfside India. o3
determined in ferms of the ESOP 2024, within the csling of total number of Options and
equity snares, as specified in ESOP 2024 dlong with such other terms and in such manner, in
accordance with the provisions of the opplicable iaws and the provisions of the ESOP 2024.7

oM O5115384 _
R-13, Nehis Enclave, Kalkajl, New Delhi-1 10019

Place: New Delhi
Date: 16.09.2024
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- The members may vote in the meeting either in persan or by proxies.

A member eniiied fo altend and Vole ot the Meeling is entifled fo cppoint o proxy fo
aftend and vote on a poll Instead of himsell and the prosy need not be o member of the
Compuary.

The inshument of Proxy, 1o be effective, shall be deposited df the Registered Office of
the Company, duly compleled and. signed, nol loter than 48 hours before the
sommencement of the meetling.

A persan can qct as proxy on behalf of members not excesding fifty and halding in
aggregate not more: than ten percent of the fotal share capital of the Cornpany

canrying voling rights. A mamber holding more than ten parcent of fotal sharé capital of

the Company carrying voting fights may appoint o single person: as proxy for any other
person or membxer,

The proxy form to be filed shal contain a revenve stamp. of Rupee 1/ [One), duly
signed both by the members dnd proxy 1o be dppointed and deposited with the

Compiany as stated-above. A proxy form s enclosed along wilh this notice.:

Members should bring the enclosed attendance siip duly filed in for atfending the
mesting along with the natics.

A rouie map to the venue of the meeting §s provided At the end of the naofice.

Corporate Members infending fo send their authoiized representative o affend The

meeting pursuant to section 113-of the Comparies Act, 2013 oié requested o send o
duly cerfified copy of the Boord/Goveming Body resalufioh together with their
respeciive specimen signatures Guthorizng such representative to attend and vote of

the Annuct Generl Meeting.
Mernbers are requested o update thelr e-mgil adcress with the Company.

A member may request delivery of any document Hhrough o parficular mode and the
fee for the sarne shalt be determined by the Cornpony in the Annual General Meeting.

Refavant dociiments mfered 10 in the Notice aid stotutory registars e avaiiable for
Inspaction by the Mermbers of the Registered Office of the Comipany and copies of the
same are uvailable df the cofporate office of the Company o all werking days-during
business haurs 1o the date of the Anrival Generat Meeting dnd shall also Be avallable for
inspection by Members ot the Meefing. The documents sholl clso be aviiloble: for

nspaction elecironically,

A Staterment pusucnt o Sacton 102 of thie. Compaonies Act, 2013 {'the AcP) in respect
of special business 4s set out above ta be fransacted at the Annual General Meeling is
annexed harato and forms-a part of this Notice.,

Consent for holding the Annual Generat Meefing of the Company ct Sharter Notice is
being oblained from the members of the Company.

Regd. Office: 501, Padma Palace, 88, Nehru Piace, New Delhi110019, India
Corp. Office: 3rd Floor, A45 0 50, Pionear House, Sec-16, Noida-201301 (U.P.) Indis
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Explanatory Statement pwrsuant fo seclion 10

HEMNO 3.

Mr, Sushil Kumar Join was appainted os an addiiionat director of the Company with effect from
24n March 2024, In decordance with the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Ast, 2013,
racsd with the Arficles of Association of the Company,

2 of the "Cf.frnpan_igs_ﬁct; 2013

Pusuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, the obove director hotddy office only vp to
ihe date-of the ensuing Annual General Meeting of e Compary.

KA. Sushil Kumor Jain s nof disquaiiad from being appainted as Director in ferms of Section 164

af the Cormponies Act 2013 and hog given his consent to oot as Director.

Details of M, Sushil Kumar Join as per the Secretonial Stendard on Generdl Meelfings (352} s
givery hereundern:

jom 00002069 B
Dote ot Bith ooosiess -
{Age) {65}
Date of First Appolntment 25032024 — T T T
on the Board
|
: i
2 S I : 4
Quaiification (s} 8. Com, Fellow member of the Insfifvie of
Chortered Accouniants. ¢f India oid Associgie
| membars of the institute of Cormpdny Secréfaries of
o,
Expertise / experience in funclional "Mr. Sushil Kumer Join i the founder and Chiet |
areq i Pafron rmembers  of Join  inlemdctional  Trade |
Organisgtion. He is the Chairman and founder of
! the diverdlied Pioneer Group. He hekd vadous:
i posifions ity PHD Chamiber of Commerce. }
Im.__ e i - ! - - o - ™
“Terms and condifions of re- T hirector fable to retire by rotafion
! appainfment i
- A S — it = = e
Remunerafion sought to be poid and | Nt
‘e remunetafion last drawn 1
— Number of shares heid in the il T T
//:- — \"“"‘5\ Compuny I |
"._ '." ) l . . ) .
\ 2\ Kefoltonship with other Directors/ Nir. Rishabh Jain is the son of Mr, Sushil Rumar Jain !
| 5 || Manager 1KMP : “
72"/ Ne. ot Board meefings held and | 11oul of 11 Board Meefing o
Nt 7 | cfiendeddwingtheyear S a

_Bag_c, ©ffice: 501, Padma Palace, 88, Mebiru Place, New Daihi- 116019, India
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- Ofher Direclorship(s) Simplifying Squad Privots Limited
Sindoor Falbries Private {irniteg

Pioheer Fil-Med Private Limited.

Ploneer Flawless Mannequins Privote Limited

Shiflorig Power Private Limited

PK infracon Private Limited

Terapanih Educdtional nfre Private Limited

Ploneer Facor IT Infriadevelspets Private Limitet

Ploneer E services Private Limited

 Aqua Financial Consuliants Prvate Lirifed,

SJP-Consulfant Private Limifed

Pioheer Rait Equipments Private Limited

Pigneer Securities Private Limifed

Chartered Insurance Brokers Private Limited

Himachal-HR iftergrafed Food Pork Private Limited

Jalltpur AgrcultUral Private Uinifed o _

| Ankita Agro ard Food Processing Private Lrifled. |
J

Commitiee posifion in offer public | NIL
compantes |

BT T — e

The. Board is of the view that the appaintent of Mr. Sushit Kumar Join as Ditector s desirable
and would be beneficial to the Compoany ond hencs it recommends the Resciution mentioned
ot #tem No. 3 for approvat by dhe members of the- Company,

The relevant documents ore open for inspection by the members of the Registerad Office of
the Company on ol working days, duing business hours up fo the date of the Megeting.
Adoitionally, coples-of the refevéint documents are availoble: for irspection at the comporate
office of the Company and Wi gise be made available ot the Meeting. The documents are
also availgble for inspection slectronically,

hNone of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/thelr relafives, sxcept Mr,

Sushil Kumar Jain and Mr. Rishabh Jain and thelr relafives. dre in any way concerned or
nterastad, in the soid resohtion.

the Board recimmends the sald resolition 16 be passed os.an ordinary resolistion,

M, Mangal Chand Telfia was oppointed as executive Direciar of the Caornpany with effect
from 14% Seplember 2021,

Considering the fact that Mr, Mangal Chond Teitia & not involved in working dffalrs of the
Comparly and is not In the employment of the Company, I 5 proposed fo change his
dedgnation fiom executive director to non-exacutive director.

| Petalls of Mr. Mangal Chand Teltia as per the Secretarial Standard on Generol Meeflhgs (55-2) s

| given histéunder:

/
//
Z

o

e Rt = et e e g e .-:-._....__,_..___] ..8...6.‘_.,__..._ e b e b ey
S - 5 _ o o s g
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. Date of Bickh - 15081956 o -]
(Age) {68} i
| Date of First Appolniment A - -
on the Board

| |

(Gualfeaionty ~ BGm - ]

Expetlise / experience in funcHonal v Mangc:t Chcmd Teliar stafted his career af
| area ] Jayshree indusfries in 1981, In 1988 after o brief |

Isﬁn? ot Kores, he ;m ned Automoters Alignce
| Limited. He retired in 2020 s Director Bngnce |
from tie Company after woiking for more thon 32
yedrs.

Tetrns ond condifions ot { Direcior ighle fo refire by rotation

1 re-uppointment

Remuneralion sought fo be pald and e | Sought tobe paid: Ni
| refnuneration last draown Last chrawn: Rs. 22,500/-

Nomnber of sores held In he Company | 3550554 equity shares of Rs. 5 sach,

Relafionship with other Birectors/ | Wi Kartik Tlita 1s the son of Mr. Mangal Chand.

* manager /KMP Telita

{ No. of Board meetings heid and [Tl outof 11 Board Mesting T

aftended dining the yeor

|

L PE o N I

| Oftier Directorship(s) Teiia Trading Private Limited }

l Commifies posifion in ofier publiic IE - T T

|;l:émpmﬁes'# ; |
- I S - - —_—

The selevant documenits are open for: inspection by the members ot the Registered Office of
the Company on ol working days, durifng business hours up to the date of the Meeting.
Adiditionally . copies of the. relsvant docuraents. are avaliabile for inspection dat the crrporate
office of the Company ond will glso- be mades cvaliabie at the Meeting. The documents are
alo avaikable for inspection elecﬁonicaﬂy

None: éof the t}irec:kxsmey Managerat Personnet of the Cornpcnynhelr reiatives, except Mr
KMangal Chand Telia and Mr. Kartik Teitia ong their relatives; are i any way concerned or
inferested in the soid resciiution,

The Board recommends fhe safd resolution fo be passed as an ordinary resolution.

{TEMNO. 5

EV _.'.J.I:. g il ) \‘\
/] / N, \
[ / , \

| 2)
| |
& om )3)
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SOLARWORLD

The Members may kindly take note that Mr. Kertik TeMir wes oppainted as o director of the
Company on 174 july 2003,

M. Karlik Teffia holds a bachelor's degree in commerce from the University of Dethi, He is g

mernber of fhe insituie of Chartered Accountants of india. He has also completed post-
graduafion program in mahagement fiom the Indiah Scheol of Business.

. Mr. Kortlk Teltia workerd os an orficle assistant &t $iR. Ratiibot and Company from 207 io 2008,
He: joined the Pioneer group in 2010 whers he headed the Refirerment benefits division, Post his
MBA, hefounded Solarwarld Energy Solutions in 2013, He hos been the founder Director of the
Company.

In view of his past experiences, responsibififies haondied by Mr. Teltia, it is recommended Yo the
mambers to-appoint Mr. Karik Telfio ds the Manraging Director of the: Company_.

The broad parficulars of the lerms of appoirtment gnd rermuneration poyaibie to Mr. Tellio.are
asuncer:

(&)  Remunerdffon:

L TRasic Salay B "}"E‘m;oawe-pememn. 1
I, | Benefits, Perquistes gnd - Allowarices
| Calegoy AT
T 2 7 Housing / House Rent Alowance | ¥ 1,5080 permorh. T ]
‘‘‘‘ o Tramsport Alowance. ¥ 50,000/~ per Tonih.

i’c“z-@m e —

Ta. | Confribution To Providert Fund | A per ulés of The Cormpany.

TR Gratity Grahily payobis shall nol exceed half o
month's salary for each completed year of
, 1 service, os per rules of the Cormparniy.
Gty T R
T o, T Commumication Faciities | Expenses on communicafion facilfies wit be |
' i reimbursed/ bome on aciudis and will not
beé freated as perquisites.
1k | Personal Accident and Medical | As perrules of the Company.
| Insurance
P ;?:ﬂl_ Eamned/Privilege Leave [ Asperrules of the Company. |
L. - L " -

(B}  Reimbuisement of Expensas: o
Qut-of-pocket and enterfainment expenses dlong witly the expenses incumed or: travelling,
boarding and lodging In connection with the business of the Company shall be reimbursed on
actual and shell not e consdensd as pempuisites,

) Generul: _ _
The fotal remuneration inclusive: of salaty, benefifs, perquisites, gllowances, ete. payable to Mr.
Karfik Tedia shall be in corapllance with the pravisions of Compiqinies Add, 2013 as omended.

Regd. Office: 501, Padma Palace, 88, Nehru Piace, New Delhi-110018, India
Corp. Office: 3rd Figor, A-45 10 50, Plonesr House, Sec-16, Noida-201304 {LLP) livetiai
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i) Me Kartik Taltics shaift work under the « perintendence and contrel of the Board. Aslong ashe
funclions as d Managing Director, he shafl not be paid any sitting fees to attend the meeting of
the Boord and/or Committeels) thereof. '

Gty f ot ony time, M Korlik Tetfa cetses fo be Director -of the Company for any reqson:
whaotsoever, he shall alko cedse to be the Managing Director of the Company.

{iv) He shail adhere fo the Compdny's Code of Conduct..

W) Enceshment of leaveras per rules of the Company.

[vi] The terms and condifions set.out for appoiitment and payrent of iemuneration herein may be
altered and varied by the Board, as it may, from time to fime, desm appropricte.

(vij The appoiritrent may be terminated by either party giving the othel parly three months' prior

nofice in wiiting or such shorter nofice as may be mutualy agreed ‘between Mr. Kartlk Teffia,
and the Company of payent in lieu of notice by elfher party.

{vii} Perauisifes, benefits and alowances shail be evaiuated wherever applicable, os per the
provisions of the Incoms Tax Act, 1961 of ‘any ries made thereunder or any statory
miodification(s} or re-enactment thereof. In the absence of any such Rules, perquisites and
alowances shall be evaluated &t thé actual Cost.

Terms & Condifions as per part fl of Schedule ¥ of the Companles Act2013:

.  General informafion:

| Nature of industy The Company is engaged in the business
of engineerng, procurement  ard
construction business, _
Boim o mpecied  date  of | The Company had dfeady commenced
; commencement of commetcial | s operations.
. praducton
" 7 In case of new companies expected | Not Applicable. ) B
date of commencement of gctivities. as |
,per project opfroved by financlal
insfitufions appecring in the prospectus
T Rroncial Femormance based on gven | (TinMiilons) B )
' indicators: _
L Parficulars "I Audiled Financlols of inanciol yeat ended |
Torglincome ) [5p55.08 -
ofal Expenses ' 4,400.76 ’ "
TProtiiam betore Tax and Exceptions! Uésaaz S
Herms. |
. Biceplional llers o - o R __1
! ¥ i S S —— AP S |
Totattax ' 167.40 t
- Proni/{Loss) for the Year 487.01 T "“1
: N\ 'C}Ther. c@m_prehensi\ie income /loss) for | {005 o )
‘} the year, net of fox | J
/ /i | Tcﬁfdl comprehensives Income/{icss]  for | 486.%6 }
J L. = e e 13 [ e}

Regd. Office: 501, Padma Pataca, 88, Nehry Piace, New Delhi-110019, India
Corp. Office: 3cd Fioor, A45 o 50, Pionasr Houss, Sec-16, NmZMao1 (U.P) india
Tel (EPARXY: 91-11-20805500 Fax: 99-11-418106691
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CIN: U S1800DL20T3PTC255458



S’ SOLARWORILD ENERGY SOL
B UTIONS PVT. LTD.
T ihe year net oF tox i B T T
. ! . . — _ e e |
{ Foreign investments or coliaborafions, if | Nil '
o any.
_ Infotmaﬁon about the appointea: =~ _
Backgroung deflls: As mentioned obove In  explanatory
I statement.
T Pastrerauneration: [T B
| | Recognifion o awards: MA.
' Job profile ond his sutability: “AS mentioned in expionatory siatement.
7| Rémunergtion proposed [As mentioned above in  explanatory |
stoternent, '
Comparafive remuneration profie with | Consdening  ihe  knowiedge, expéﬁrsa '
srespect fo indusiry,, sizé of e company; | responsibiilties g expefience;
‘profiie of the posifion and person fin case | remunerafion proposed 10 be pald o M.
of expairates the rélevant defois would | Karfik  fella B cofrimernsirate. and !
be. with respect fo the courifry of his | comporable to the remuneraflon pdid 16 .
: origin): his pears n the seme indusiry. '
Pe,cun.i'ﬁ."; relationshis  directly  or | M. Karlik Teltic has been poid pn:}fsmenu'
;ndfectfy wﬁh ) the  company, _ei"r fee for the professional services.
ﬁrelgt%ﬁir aﬁ:ghtﬁre;?; _{f_qr:::nagenoi He'is the son of Mr. Mdngol Chand Tetia,
Ik ' ' R the Direclor oand member of 1he
Campany.
Mr. Kortik Tefiia hoids 26507046 equity
| shares in the Company.
Other information:
Recsons of foss orinadequdie profis Presently thefe ore *15)%&25&3{:?5 profits in |
the Company. However, Were may be
| inadequale profits in the future duing the
ferure of Mr, Kordik Telfic ¢s Managing
Direcior of the Company dls 1o Varous
factors. Accordingly, approval of membsiers
being oblaiied in advanee pusuant fo
schedu!e V congiderng that there may be
L loss or inadequate profils in future duiing
the fenurg of Mr. Karik Telfia os Managing
Diracfor of the Company.
\ I"Steps Taken or proposed 1o be taken for | NA. ST T n
"\\ irmprovement
|
|| | Expected increase i productivity ond o )

Regd, Office: 501, Padma Falace, 66, Nehru Place, New Delh- 110018, fnd
Corp. Office: 3rd Floor, A-45 1 50, Pionesr Houss, Sec-15, Noida-201301 (U, P?lndia
Tel (EPABX): 91-11-30606500 Fax: 011141610891

Eimail; Info@@wordsolor.in websita:

CIN: LH S100DL201 3PTCE56486



S <t SOLARWORLD ENERGY SOLUTIONS PVT. LTD.
FOLAFWORE B
{" i profits in medsurable fems - T mi

Notwithstanding the foregeing but subject to the provisions of the Act, whete in any financial
year ding the curency’ of the tenure of M. Kartlk Teltia, the Company hos no profits or ifs
profits are Inadequate, the dhove-mantioned rermuneration -and subseguent revisions, If any,
will be poid as minimurn remurieration which includes variable inceniives.

Mr, Kairfik Tellia hds provided His consent fo-act us Managing Director of the Gompany.

Defails of Mr. Kartik Tettia. as per the Secreterial Standard on General Meetings {35-2 is given
hereunadern. o

| DIN L 106610105 '
| Date of Bicth o T (Zogress ‘{
| (Age) 138}

Bidle of Frsf Appoiniment Lz -
on the Board ' !
Quafication (s) T I'8.Com, CA, MBA. o

Experiise / experience in fonclional area | As stated hereinabove

]
Termsand condifons of | As stoted hereinabove D
| re-appolntment
Rerinealion wveht s bepadand e[ Sought 1o be paidt R, €0,00,000- per |
remunetafion lash drawn ginnum
| Lost, drowr: Nif
Number of shares heid In the Company | 2,65,07,045 equity shares R
“Reiafionship with other Directors/ Manoger | Mr: Kaflik Telfia s fhe son of M. Mangal |
TKMP Chadnd Telfia
S R _ d — S
‘No..of Board meefings heid and gtended 111 put-of 11 Bodrd Mesting [duaing the
dudhg the yeat ! firanciol vaar 2074-25)
Other Diveciorship(s) - TTalii Trading Private Limited 7
Znshine Salorworld Private Limited
Ortusun: Renewdble Power Private Limited
Kartik Solarworld Private Limited
! Danton Power Private Limited -'
 Derma Best Heolth Care Prvote Limited
: Ethrile Food arid Hospitality Private Urnited
i Futurelife Super Foods Piivate Limited

o7~ N\ Kehon Solorworld Private Limited
(oeim )3)
L/K \_ /3

Regd. Office: 501, Padma Palacs, BB, Nohru Place, Naw Dethi-110019, India
Corp. Office: 3rd Floor, A-85 1o 50, Pioneer Hausa, Sec-18, Noida-£201301 {.P.) India
Tel (EPABX): 81-11-3060S800 Fax: 91-11-41610691
E-mail: info@woridsolar.inn wabsite: wasw wordsolardn
CIN: U15100DL2DTIPTC255455




Q hat” SOLARWORILD ENERGY SOLUTIONS PVT. LTD.

SOLAFIWORILEF

{A)

) i

| Ayman Scicrword Prvate Umited
Futurelife Foods Private Limited

Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private
Limited | |

Ethnic Food Maonufacturing Private Limited

#ﬁm?meg ;;gs!ﬁon In other public ' HIL
compa '

o DE— SRS o

The-above-mentioned tenrs and condifions of appcintment/ remuneralion may be fredled os
a wiitten memonandurr setting-out the terms of appointment of Mr. Kartik Teltia under Section
190 of the Act.

The refevant documenis ore open for insbection by the members of the Regittered Office of
the Corpany on all working days, duing bisiness hours up o the date of the Mesting.
Addifionally, copies of the relevant documents are avallable for inspection af the compaorate
office of the Company and Wil also. be made avallable af the Meeting. The documents are
akaavallable for inspaction elechonically.

Except Mr. Karlik Teltia and M. Mongal Chand Teitia, none of the Direclars and Key Managerial

Personhel of the Company or theil respeciive relafives, arein ony way concerried of inférested,
financially or othenwise, In the resoiution sef-out of em Mo 5;

i is proposed fo seek Members’ apryovol for the appolritment of Me. Kartik Telfio os Managing
Director in terms of applicable pravisions of the Ach.

Actordingly. the Board recommends the resolufion &t itern No. 5 for approval of the Memibers
as & spéclal resolufion..

The Members may kindlly tfake note thaf Mr, Rishabh Jain was appointed gs o director of the
Company on 170 july 2013

Me. Rishakt: Join holds o bachelors degree in commercé. He is a rmember of the Instifute of
Chartered Accouniants of India.

Mr, Rishabn Jain worked os an arficie asdsfont ot S.R. Batibol and Company from 2008 te 2010.
He foined the Pioneer group in 2010 where he headed the Railways division.. He founded
Solarworid Energy Solutions n 2013 along with other promoter mermbérs and dirsstors. He hos
been the touhder Director of the Compdrny.

it Is recornmriended to the membaers o -appoint Mr, Rishidbh ioin as the Whale-Time Dredtor of
the Company.

The broad particulars of the tenns of appointment and remuneration payable 0. Mr. Jain are as
undef:

Remunernfion:

. | Basic Salary " % 2,40,000/- per month,
E Benefis, Percuisifes and Allowances

S |

Regd, Office: 501, Padma Palace, 86, Kehru Place, New Dethi-110019, indi
Corp. Office: 3rd Floer, A—fL_‘i 2 50, Pionaar House, Sec-16, Nolda-201301 (U?F'.)alndia
Tel (EPABXY: 01-11-30805500 Fax: 91-171-4 1610851
E-mail: infod@worldsolar.in website: A iy
" CIN: U15100DL2013PTCIS8488 T T T



SOLARWORLD ENERGY SOLUTIONS PVT. LTD.

I e ammne L et i " e

Categary A

G THousing / House Rent Allowance | 2 1,20,000/- per monih.

o, | Transport Allowance

Category B’
o, Contibution fo Provident Fund | As per rules of the Company.
e, Gratuly " | Gratuty payable shall not exceed half @

] | month's salary for each completed year o
i service, as per rites of the Company.

Calegory €

& Communication Faciiies | Expenses.on communication fociifies wif be |
; reimbursed/ bome on actuals  and wilt not
-be freated as perquisites,

T, Personal Acddent and Medical | As per riies of the Comoony.
Hinsurance

e i -

Te T TEamediPrviege Leave | AS per ruies of the Company. 1

113] Reimbursement of Expenses: _
Cut-of-pockel and enterfairiment expersas diong with the ‘expenses. incured on fraveling,
boarding and lodging in conrigction with the business of the Company shall be reimbursed on
actual-and shali ot be considered as percuisites,

- {C}  General: _

(i the tolat remuneration inclusive: of saldry, benefits. perquisites, alfowanices, stc. payebie To Mr.
Risnaohn Jain shait be in compiiance with ne provisions of Companiss Act, 2013 as amended.:

(i :Mr. Rishaibh Jain shall work under the superintendente and conirol of fre Board. Asiong as he
functions as @ Whate-Time Director; he shall not be paid any siffing fees to atiend the meeting
of the Board dnd/or Committeels} thereof.

{ii) ¥ ot ony fime, M Rishabh Jan ceqses to be Director of the Company tor any reason
whatsoever, he shall also cease to be the Whole-Time Director of the Company.

[iv} He shali adnere fothe Compary s Codé ot Conduct.

{vi Encashrment of leave as per rules of the Compadny.

i} The ferms ond concitions sef out for sppointment ond payment of remuneration herein may be
alfered and varied by-the Board, os it may. fom fime fo fime, deem dppropriate.

i} The appointment may be'terminated ty elther party giving the other party threa moniths prior
nofice iri.wiiting ot such shorfer notice as may be mutually agreed between M. Rishabh Jain,
and the Company of payrment in lieu of nolice by eifner pariy. _

{vili} Perquisites, benefits ¢id ollowances shall be evoludied, whetever dpplicable; s per the
provisions of the come Tax Act 1281 or any rules made therednder or any stalutory
tnodificationis) or ré-endciment thereof. in the absence of ony such Rules, perquisites and
aliowances shall be evaluated of the actual cosh

Tarms & Condiflons s per part i of Schedule V ot the Companias Act 2013;

General Information; ) _ . o :
I Naiure of Industry The Cornpany s engaged in e '-business-|

g AT of engineerng, procurement  and
tzq}\i e P:.’(,)\ | construction business.

L

‘Regd. Office: 501, Padma Palace, 86, Mahry Pacs, Mew Delni-110019, indi
Corp. Office: 3rd Floor, A-45 to 50, Ploneer House, Sec-16, Nivida-2071301 ('U‘;; Incis
Tef (EPABX): 81-11-306D5500 Fax: 91-11-41819881
E-mail; info@wortdsolar.in website: www worldsobar in
CIN: U1E100DL 204 3P TC 255445




SN

/m\

A\ N8
.‘\ 4

|

commencement of commercial
» production

Date  or  expected  dote . of

SOLARWORLD ENERGY SOLUTIONS PVT. LTD.

The Company hod aready commenced |
its operations.

In case of new companies expected | Not Appilcable.
daole of commencement of activitles as

. . per project approved by financial

I linstindions appearing in the prospectus:

“’- '”F!-ﬁandm Performance based on glven (tin Mﬁ_fons} — “

‘ - Indicators:

| Pomcvias Audited Financials of fnancial year snded |

i 31.03.2024
S — TT565538 _‘:
Tolal Expenses L a,40076 T
" Profit/{Less) before Tax.and Excephional | 65442 - |
+ Harng .
Excepﬂoncu lferﬁs I B N T
Celalfex T T T 17167.40 T - 1
T Profit/iLoss] for the Year 487.0%" Tt
"Ofher comprehensive ncome /(ioss) for* 005 - ]
the year. net of tax .

" ioldl comprehensive Income/lioss] for | 48696 T T - T
theyear natof tox ]
roragn unvestmen'rs or coliaborahions, it | Ni o ' [
any.

|

information about the appolntee:

e e e TP

Background detolls: As mertioned above In explonatory
statement.
Past remuneration: ML o - I —
Reoogni'iian or awords: TTTTTTTTTTURAA, — e
- Wpf@ﬁggndms suitabiity: Mm@l’lh{medm erpionaion staiemant.
Rernuneration proposed As mentioned dbove in_ explanaiofy

staternent.

.-Compumﬁve rermuneration profile with
T respact 1o ihdusiry, sive of the company,
' profile of the position and person {in case
of expaiiates the relevant detalls woulkd

be with respect 1o the country of his

Consdenng the. kﬂoMedge naxpertfse

- fesponsibiifies taials experiencs, i
emuneration. propased 10 be paid fo Mr, |
Richabh Join B commenswrale and |
comparoble to the remuneration paid fo |
hils peersin the sarfie indushy: i

.l

i
! ofigin}:
E _t iPecuntary _-r_e'?a‘fians.hip- directly or

fragdd, Office: 501, Padma Palace, BB, Nefiru Place, New Delhi-110018, India
Corp. OfMlce: 3rd Floor, A-45 to 50, Pionaer House, Sec-16, Noida-201301 (L. P India

Tel (EPABX): 91-11-30805500 Fax: 91-1‘[—4 18186881
E-mail: info@worldsolar.in website: www.worjdsolarin

CIN: U1BT00DL2013PTC 255455
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SOLARWORLD ENERGY SOLUTIONS PVT, LTD.

R —— S [ — g e S .
i indirectly  with  the company,  OF for the professond! services. i
' relationship with  the  managesat | o o
4 personnel ar other director, if any. He'Js the son of Mr. Sushil Kumar Jain, the |
{ [ 'l Director arid memper of the Company.
N S S Jp ;
Other informaolion:
Reasons of loss or inadequate profifs Prasently there are no inadegquate profits in
the, Company. However, there moy be
] inadequate profits in the fuluie duing the
t tenure of Mr, Rishobh Jain as Whole-Time
| 1 Dirsctor ot the Company due fo vafious’
! factors, Accordingly, approval of members
5 being obtained in advonce pursuant o
schiedule V considering that there may be
I joss or Inadequate. profits in fulure duing
! | the terure of My Rishabh Jain os Whole-
! Tirrie Director of the- Company. :
| Steps taken or proposed 1o be foken for | NA, '
! irmprovement f
Expected Increcse in productivily and '
!. | prasits in mensuroble ferms ;
L PRSI E S ey et - b

Nofwithstanding the foregoing but subject to the provisions of the Act, where in any finaricial
year during the curency of the fenure of Mr. Rishabh Jain, the Compuny has no profits of ifs
profifs are inadequate, the above-mentioned remuneration and subseguent ravisions, if any,

wili be gaid as minimum remuneration which inciudes variable incentives.
Me. Biskabh Jain has provided his consent to act as Whole-Time Director-of the Company.

Detalis of Mr. Rishabh Jdin as per the Secretarial Standard on General Meafings ($5-2) Is given
hereunder:

D - - 1! 05115384 o }
|DateofBith o 1 2403.7989 - z
| (age) | t38) |
| Dote of Fust Appainiment N iz T T |
| an the Board [ i
et e e B e e ST —— —
Qualification (s) 8. Com, CA. |
[ Experlise / experience in tunclional ares Asstated hersinabove il
;. | .
b Terms and condifions of As staled hereinabove |
i e e P TENC (T — — - =il A Ty !
a2 f \ \ll
\2! =
N\ %, 7/ Ragd. Office: 801, Padms Falace, 86, Nehn: Placs, New Delh ;
N8 E{l!;&-p. OMee: 3rd Fioor, 445 to 50, Pionger nui“”,’fé'?mé’ﬁfmfzﬁﬁféﬂ?ma

Tal (EPABX): 91-11-308058500 Fax: 91-11-41819891
E-mall: info@worldeolar.inn website: weawvywardsolarin
CIN: M S100DLI0TIPTCIE54588 '



NNl SOLARWORLD ENERGY SOLUTIONS PVT. LTD.
SO_ARWORL O
re-appoiniment 1 |
“Remunerafion sought to be pald and the Sought lo be paid: Rs. 4800000/ per
remunerafion fast drawn qrnum
Lasst drérwn: Nit
Numbier of shares heid in the Compony il '
. Relafionship with otiver Directors/ Manager | M7, Rishabh Jain is the son of Mr. Sustil
- /KMP Kyrvcr Joirt
No. of Bodrd meelings held and allended 11 aut of 11 Boord Mesting {during the
during the year | financial year 202425}
Other Directorship(s) Inshine Solarworld Private Limited
SJP Consufonts Piivate Urdited
Fienagr Facor 1T Irifradevelopss Privote
- Pionear Fil-Med Private Lirmited
Devmiraa Private Lirnited
 Ortusun Renewable Power Plivate Limited
Sirmplehedlthy Foods Private Umited
Pionest Rall Equipments Private Himited
| Frozen Footd Processing Private Limited
- Ploriser Global Enterprises Pivate Umited
Kehan Solarwond Private Limited
Aycan Sclarwanid Privdie Limited
Ethnic Food and Hospitaity Private limfted
Sotarwark! Erargy Solufions Prvate Uinlter
| Dapton Pawer Private Limted .
K'Y triformation Technologles Private Urdited
' Ploneer Esarvices Private Limited
| . : Plorger. Ep_ﬂ_ngﬁjnmfgvaie Limited
Committee posifion In other public NIt

The above-mentignead ferms and conditions of oppointment/ remuneration ray be treated os
o witlen memarandurn setfing-out the forms of appointment of M., Rishabh Jain under Section
190 of the Act.

The televant dacimenits ars open for inshachion by the members of the Registerad Office of
the Company on ol working days, during business hous up fo the date of the Meeling.
Agdifionally, coples. of the relevant documents are avaliable for Inspection ot the corporoie
office of e Company arnd will diso be made avaliable at the Meeting, The documents are
ako avallable forinspection electronically,

Fxcept M. Rishabh Idin and Mr. Sushil Kurviar Jain, nore of the Directors and Key Manogeriod
\ Personnel of the Company o thelr respective refatives, are i any way concemed o intarested,
\ francialy or othenwise, in the resoliution set-out ot fterm No. 8.

It is-proposed o seek Members' approval tor the appointment of Mr. Rishabh Jain gs Whole-
E Tirne. Dirgiefor in ferms of appiicable provigons of the Act.

Regéd, Office: 501, Padma Palaoe, 56, Nehru Pace, New Delhi-118018, Indla
Corp. Office: 3rd FlounA—-ss to 50, Pionsey House, S00-16, Noide-201301 {U.P.) India
Tel EPABX): 91.11-230805500 Fax: 81-11-4 161 9881
E-mail: info@wordaoiar.in website: vavw worldsoiar in
GCIN: tH5100DL2013PTC 266455



SOLARWORLD ENERGY SOLUTIONS PVT. LTD.

Accordingly the Boord recommends 1hea resalution of ltem No. 4 for approval of ingé Members
i ¢ special resolution.

EMNO. 7

The Company intends to undertake an infficl public offering (the “Offer'} of ifs equily shares (ihe
“Equily Shaves"). In connection with the Ofiar, the Company will be reauited to comply with the:
Companies Act, 2013, and the rules thereurider, 6ach as amended {the. "Companles Act') and
1he Securifles and Exchange Board of India {Listing Obligalions and Disclosure Reguirernents}
Regulations, 2015, 65 amended {the *SEBI Usting Regulalions”}. Accordingly, the Board has
recommended the appointment of Ms. Rint Chordlics {DIN 07285481) as an independent direclor
‘on the Board of the Compiatiy. In This connectian, the Board Is of The opinion that such persen
fulfils the oriteria for independent directors, as saf sutin the Compoanies Act ang the SERE Listing
Regulctions and that Ms. Rini Charelia s hdependent of the management of the Cormpany.

Ms. Rint Chordia hoids o biachefor's degree in technology from I Dethl and holds @ master's
degree in business adrninistration. from Indian School of Busingss. Ms. Rini Chordid has been
serving on the board of Belectriq Mobility Private timiited. '

The Cormpony has received the consent letter in the Form DIR — 2 fumished by Ms. Rinl Chordia
providing herconsent to act as an independent director of the Company, the dediaraiion dnd
the underiakings In the Form DIR - 8 confirming thatshe is not disqualified under Section 144(2)
of the Comparies Act from acting as a director of the Company, the disclosure of Inferest
under Seclion 184 of ihe Companies Act ity form MBP-1, deciaration about fulfiiing the criterda
of Independence under secfion 149 of the Compdnies Act anid SEBE {Uisting Obligations and
Disclosuré Raauirernenis) Regulations 2015 ond the certificole Jssued by the Indion insfitute of
Corporate Affairs, In compliance with Rule 6 of the Comparies (Appointment and Qudiificafion
of Direciors) Rules, 2014 kom Ms. Rinl Cherdia,

Details of Ms. Rini Chordlic s per the Secretariat standard on General Meetings {(85-2] ls given

‘hereundsr:
Cpiv " To7205481 o
[Doteotswn ) 06.08.1986 {
(Age) (38 yecrrs)
Date of Fiest Appoinfment TOTONA T T ‘ B
on the Board t
‘Gualfcabion (8 "B.Jeck MBA T
" Experfise / experience in funciional areo | Asstated avove. T
Jerms and conditions of Non-Executive Independent Director 1
re-appointment i *
‘ E I

Rogd, Office: 501, Padma Palace, 88, Nehru Place, New Deihi-110019; India
Corp. Office: 3l Finor, A-4510 50, Plonger Houaa, Séc-16, Nolda-201'301g('-U?P.) India
Tel (EPABX): 91-11.30805500 Fax: 91-11-416810601
E-all: irfo@wondaotar,in website; waw worddsolar.in
CIN: LM 5100DL 201 3PTC255455
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SOLARWORLD ENERGY SOLUTIONS PVT. LTD.

'?é’n‘?:’:ﬁé};qﬁa’n'sadgﬁé to be pald and the N T T T
remuneration last drawn

Number of shares held In the Company | Mil
Relafionship wiih ofher Diieclors) Manager | N.A,
P

No. ofBoard meefings hetd and aitended | NA. B
during the year '

"Other Directoship(s) Beleckia Mobifty Private Lirled

 Commiltes posifion In other public NL T T T T

s R

The Board of the Directors firmiy believes that Ms. Rinl Chordia bing imimiense value on account
of her stature, professional competence and experience, and accordingly, recommends her
appointment as independent Direciors of the Company for & ferm of five consecufive. years.

The relevant documerds.are open for jnspection by the members of the Regislered Office of
ihe Cormpany wrr il working days, duing ousiness hours up o Hhe dale of fhe Meeling.
Additionafly, coples of the relevant documents are avallable for inspection at the corpiorote.
office of the Company and will aba be made avaliable ot the Meeting, The documents are
also available for inspection electonically.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152 and other applicabie provisions of the Compdries
Ak e apgresal of ke regmben of the Coutrpuiy b feguied o oppoind her oy e
indepiendent director,

None of the directors o managers or key mahagerial personael of the Comgpany or thelr
respachve rsidiives are inlerested in the rasalution.

The Bodrd recommends the sold resolufion 1o ba possed o spaciol resatulion,

The Carmpany Infends to undertoke on nitial pubiic offaring {the "Offer"} of ifs equity shares {the
“Equity Shares"]. In connection with the Gifer, the Company will be required io comply with the
Compdnies Act, 2013, and the riles therdunder, eagch as amendsd {the “Componlas Act"} and
the Secuiifies and Exchiange Board of india (Listing Obligations and Discicsure Requirements)
Regulotions, 2018, as amended (the “SEBI Lisfing Regulafions”). Accordingly, the Board has
recommended the appointrnant of Mr. Ramakant Pattanaik {DIN 10724949 os an indebendent
director on the Board of the Company. In this connettfion, the Board is of the opinion thiat siuch
person fulfils the criteria for independent directors, ¢s sef out in the Companies. Act, and the
SEBI Listing Regulotions and that Mr. Ramiakant Pattanaik s independent of fhe manacgerment of
\ the Company. _ _
\ M. Remokant Pattanaik Is Msc (Defence Studies) and MPhIll Mr, Ramakant Patianalk attended
the National Deferice Acadefny, os well os the Defence Services Staff College, Weilington,
Artny War College. Mhow and Natichal Defence College, New Delhi,

Y

Regd. Office; 501, Padma Palace, 86, Netin: Place, New Deihi-1
Coip. OMce: 3rd Floor, A-45 10 50, Pionisar Houias.%?o-‘le, Noida\zl;?g&'tlfgf)ahdia
Tel (EPABX): 51-11-306058500 Fax: 91-11-41810691
E-mail: infog@woridaolar.,in website: wew wardsolar.in
CIN: U15100D1.201 9P TC2E5455 e -



i e
L w-“,'j SOLARWORLD ENERGY '
ey GY SOLUTIONS PVT. LTD.

Mr Ramiokont Battandik Is the tormer Deputy Chief of the Naval Staff (DCNS} of indion Navy.
and former Deputy Chief of Integrated Cefence SiaffDCIDS). He was commissioned inio the

Indidn Navy on 18 January 1978, He retired as DENS of the indian Navy oni 315t Oclober 2015.

The Company hos received the consent eler In the Form DIR — 2 tumished by Mr. Ramakant
Paltanaik providing his consent to act as an independent director of the Company, the
declaration and the undertokings int the Form DIR - - contirming that hels nat disquoified under
Section 164{2] of the Companies Act kom acting as diractor of the Company, the disclosure
of infarest under Section 184 of the Companies Act in form MBP-1, declaration about iiting
the critefia of independance under section 149 of the Comparies Act and SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements] Reguiations, 2015 and the certificote issued by the:
Indian institute of Corporate Alffairs, in compliance with Rule 6 of tha Companies (Appeirtment
and Dualification of Diréctars) Rules. 2014 frorm Mr. Ramakant Pattondik.

Details of Mr. Ramakant Paitanaik as per the Secratarial Sfandard on Ganefal Meetings (352} is
given hereynden

| DIN - ) 10724949 ' j
A P SR et SRS SRR L ———— PO —

| Dole of 8irth | 28.10.1955 1
(Age) { {69 years) |
[Dole of st Appointment T TNA, T - h_—_“i
. on the Board \
i

]

TGudicafon® | o [aetence siudies), Mphil - |
Experise / experience in tuncilonal area T INAL - T T }
+ Terms and condiiions of 'Nown Execulive Independent Director "7]
re-appoiniment i

i
Remormaosoughtobapaidandthe (W 1
| remuneration jast drawn i ‘
“Nuraber ol shores held in the Company i T - |
Relationship with other Direcfors/ Mapager | NA. - ' I
| FKMP o
“No. of Board meelings held and affended | N |
dudng the year { _
O — e G sy S -t
Offier Direclomhip(s) NA. i

| T Y-S
Cammiliee-pasifion in other public [ L I
2y S 1) B M= P N == .
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The Board of the Diractors firmly believes that Mr. Ramakant Paitanalk witl bring immeénse value
on aécount of their stature and diversified. experience, ardd accordingly, recommends, hls
appoiniment, as Independent Directors of the Company for a ferm of five consecutive Years,

Trer relavant-documents are open for inspection by the membets af the Registered Office of
the: Company on alt working days, dufing business hours up fo the date of the Meefing.

Addifionally, coples of the relevant documents are available for inspaction ¢t the corporate
office of the Company and Wil also be made avallable of the Meeting. The. documents ore
also availabie for inspection electronicaly.

Pursuant to he provisions of Section 149, 152 and other doplicable pravisions of the Companias

Act, the approval of ‘the members of the Company & required 1g oppoind him o on
independsnt director.

None of the directors or managers o key managenial personnel of the Company or thelr
respective relatives are Interested in the resoiution.

The: Baard recammeands the sdid resolufion fo be passed as speciol resoluiion.

Pursuant to sechion 180{1}(c) of the Compuanies Act, 2013, If o company Intends o borow
funds, whre the money to be bomowed, together with the money diready borowed by the
company will excead the aggregode of ifs paid-ul shirer capifal, free resenves ond securities
premiurn, such bottowing will require approvdl of the members of the Company.

Pursuont fo the provisions of Section 180{1j{c) ond other dpplicable provisions of the
Comparies Act, 2013, and #he rules thereundsr; each as amended, the approval of the
members iy required fo increase the borrowdng iimit of the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company envisages-a raquitament .of funds in future: to support
the busihess operations of the Compdiny and accordi ingly. it s proposed to have the borowing
fimit upto Re. 500 Crores {Rupees Five Hundted Croras only).

Accordingly, the cansent of the Members is’ sought by way of special resoluffor set ouf in ttem
Ne., 9 of the accormponying Notice for hiaving the borowing limits be exténded up to Rs. 500
Crores {Rupees five Hundred Crores only}.

The relevant documents are open fof inspection by the members of the Registered Office of
fhe Company on all working days, during Business hours up to the ddte of ihe: Meeting.
Kcicitionally, coples of the relevant documéntt are available for inspeciioh at the corporate
office of the Company ard will alse be made avdilable ot the Meeting. The docurments are
cises availabie for inspectioh elsdironicaly.

None of the directors or managers or key managerial parsonnel of the Compdny or their
respective relatives are interested in the resolution.

The Baard recommends the said resolifion 1o be passed as a special resohsfior.
| memno. 10

/ in terms of the Fereign Exchange Managerment Act, 1999, s amended, fhe Foreign Exchange
Management {Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2019, os amended (the "FEMA Regulafions”}, and

Regd, Office: 501, Padma Palace, 86, Nehru Place, New Delti-110019, ndia.
Corp. Office: SMF!oof A-45 o 50, Pioneer House, Sec-16, Notda-201301 {U.P.) India
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the Consaidaten FDI Policy Circutar of 20, as arendad {together with the FEMA Reguiations
the "FEMA Laws"), the Nonsesident Thdians {“NRIs"} and Overseas Citizens of India ("OCE"},
fogether: can aequire dnd: hold on repatrialion basis. up to an oggregate imit of 10% of the:
paid up equity share copiial of an indion fsted company on g fully dilvted basts. The FEMA Lows
further provide that the limit of 10% con ke fuither increased up o 4%, by passing o special

resolution to that effect by the frermbers.and followed by necessary Hings with Reserve Bank of
ievelfor e1s rquired. under thie FEMA 1 aws, Considering the proposat of intendifg to get the equify
snares of the Conpany listed, The Bodrd may consider, subject to the dpproval of the mernbers
by way of a specigl resoiution, fo increase the foreign investment firmit of NRs and OCs,
tagether, to 24% of the paid up aquity share capital of the Company, pravided however, that
the sharehoiding of each NRi or OC! in the Comparty shalt not excead 5% .of the paid-ug equity

share capital on a fully dilvied basis-or such-ofher it a5 oy be stipulated under applcable
Tiw in sach case, from fime fo fime.

Mone ‘of the diractors or mandgers or key mdnogenial personnel of the Company of their
respective reiatives are inlerested in the resoluiion,

The Bogrd recommends the resolution rientioned at item no. 10 of the Nofice o be passed as
o special resolution

TEM NO. 11

Asper Section 186 of the Act read with rules framed theréunder. the Company is required ta

obiain the prior opprovat of the mermbers by way of o special resotufion for acquisition by way
of subscrption, purchose o otherwise, the secuities of any other body corporate exceeding
sixty per centof its paid-up share capiial, free reserves and securilies prermium account of one
hundred bercent of iis free resarves and securities oramium aceount, whichever i higher.

The cutrent loans and investments of the Company Ts dithough welt within the fimits specifiied
under the law; if wads thought expedient by the Soard'that as a measure of nchieving greater
financial iexibiify and to endable optimal financigh siructuang ard 1o keep suffictent saifeguard,
the said fimifs specified under Secfion 186 be increased 10 Rs. 1 000 Crores {Rupees One
Thovsanc Crores Only) with the aporoval of members

The: approvat of the members [s being sought by way of a special resolutieon:pursuant fo section
186 of the Act read with rules made thareunder, fo enable the Company 1o {ii ocauire by way
of subserpfion, purchase or otherwise, the secunties-of any other body corporate;. (i} give-any
loan fo any person or other body comorgte; {il} give any guaraniee of provide secisity In
connection with-¢ loan i ony other body aorporate of persor. exceading sy percent of ifs
paid-up copital. free reserves and securlties premium decount o one tiundred percent of ifs
free reserves and seciiifies premium account, whichever is higher,

None of fhe direciors or managers or key managsral personne!l of the Company or their
respective reigfives are interasted in the rasolution:

The Baard féenmmands. the resalution mentioned of iter no. 11 of the Noflce fo be passed 115
o speciol resolution.

MEM NO. 12 213

As per the applicable provigons of the Componies Act. 2013 raad. with Companies (Cost
Records and Audif} Rules, 2014, trie Company is required o appdint cost duditor. The 8pord of
Directorns {ihe 'Board'} of the Company, appeinted /s MM@Associates [Reg. No. 000454), the
Cost Accountant in prachics), ds Cost Audiiors to conduct the audit of cost records. of the

| | o
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Company for the finoncicl year 2073-74. Mis MM@AsOCiates have ako been re-appointed as
Cost Audlitors to conduct the audit of cost records of the Company for the financial year 2024
25100,

Pursuant to the pravisions of Section H8.and other applicable provisions of e Comganies Act,
2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Audiors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration
priyoble fo-the Cost Auditors, approved By the Roard has to be rafified bty e members of the
Compdny. Accordingly, consent of the mernbers is kelng sought by way of an ordinary
resolution for ratification of the rermuneralion of the Cest Audditors for the financict yeor 2023-24
g 2024-25,

Nore of the Directars and Key Manogerial Perscnnel of the Company or ther raspective
relatives, ore In any way concemed or interestad, financially or otrerwise, in the resclution set
out af Hem Nos. 12 agnrd 13,

The Boord cormmends the resolution ot ftem No. 12 andd 13 for approval of the Members as an
ordinary resolulion.

ITEM NO.14 & 15

Equity based compensation Is considered as an infegral part of empioyse compensation
across seclons which enables dfighment of personel godalsof the employees with organizational
objectives. Equity bosed compensation schemas ore an effeciive ool 1o reward: the
employees and key ialents working with Company orifs subsictiary or holding cormpany.

Your Company. believes that equity-bosed compensaiion schemes. are on: affective ool 1o
reward the talents working with ihe Company and/or subsidliary cormpanyfies) and/ or Holding
Company. With a view o reotivate employees for their coritriution fo the corporate growh, fo
Cradgte an employee ownership culture and fo refain hem for ensuring sustained growih, your
Company intends fe implement dn employee stock option scheme namely ‘Solarworld
Empioyee Stock Opfion Plan 2024' (“ESOP 2024"/ “Scheme"]. The proposed Scheme Is
frepared in alighmient with the provisions of the Secuities and Fxchange Board of Indin {Share
Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equily] Regulaficns, 2021 {"$BES. Regulations”} in case
Company wishigs to st its shans on recognize stock excheange.

Accordingly, the Boaord of Direttors of the Company at their meefings held on 1609.2024 had
‘approved the Infroduction of the Scheme, subject fo your approval

As per the provisions of Section 42({1){b) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of the
Companies {Share Capital and Debentures] Rules, 2014, the Implementation of employee stock
oplion. scheme requires prior approvat of the sharsholders by woy of special ‘resofution,
Accoreingly, the appravat of shareholders s being sought for implermentation of ESCP 2024.

Ins terms of Sechion 62{1}{b} ¢t the Cornpanies Ach, 201'3_fec:d with Rule 12 of the Companies
{Shaore Capiial and Oebentures) Rules 2014, the salient teatures of the Scherme are given as
undler:

Briet Descripion of the Scheme: _

Keeéping the view of aforesaid objectives, the Scheme confempiaies grant of smplovee stock
opfions ("Opllon”) to fhe efigible employses of the: Company and/or-subsidiery company and/
or Holding' compriny of the Company, Affer vesting of Cofions. the eligible emplayess eam a
fght, but not ohiligation, 1o exercise the vested Options within. the exercise period and obiain
equily shares of the Company subject fo poyment of exercise price and saiisfoaction of any tax
obfigation arfsing theteon.

Regd. Office: 501, Padma Palace, 86, Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019, India
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The Gﬁmmitteﬁqhni_i ndmin'is%er the Schemeé. Al auastions nffin’rerprefo‘iinn of the 'Sc-'-:hﬂme shysfl
be determined by the Committes and such determinaton shall be final ond binding upon all
personis having an infetest in the Scheme,

The loial-number of stock opiiens to be granted:

A fotol of 1045000 (Ten Lokhs dnd Sixly Five Thousand) Dptions. wawkd be nvaiiable for being
granted 1o fhe eligitle employess of the Company under the Scheme. Each Option when
exercked would be converied into one equity share (“Share”™) of fuce vaiue of Rs. {5]/- (Rupees
Fiva Oniy} flly paic-Up. '

An Option expires, lapses of becomes Un-exercisable due to ary regson, if shall be hrought
tinck o the Oplions réserve ¢pacified obove and shat bacorne avallable for kufure Gronts,

subject to compliance with the provisiors of the applicable laws,

in case of any corporate action(s) such os rghls lssues, bonus ssues, merger and sale of
division etc., ¥ any addifional Oplions are granted of equity shares are issued by the Company,
fo fhe graniees for the purpose of making a falr and reasonable adjusiment to the Oplions
granted earlier, the celiing of folal number of Qpfions and equily shares specified above shall
‘be deemed o be Increased to the extent of such addifional Options granted ot equity shares
issued. ' '

ideniification of classes of éemployses enfiled to pariicipate in the Employess Slock Oplion
Scheme:
o parmanent employee of the Company wha has heer warking in Indla or outside Indies: or
& Director of the company, whether a whole-fime directol ornot of _ _
an-employee as defined In clouse {af or (b} of a supsidicry, In india or oulside indig, or of @
holding company of the company’

daes not include
an employee who Is.a profmoteror o persen belonging 1o the promaeter group, oF
a Director who elfther Rimself or fhrough his relative or through any body comorate, directly or

inclirectly, holds more thar 10% (ten percent] of the oulstanding equity shares of the Sompany;
or
an ndspendant Direcior.

The opptaisal process for defenmilning fhe eligibiiy of emplaoyees to fhe Employees Sfock
Opfion S¢heme: _ _
Appraisal progess for determining the: efigibihty of the amployees will be based on designation,
period of service, petformance finked porameters such as work performance and such other
eriteria s may be defermined by the Committee atifs sole discretion, from fime o fime:

. The requlréivents of vesting and period of vesting:

Options granted ynder the Scheme shal vest not eorler ‘than minimum Vesting Petad of 1
{one) year and nat later than maximum Vesting Period of 4 (Four) yeats from the Grant Date.

The Commitlee dt ifs disoretion may Grant Qptlen specifying Vesting Periodd ranging from
minimum ang maximum period ds ofore stated.

Frovided fuiifier that in the event of death or Permanent incapacity. five minimum Vesting
Perdod of 1 {one} yeor shalt not be applicable and in such instances, the Options shall Vst on
the dote of death or Permhanent Incapacliy, as the case may be.

Frovided that in case where Options are granied by the Company under the Scheme in isu of

Y

- =

17

=7 /| Fegd, Office: 501, Padma Palace, 86, Nehru Place, New Dalhi-1 10019
- fflorp. Office: 3rd Floor, A-45 to 50, Pionéer House, Sec-18, NMT:&M ('LIJ'..S; Incha
P Tel (EPABX): 91-11-30805500 Fax: 81-11-41819891
E-mwiil: infe@@woridsolarin website: www worldsoiar.in
CIN: U1 B100DL201 APTC 266455




L1 3
\‘_“”\z",‘f) SOLARWORLD ENERGY SOLUTIONS PVT. LTD.

g}

h)

f}

N

k)

Ontion held by a parson undér a similar Seheme in another company {*Transféror Compony™
which has merged or amalgarnated with the Company, the period diring which the Oplion
granted by the Transteror Company were held by him shalf be adjusted agiairst the minlmom
Vesting Period required under this Sub-clause.

Vesting of Opfians would be- subject to confinued empioyment with the Company or its
Subsidiary Company or Holding Campdny as on e date of Veshing and thus the Options

would Vest essentialty on passage of ime and achievernent of Vesting Conditions, if cny.

The maximum perdod within which the oplions shaii be vested:
The Qpians granted shall be vested not mare than 4 (Four) years from the dede of grant of such
Opitions.

The axercise price or the Sormulg for-apiving of the same: o
The Exercise Price per Option shdltbe the face valug of the Share as on the grant date.

The exercise pariad anid process of exercise:

The Exercise Period In respect of the Vesied Opiion shail be subject fo o maxdmum perod of §
{Five) yewrs fromi the date of Vesting of Opflons. The Graniees can exercise alf or pat of the
Vested Opfions within the Exercise Perod.

The tock-in perlod, i any: ' _

The shares Issued vpon exercise of Optians shall be frisely fransferable and shall net be subject
to any lock-in periad restriction diter such lisue exXcept s reduired under the applicable fows.

The maximum number of Optlons o be gronted per employee and In aggregdte:

The maxdmum number of Oplions under Scheme that may be granted fa sgeh Emiployee per
Grant and'inaggregate shall not exceed 10,645,000 [Ten Lakhs and Sixly Rve Thausand) Options
at the time of Grant of Optioh.

The method which he company shafl use fo valoe tfs Opfions: |
The: Cornpany shall adlopt *falr value methicd" for valuation of Opions o any ofher method as

o in the aocounting sfandardf guidance note, as dpplicable, nofiflsd by compsatert

authotfies from time to time.

The conditions under which Opficn vested in employees moy Japse: _
The vested Options shall igpse [ cose of fermingtion of employment due fo cause -or due fo
breach of Compaty policies or the terms of employment. Further, imespeciive of employment
stotus, i case vested Options are hot exercised within the prescribed exorcise perod, then
sych vasted Options shall fapse,

m} The specified ime pedod within which fhe employee shall exerciso the vested Oplians In the

T

| Resanatien { AllThe Vesied Opforsas on

event of a propused ferminalion of employment or resignation of employee:
Exercisability of the Vested Qptions sholl be as under:

P s Events of Vested Opiions

No. Separation Unvested Oplions

Al Unvested Options as on date
, Tetmination date of resignation or of resignation ¢f terminafion
1 | {other than due | temviination shall be ' stiall stand eanceled with
/| [toMisconduct] | exerciscble by the Option | effect from dette of such

. Grantes befofe histher iast rasignation/ termination. i
worldng day with the !

B —— it et
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i \ Carnpany . 1 i
| Separation/ | Allthe Vested Options shall | All the Unvested Options shall
2 Teminotion due | siand cancelled with effect stand cancelled with effect
to-Misconduct from fhe dateof such from the date of such
fermination. termination. '
| Refirement All the Vested Options as on
‘:ﬁ:f;:ﬁfgf;::rgggﬂ B¢ | AliUnvested Opfions as on the
Groree within fhie bxercise. | dote of Refrementwoud
| Petiod. confifue fo Vest In ascordonce
i; ' with the anginal vesting
; schadules sven afterthe
o | ' Refirernent unless ofherwise
1 3 | , datermined by the Committee
| ! ingecordance with the
5 | | Company's Policies and
i providons of the: then prevaling 1
! Appicdbie Law. Such Vested
1 | Options shall be exercisable
| within 12 {Twelve} months from
! thie date of such Vesting:
}_- Death ' ; All the Vestea Opfons ason | Al the Unvested Ophons as on |
| date of dedih shal be gdite af death shiol vest
| _' ‘exercisable by the legal heir/ | Immedlately in the Option _
- tiomines of such deceased Granlee's nominee of legal heir |
| 4 | Option Grantes within 12 - and can be exercisanle in the
. | (Twelve) months from the ‘marniner defined for Yested.
, dofe of Dedih of the-Option | Optidns.
: | Giantee or Exercise Period.
] whichever js later.
; i - .
1’ | permonent Al Vested Oplions may be | All the Unvested Options as on
tncapachy exercised by the Option date of incuring of such
. Grantee, immedialely offer, | incopdcily. shoili vest -
P byt in no-event kiler han'12 | iImmediately with effect from
P 7o {Twelve) manihs from fhe such event to tha Oplion '
! date of such incapacity of Grantes and-can be exercised ‘
‘ Exercise Pefiod, whicheveris | in the same mannet os defined
ictter. for the Vested Options..
I = or=s as R .. - . i .
’!- Transfer /- | Brercise Pafiod to remainthe | Vesting schedule cme Exercise
| deputation fom/ | stitie GS e e ferme ol the | Perod to reralh sams as e
: 4o the Subsidiary | Gronf, the terms of the Grant.
; and Holding 1in cose of subsedguent’ | ncose of subsequent
4 1 Companyand | seporation, rectment of i separation, treatrient of
/ Post Usting glse | Optionsshall beas perthe | Options shalt be as per the
19/ 1\ |includes Group | applicable creumstance | applicable crcumstance
. ol | and Assoclate | menfioned i thisfable. U mertioned in ihis fabie.
N el |
\\\‘;\ % % A Other Reasons The Comrmities shal decide | AltUnvested Optionson the
So= | 7 | apartfrom those | whetherthe Vested Options | date of such fermingtion shiall
B,\/ | menfioned can be pxercised by the stand cancelled uniess i
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[ above | Oplion Grantee or nch, and | atherwie raqulred by
i : such decision shall be fing, | Applicable tows

- PR S

n} A stalement to the effact that the company shall comply with the applicable accouniing

the Cofmpany shall cortply with the disclosure and the ocoounting policies os prescrbbed under

prevaling accounting guldetines/ standards,

A draoft Copy of the Scheme s avaliable for inspection of fhe Compdny’s Registered office

during offictal hours o all working days,

None of the Directors, of Key Mdntgerial Personnet of the Company and thelr relatives ore in
any way, concemned or inferasted in these resolutions, except fo the exient of the Options that
gy be offered to them under the Scheme.

In light of above, you dre requested fo accord your approval fo the Special Resolution os set
outin Agenda fferm no. 14 and 15 of the accompanying nofice,

Director
Ditkt: 05115384 o _
R-13, Nehru Enclave, Kolkafl, New Delhi-110019

Date: 16.09.2024
Place: New Dathi
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[Pursuont to Section | 05(6} of the Comparnies Act, 2013 and Rule 19{3} of the Companies
{Management and Admirdstration) Rules, 2014}

CIN: U1 510001201 3PTC 255455
Narme of the Compony: Selanwvorla Energy Solutions Private Lmited
Registered office Address: 501, Padma Palace, 86, Nehry Place, New Delhi-110 019

Nome of the Member(s}:
Registered address:

E-mail id:

Folio No/ Clint id: ,

1 P 0; I

WWe e being the member of the Solarworld Energy Solutions Limited
holding........ovinvvninn, shares, hereby appoint

1. Name:
Addrass:
E-rnail idd;
Sigharture: ..., or faling him

2Name:
Address:
Frmcstl Wt
Signature: ........... ,

Gs my/our proxy to attend and vote [orr a pol) for me/us and on my/our behalf ot 11 Annuat
General Meeting of the mémbers of the Company, fo be heid on Wednesday, 18" September
2024 at 11:00 AM, ot 501, Padma Palace, 86, Nehru Place, New Dethi-110 019 and ot any
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

1. To consider and adopt the qudited Financial Statements (Standolone and Consofidated)
ot the Company for the financial vear ended 31st March 2024 together with the report of
the Board of directors and the Auditers therson.

2. 1o re-appoint § S Kothar Mehta & Co LLP, Chartered accountonts (FRN 000756n/n5004413,
as joint statutory auditors of the Company and to fix their remuneration thereof,

3. Regularization of Additional Directar, Mr, Sushit Kumar Jain {DIN 00002069} os directer of the

Company.

Change of dasignation of Mr. Mangat Chand Telfia {DIN: 002186} from executive director

fo non-executive non-independent director of the Cornpany.

Appcintrment of Mr. Kartik Teltia (DIN 044 10105) as Managing Direcior of the Company.

Appointment of Mr. Rishabh Jain {DIN 05115384) as Whale-Time Director of the Company.

Appointment of Ms. Rini Chordia (DIN 07285481} as independent Director of the Company.,

Appoiniment of Mr. Ramakant Pattanaik (DN 10724949} as Independent Director of the

Company.

?. Approval of borrowing limits under Section 180{1}(c] of the Companies Act, 2013.

10, Increase in investment lirmits for non-resicent indians and overseas citizens of India.

1. To make investments, give loans, guarantees ond securily in excess of limits specified under
section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

&

®No o

2 12. Rafification of remuneration of Cost Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-
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13, Ratification of remunaration of Cost auckitors of the Campany for the Fnancial Year 2024-
25.

14. To consider and approve ‘Solarworld Empioye® Stock Option Plan 2024'.

15. To condder and approve grant of Employee Stock Oplions fo the Employees of Subsidiary
Companylies) or Holding Company of the Company under ‘Solarworld Energy Stock
Option Plan 2024".

l ;

|
| Affix Revenue 1
|

|

pr——

Stamp

{

Signed s .. day of 2024

e

Signoture of Shareholder

Signature of Proxy hotder(s)

Note: This form of proxy in order fo be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
registered office of the Company, not less then 48 hours before the commencement of the

Meefing.
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SOLARWORLD ENERGY SOLUTIONS PVT. LTD.

AYTENDANCE SiIP
CIN: U1 5100DL201 3PTC255455
Name of the Company: Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
Registered office Address: 501, Padma Palace, 86, Nehns Place, New Delhi-110019

E Folio No.

| Name of first named Member/Proxy/Authorised |
'E' Represenfative e

Name of Joint Member(s], fany:
No.ofsharesheld

S e S

I/ we cerlify that Ywe am/are member {s)/proxy for the member(s} of the Company.

Hwe hereby record my/aur oresence of the 110 Annual General Meating of the Cormpany
being held on Wednesday, 18" Septerber 2024 at 11:00 AM. at 501, Fadma Palace, 86, Nehru
Fioce, New Delthi-110 019 and at any adjournment thereocf.

Signature of first holder/proxy/ Authonzed Representalive
Sigmexdd thig day of 2024,

Note.
1. Flease fill this aftendance sfip and hand it over of the enfrance of the hall,
2. Only shareholders of the Company and/or their proxy will be ollowed fo aftend the Meeting.
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SOLARWORLD ENERGY SOLUTIONS PVT. LTD.

BOARD'S REPORT
Dear Members,
Your directors are pleased to present the 11t Annual Report on the business and operations
of the Company along with the Company's Audited Financial Statements for the financial
year ended 315t March 2024,

FINANCIAL RESULTS AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Company's financial performance, for the year ended 315t March 2024 is summarized as

below:

Amount in Rs. {In Millions)
Particulars Financial Year 2023-24 Financial Year 2022-23
Total ncome 5055.10 2,350.52
Total Expenses 4,400.68 2,171.29
Profit /{loss)}before Tax 654,42 179.23
Tox Expenses 167.41 44.95
Profit / (Loss) atter Tax 487.01 134.28
Earnings per share {Basic & Diluted) 7.53 2.08

STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS

The Company underfakes engineering, procurement and construction business, The ongeing
confracts with customers are for solar utility project. The type of work in these contracts
involve construction, engineering, designing. supply of materials, development of system,
installation, project management, operations and maintenance etc. The Company derives its
revenue from sale of goods, construction and project related activily, operation and
maintenance and other services. During the current financial year, the Company eamed
totalincome of Rs. 5,055,10 million as against Rs. 2,350.52 millicn of previous financial year, The
Company eamned a profit of Rs. 487.01 milion while in previous year the profit of the
Company after tax was Rs. 134.28 miillion. This shows significant growth in the business of the
Company.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

There has been no change in the nature of the business of the Company during the financial
yeor under review.

WEB-LINK OF ANNUAL RETURN

The Company is having website i.e. www.worldsolarin and the Annual Return of Company
has disseminated on such o website in the investors section. A link of the same is given below:

worldsolar.infinvestors.
g
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SOLARWORLD ENERGY SOLUTIONS PVT. LTD.

TRANSFER TO RESERVE

The entire profit of Rs, 487.01 million for the current financial year is kept in retained eamings.
DIVIDEND
No dividend has been recommended for the Cumrent financial year.

CHANGES IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the yeor under review, there was no change in the Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up
share Capital of the Company. During the year under review, the Company has not issued
any shares. The Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights. It has neither
issued employee stock options nor sweat equity shares and does not have any scheme to
fund its employees to purchase the shares of the Company. There was no buyback of shares
of the Company.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review, Mr. Sushil Kumar Jain {DIN 00002049} was appointed as
additional director of the Company on 26 March 2024. Mr. Sushil Kumar Jain is proposed to
be regularised as director of the Company in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

Further, Ms. Aastha Gupta (DIN10335621) and Ms. Samiksha Jain (DIN 10347781} were
appointed as additional directors of the Company on 24t March 2024 who resigned from
their respective offices of directors with effect from 274 June 2024,

There were no key managerial personnel of the Compuany during the financial year under
review. However, Ms. Varsha Bhar was appointed as company secretary of the Company
and Mr. Mukut Goyal was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect
from 22nd August 2024.

BOARD MEETINGS

During the year under review, 12 {Twelve) Board Meetings were convened and held.

COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
The Company has complied with the provisions of secretarial standards during the financial
year under review.,

ASSOCIATES COMPANIES, JOINT VENTURE AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES INCLUDING
HIGHLIGHTS OF PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURES AND THEIR
CONTRIBUTION TO THE OVERALL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY DURING THE PERIOD UNDER
REPORT

During the year under -review,_ the following are the Subsidiary/Joint venture/Associctes
Company of the Company:

«
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SOLARWORLD ENERGY SOLUTIONS PVT, LTD.

$.No. | Name of the Company Subsidiary/Joint | % of
Vanture/Associates Holding
1. Ortusun Renewable Power Private Limited Subsidiary Company 99.99
2. Pioneer Global Enterprises Private Limited Associate Company 20%
3. Futurelife Foods Private Limited Joint Venture 25%
4. *Kehan Solarwond Private Limited Subsidiary Company 51%
5. *Danton Power Private Limited Subsidiary Company 5%
. Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Joint Venture 24%
Limited

* Kehan Solarworld Private Limited and Danion Power FPrivate Limited are subsidiary
companies as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 but considered as joint ventures
in the consalidated financials prepared as per the IndAS.

During the year under review, the no company ceased to be subsidiary, joint venture or
associate company of the Company,

During the year under review, the following companies have become the subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures:

Orfusun Renewable Power Private Limited {Subsidiary} {w.e.f 10,01.2024)

The highlights of the Peformance of subsidiaries, joint venture, and associates:

Ortusun Renewable Power Private Limited

Rs. (in Lakhs)
Particulars Financicd Year 2023-24
Total Income NIL
Total Expenses 22.05 7 ,:_ ':“"5-;\\?\
Profit /{loss)before Tax (22.05) / T
Tax Expenses - )

P4 P “—-—.:“/
A / {, -
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Profit / {Loss) after Tax

(22.05)

Pioneer Global Enterprises Private Limited

Rs. (In Thousand)
Particulars Financial Year 2023-24 Financial Year 2022-23
Total Income 2,028.54 1,273.86
Total Expenses 2,191.26 1.066.73
Profit /{loss)before Tax (162.72) 207.13
Tax Expenses (83.03) 32.06
Profit / {Loss) after Tax (79.69) 175.07

Fulurelife Foods Privale Limited

Rs. {In Lakhs)

Particulars Financial Year 2023-24 Financiol Year 2022-23
Total Income 261.48 273.82
Total Expenses 374.59 37274
Profit /(loss)betfore Tax (115.11) {98.92)
| Tax Expenses - .
Profit / (Loss) affer Tax (115.11) {98.92)

Kehan Solarworld Private Limited

Rs. (In Lakhs)

Particulars Financial Year 2023-24 Financial Year 2022.23

Total Income 77,44 90.92
Total Expenses 49.05 S$7.10
Profit /{loss)before Tax 28.38 33.83
Tax Expenses 7.67 .47
Profit / {Loss) after Tax 20.77 24,35

Danton Power Privale Limited

e I y : ;.,‘-.I
| |
.ll e

\\

Rs. {In Lakhs)

%) b
N
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Particulars Financial Year 2023-24 Financial Year 2022-23

Total Income 3.615.80 2,078.97
Total Expenses 3,925.95 2,021.19
Profit /{loss)befere Tax (310.15)| 57.78
Tax Expenses {75.39) (1.05)
Profit / {Loss) aiter Tax (234.74) | 58.83

Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Limited

Rs. (In Lakhs)

Particulars Financial Year 2023-24 Financial Year 2022-23
Total Income 12850.77 9864.97
Total Expenses 11486.21 8981.29
Profit /(loss)before Tax 13é64.56 883.68
| Tox Expenses 356.51 247.60
Profit / {Loss) after Tax 1008.04 §34.08

QCriusun Renewable Power Private Limited became the subsidiary company of the Company
w.e.f. 10" January 2024.

Their contribution in overdall performance of the Company

The confribution of the aforesaid subsidiary, associate and joint venture companies in the
overall performance of the Company is reflected in the consolidated financial statement of
the Company for the financial year ended 313t March 2024,

A statement containing the salient features of the financial statements of the Subsidiaries,

Joint Ventures and Associates of the Company in Form AQC-1, as required under the
Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended, is annexed herewith as Annexure 1.

DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits falling under the provisions of the Section 73 of
the Companies Act 2013 read with Companies [Acceptance of Depaosils) Rule, 2014 and
there are no unpaid or overdue deposits during the year under review.

LOAN FROM DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

During the pericd under review the Company has obtained loan from the Director’s and ftheir
relatives. The details of the same has been given in the financial statements and notes
thereto.

«
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The consent of the directors and their relatives have given declaration that the loan provided
by them are from their owned found not from the bomrowed fund.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The provisions of section 204 relating to secretarial audit were not applicable fo the
Company during the financial year under review,

STATUTORY AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT

Shareholders have duly appoeinted M/s. D A R P N and Company, Chartered Accountants
{Firm Registration No. 016790C) as statutory auditor of the Company in previous AGM held on
29t September 2022 to hold office fill ensuing Annual General Meeting to be held in year
2027 for a term of five years,

S S Kothari Mehta & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants {(FRN 0007546N/N500441}, were also
appointed as the auditor of the Company whose tenure is going to expire after the
conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company. The Board recommends
the re-appointment of S S Kothari Mehta & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants as statutory
auditor of the Company in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company from the
conclusion of ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company till the conclusion of 1éh
Annual General Meeting of the Company.

EXPLANATIONS OR COMMENTS BY THE BOARD ON EVERY QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION OR
ADVERSE REMARK OR DISCLAIMER MADE BY THE STATUTORY AUDITOR IN THEIR REPORT

There are no gqualifications, reservations or adverse remarks in the Audit Report that may call
for any explanation from the Directors. The observations of the Statutory Auditors in their
report, read together with the noles on Accounts, are self- explanatory, and therefore, in the
opinion of the Directors, do not call for any further explanation.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS UNDER SECTION 143 (12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT. 2013

The Statutory Auditors in their audit report for the Financial Year ended on 31.03.2024 -have
not reported any fraud covered under sub section 12 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS AND COST AUDIT

In terms of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') read with the Companies
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Company is required to maintain cost records.
Further, the cost audit is also required to be carried out on the cost records of the Company.
For the same, the Board of Directors had appointed M/s MM@Associates [Reg. No. 000454},
Cost Accountants in practice as cost auditors of the Company.

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The provisions of section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 relafing to the appointment of
independent directors were not applicable to the Company during the financial year under
revie\‘hj. .
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SOLARWORLD ENERGY SOLUTIONS PVT. LTD.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The provisions of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to Nomination and
Remuneration Committee were not applicable to the Company during the financial year
under review.

CONSERVATICN OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
& QUTGO

Information pursuant to Section 134{3){m} of the Companies Act, 2013 read with sub rule 3 of
Rule 8 of the Companies {Accounts} Rules, 2014 regarding conservation of energy,
technelogy absorption and foreign exchange earnings and ocutgo is as follows:-

a) Conservation of Energy:

A statement containing the information as per Section 134 {3) {m) of the Companies Act,
2013 is not required to be given as Company is net engaged in any manufacturing activities.

b} Technology absorption:
Not required to be given as the Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activities.
c¢) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Oulgo:

During the year foreign exchange outgo of the Company is Rs. 532.34 milllion There has been
no foreign exchange earnings during the year under consideration.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

There were no material changes and commitments atfeciing the financial position of the
Company during the period between 15t April 2024 and the date of the Board's Report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 184 OF THE ACT

During the period under review the Company has provided Loans, guarantee, and
Investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. The detdils of the same has been
given in the financial statements and notes thereto,

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the year under review the Company has entered into Related Party Transactions in the
ordinary course of business and on arm length basis. Therefore, the provisions of Section 188
of the Companies Act, 2013 were not applicable. Details of transactions made with related
parties during the year under review is annexed hereto as ‘Annexure-2' and forms part of this
report,

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE BOARD PERFORMANCE, PERFORMANCE OF ITS COMMITTEE AND
ITS DIRECTORS
<

£ o ~
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SOLARWORLD ENERGY SOLUTIONS PVT. LTD.

The provisions of section 134{3){p] of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to annual evaluation
of the performance of the Board, its Committees and of individual Directors are not
applicable to the Company.

CORPORATE SCCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In accordance with the requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules
made thereunder, corporate social responsikility is applicable to the Company. However,
since the amount to be spend on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) was less than Rs. 50
lakhs therefore, the Company was hot required to constitute the Corporate Social
Responsibility {CSR) Committee to take requisite steps required under the Companies Act,
2013. The Annual Report on CSR activities is given at ‘Annexure-3’,

THE DETAILS ABOUT THE POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES TAKEN DURING THE YEAR

During the financial year under review, the Company formulated its Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) policy indicating the activities 1o be undertaken by the Company. As per
the CSR Policy of the Company, the Company will undertake CSR activities provided in
Schedule Vil of the Companies Act, 2013.

DETAILS OF ESTABELISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM FOR MRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES

The proviso to Section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 were not applicable to the
Company during the financial year under review.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company does not have any Risk Management Policy as the elements of Risk
threatening the Company's existence are very minimal.

DETAILS OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Board has in place adequate internal financial control systerms and such internal financial
control systems have been operating effectively.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 as amended, were not applicable to the
Company during the financial year under review.

REPORT ON SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

As required by the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act, 2013, the Company has formulated and implemented a policy on prevention
of sexual harassment at workplace with @ mechanism of lodging complaints. The Company
has duly consfituted the Internal Complaint Committee under the said Act. During the year
under review, no complaints were reported 1o the Board.

<
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DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

To the best of our knowledge, the Company has not received any such order from the
regulator(s} or court{s) or tribunal{s} during the yeor under review which may impact the
going concern status and company's operations in future.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Your Directors hereby confirm that;

i. In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31+ March 2024 the
applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures.

ii. the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affdirs of your Company as on 315t March 2024 and of the profit of
the Company for the year ended on 315t March 2024,

it. The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act and rules
made there under, as amended for safeguarding the assets of your Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other iregularifies.

iv. The directors had prepared the annual accounts for financial year ended 313 March 2024
on a going concern basis.

v. The Directors had laid down internal financial controls 1o be followed by the company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

vi. The directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with provisions of all
applicable iaws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

DETAILS OF APPLICATIONS UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2014

There is no application made or any proceedings pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the financial year 2023-24.

THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE-
TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF.

Not Applicable
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CIN: U15100DL201IPTC255455
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SOLARWORLD ENERGY SOLUTIONS PVT. LTD.

Annexure-2
form No. AOC-2
[Pursuart to clause [h} of sub-seiclion (3] of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8{2} of the
Cornpanies {Accounts} Rules, 2014}

Form tor disclosure of parliculars of contracis/anmangements entared Info by the compony with
retafed paries refemed te in sub-section {1} of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 Including
cerlain arms length fransacflons under third proviso thereto,

1. Detloils of contracts or arrangements or ransactions not af arm's length basis: Not Applicable

T Siﬂ"&f'rm“m;u“ﬁrs !"D:ic-lﬂﬁ[_'n'_ansa}:n_m_ Bl
N " Name(s} of the related parly and nature of relationship | I
i

2 Nature of contracts/arangements/transactions f

l 3 i Duration of the conﬂacgmangementsﬁmnmcﬁons {

4 } Safient terms of the confrach or amongements or |

| . transactions including the value. it any

5™ | Jusfification for enterng into such .contracts or
i arrengernents or fransactions !

|
|
| SRS Sv— |

I
16, i Datefst of cpproval by the Board

E_If__" | Amount paid s advances, ifany i
'8 | Dale on which the spacial resolution was passed_in__! - o
| general meeting as required under first proviso fo section |

| 188

IR S DU N

]
'
!
i
1

Z. Delails of maferal confrects or arrangement or fronsactions ot arm's length basis: Not
Applicable

[§No. | Peyticulars Detalls of Transaction
%"i_“_ | Name of Related Porty I
}5_ | Reletionship
S— | [ — —— - S |
; 3 Neture of confract !
i - S S UV T S
4 * | Duration of Cantract [ !
5 . DMIGbpraval_by the Boatd T i
. T ! . ==
R
(3 A
(& NEW 3&
= \ DELHI =
Regd. Office: 501, Padma Palace, 88, Netru Place, New Delhi 110019, Incia \‘f%; " A
Corp. Office: 3rd Flacr, A5 to 50, Pioneer House, Sec-16, Nokia-201301 (U.P.) India O "V /
Teol (EPABX): 51-11-30603500 Fax: §1-11-41619691 ' i_,_./

E-mait: info@worldsolarin webslte: wwawworldsoigrin
GIN: U1 3100DL 201 IPTC 2654585




SOLARWORLD ENERGY SOLUTIONS PVT. LTD.

(& [ AmouniPdidas Advance T ]
|

- Ar— | —— . R A R ——— et PN S p—— - s

[ 7 |t Safient tarms of contract/ arangement/ fransactions

For and on bohal of Sclarworid Energy Solulions Private Umited

For Solarworid ‘ans Pyt Lid. For Solarworld Energy Soksions Pvt. Lid.
4 b

—
Kartik TettiaDIEC "~ i Signatory risr UERCHRfuthorised Signatory
Cirector Director

DiN; 06610105 DIN: 85115384

C-31, Sector-47. Noida, Gautarm Budh R-13, Nehm Enclave. Kalkajl, New Dethi-
Nagar-201303 110019

Dake: 16.09.2024
Fiace: New Dethf

Regd. Office: 501, Padma Palace, 86, Nehru Place, New Delhi-110018, india
Corp. Office: 3rd Floor, A4S to 50, Pionesr House, Sec-16, Noida-201301 (L.P.) India
Tel (EPABXY: 91-+11-30605500 Fax: 81-11-416196%

E-mail: info@worldsolar.in website: ywwy worldsolar in
CIN: U151T00DL201IPTCI55455



N 6 Total amount spent for the Financial Year [{a)+Hb)+(c)}: &s.14,01,300/-

i
SOLARWORLD

NMEXURE-3

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES IN THE BOARD'S
REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-2024

1. A brief autine on the CSR policy of the Compoany

The main objective of TSR poiicy is to make CSR ¢ key business process for sustainable
development of the society. The Company willactas a goad corporate citizen and aims at
suppiementing the role of Government in enhancing the welfare measures of the society
within the framework of is policy. The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy of the
Company, as approved by the Board of Directors is avalkible on the Company's website of
www . warldsolar.in,

2. Composition of CSR committee:- The amount o be spent by company does not exceed fitly
lokh rupees, Therefore Ihe requirermnent of constitute CSR Commitiee shali not be appiicable
oh the Company. further the functions of such Committee has been discharged by
the Board of Directors of such compony.

'S | Name | Designation / Nature | No. of meetings of CSR No. of meefings
i No. | of of Directorship | Committee heid during the | of CSR
Blrector t yeaf commiltee |

{during the tenure of the | altended I

| respactive member) during the yeor I

— __w._. : SN SR ;.‘ _..:_]

3. The web-link where Composition of CSR commiltee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved
by the boaord are disclosed on the website of the company www.worldsolar.in.

4. The executive summary along with web-iink(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried
out in pursuance of subarule (3} of rule 8, if cpplicable:

The impact assessment s not applicable to the company.

| S.No._

| pariculor

! - ~ Amount (in Rs.)
L e e J
5. &) Amount spent on CSR Projects {both Ongoing Project and ather than Ongoing Project).:

Rs.14,01,300/-

\ b} Amount spent in Administrative overheads.: NIE
\.‘\ ‘..;.lll
\ :] Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable.: NIE
//

/

1(_.\»-
AL
\ pe —
/ Regd. Office: 501, Padma Palace, 86, Nehru Place, New Dethi-110019, india
Corp, Offlce: 3rd Floor, A-45 to 50, Pioneer House, Sec-16, Noida-201301 (U.F.) India
Tel (EPABX): 91-11-30608500 Fax: 91-11-4 1619681
E-mail: info@worldsolar.in wabsite: wewworldsolar.in



d} CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

me Amount Spent i Amount Unspent {in Bs.) !
1]
ot the Financial Year] Total Amount transterred | Amount dransferred 1o any fund specmed
{in Rs.} 1o Unspent CSR Account junder Schedule Vit as per second prowsm
| as per sechion 135{4}. ' to seclion 135{(5}.
t [P ————————— - - [ N PR e e b it i
Amouw? Dcra of thzme of the Amounf |Duie of fransfer.
i ! | tanster. © Fund :
YY" T - 1 PM Cores | 14.800/- | 14/09/2024
! i | Fund ' i
e} Excess amount for set-off, if any:
5L No. “_’% Pnrﬁculur N M'_m:‘ ég_aoun‘l {in‘RS) Bl
i Tiwo percent of average net profit of 1he.1 TR0 3007 |
] | company Os per section 135{5}
W f Total amount spent for the Financial Year ] o MO! 309}-_
{iii} M Excess amount spent for fhe financial year | NIL |
T 12| R—— L S—
r{ivj Surplus ansing out of the CSR prc-]ec?s of § N!LI
programmas of octivities of the previous |
o fingncial yeors, if any o b . o |
| v} “Amount availabte for set off | in succeeding | ML
{ ' financiol yeors [{i5]-(v}]

7) Deldils of Unspent Corporate Social Responsbiity aomount for the preceding Hvee
Financial Years: Not Appllcable

7| precedi | Ame sunt W&!&Fc“l_éméun“]'lﬁ&é;ﬁm"'TK'm“aéﬁi' | Deficienc |
i . g | remsterr 1 e ‘% spent | Wanstersd  to | remaining v, i any
igp Fnancia led  fo, Amoun lin the | any fund | to be '
o. Il‘!eur. | Unspent [t in | reportin | speciiled under spen! in
| TSR inspe | o | Schedule Vil a3 g suecesdl
! | Account | nt CSR | Financi | per secton | "o
; {under | Accou |af Yeor| 135(5), fany. | financict |
| . sechon | nt {inks). | years. {in . :
135 (6} under mou Date ! Rs) i
i (InRs.} | sub- nt {in of
i section Rs} Trenst
i |
6y of - ot
secfion | ; i
135 {in: E
o qmsd . : J o
1 !‘ i 1 E
| | |
' NOT APPLICABLE
== . E
SN NS AR SN I

Regd. Office: 501, Padma Palace, 86, Nehru Place, New Dalhi-110019, India
Corp. Office: 3rd Floor, A48 to 50, Pioneer House, Sec-18, Nolkda-201301 ('U.P.) India
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SOLARWORLD ENERGY SOLUTIONS PVT. LTD.

B} Whether any caplial assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsiolity amount spent in the Financial Year:

Yes/No i Yes, enter the number of Capital assels creoted! acquired
RO

Fumish the detaiis relating fo such asset(s} so created or acquired through Comorate Social
Responsibiiity amourt spent in the Financial Year:

FL No.jhodt porficPincode of Date “TAmount of Details of entity/ Authority/ b;neﬁaa;l
! ot the properiproperty creation mount spdhe registered owner
ossef(s) incluassel(s) L R R
' 5 CSR  RegistrdName  Regisfered
completa l': b bdd
ddress umber, ; ress
ocation  of ‘ r""""“"'e | |
| oropery] | I S R R R
' : Not Appilicable

[All the fields should be capiured os appearing in the revenue record, flaf no, house no,
Municipol Office/Municipal Corporation/ Gram panchayat are to be specified and alsa fthe
area of the immovable property as weill as boundaries

9). specify the reasonis), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of ihe average net
profit as per sub-section {5) of section 135.: The total obligafions of the company te spent CSR
amount was Rs. 14,01,300/- for the FY 2023-24, The Company has spent the CSR amount of Rs.
13,846,500/~ on CSR aclivities as per the CSR policy of fhe Company Hil 31+ March 2024, Fwsiher,
in compliance with the provisions of section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company
has deposited an amount of Rs.14,800/- to PM Cares Funid on 14.09.2624.

By order of the Boord of Directars
Solarworid Energy Solutions Private Limited For Solarworld Energy Solutions Pvi. Lid.

For Solankord Energy Soktions P, L1,

/45 ) 0 DirectorAuthorised Signatory
ViréctoriAuthorised Signat

Kartik Tefic gnatory Rishabh jain

Direcior Director

DIN: 06610105 DIN: 05115384

C-31, Secior-47, Noida, Goutam Budh R-13, Nehw Enclave. Kalkaji, New Delhi-110019

Nagar-201303

Date: 16.09.2024 S\

Place: New Dethi IS/ N2\

Regd. Office: 501, Padrna Palace, 86, Nehru Piace, New Deihi-1 10019, India

Corp. Office: 3rd Floor, A-45 to 50, Pioneer House, Sec-16, Noida-201301 (U.P.) India

Tel (EPABX): 91-11-30805500 Fax: 91-11-41618681
E-mait: info@woridsolar.in website:
CIN: 15100DL2ZOIIPTC2554566



SS KOTHARI MEHTA & CO. LLP DARPN AND COMPANY

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

FFirm’s Registration No. 000756N/N500441 Firm's Registration No. 016790C
Plot No. 68. Okhla Industrial Estate Phase-Ill B-47. Gali No. 4. Mohan Baba Nagar
New Delhi-110020 Badarpur, New Delhi - 110044

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Solarworld Energy Solutions Private
Limited (the “Company ™) which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the statement of profit and
loss (including other comprehensive income). statement of changes in equity and the statement ol cash flows for
the year ended March 31, 2024, and notes to the standalone financial statements. including material accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “standalone financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us. the aloresaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act™) in the manner
s0 required und give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India.
ot the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its profit and other comprehensive income, changes
in equity and its cash Nows for the year ended on that date,

Basis for opinion

Wwe conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAS)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under thase Standards ure further described in the
Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the standalone financial staiements seetion of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code o Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI™) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant o our audit of the
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICATs Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis [or our audit
opinion on the standalone financial stalements.

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

I'he Company s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information, The other information comprises the
information included in the Director Report’s but does not include the standalone financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The Director Report’s is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors’
report. Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any [orm of assurance conclusion thereon.

1 connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements. our responsibility is 10 read the othe
inlormation identified above when it beeomes ayvailable and. in doing so. consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements. or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears 1o be materially misstated.

When we read the Director Report’s, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
1o communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Page 1 of 13
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Firm®s Registration No. 000756N/N3500441 Firm's Registration No. 016790C
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Management's Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

I'he Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view ol
the financial position. financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance ol adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection and application
icies: making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: und design.
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls. that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. relevant to the preparation and presentation of

ol appropriate accounting po

the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free (rom material misstatement. whether
due o fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of Directors is responsible for assessing
the Company”s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so

I'he Board uf Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone (inancial statements are free from
material misstatement. whether due 1o fraud or error, and W issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion,
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate. they could reasonably be expected w influence

the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing. specitied under section 143(10) ol the Act we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit, We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due
o fraud or error. design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting trom error. as fraud may involve
collusion. forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control:

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls:

o  bvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness ol aecounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management:

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors” use of the going concern busis of accounting
and. based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a maierial uncertainty exists related 10 events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company s ability 1o continue as a going concern. (f

aw attention in our auditor’s report

Page 2 of 13
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to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or. il such disclosures are inadequate. o
modity our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Company 1o cease 1o continue as i
going concern: and

Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content ol the standalone financial statements. including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable. related safeguards.

Other matters

.

I'he standalone tinancial statements of the Company Tor the year ended March 31, 2023, were audited
by one of joint auditors (CDARPAN and Company ") whose report dated September 12, 2023, expressed
an unmodilied opinion on those linancial statements

Fhe comparative financial information of the Company tor the year ended March 31, 2023 included in
these standalone financial statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements
prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021, specified under Section
133 and other relevant provisions of the Act audited by the ane of joint auditors whose report for the year
ended March 31, 2023 dated September 12, 2023 expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those
financial statements, as adjusted for the differences in the accounting principles adopted by the Company
on transition to the Ind AS. which have been audited by us.

I'he comparative financial information of the Company on the transition date opening balance sheet as
at April O1. 2022 included in these standalone financial statements. are based on the previously issued
statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules,
2021 specified under Section 133 and other relevant provisions of the Act audited by the predecessor
auditor whose report for the year ended March 31. 2022 September 24, 2022 expressed an unmodified
audit opinion on those financial statements. as adjusted for the differences in the accounting principles
adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS. which have been audited by us.

Qur opinion in respect of standalone financial statements is not modified in respect of these above matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

rd

As required by the Companies {(Auditor’s Reporty Order, 2020 (the “Order™) issued by the Central
Government ol India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on
the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order,

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act. we report that:
(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge

and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying standalone financial
statements:

T T
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{b) in our opinion. proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far

(c)

(d)

e

(g2)

{h)

(i)

as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in paragraph 2(i)(vi)
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014 (as
amended):

the balunce sheet, the statement of profit and loss (includ ing other comprehensive income). statement
of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

in our opinion. the aforesaid standalone financiul statements comply with the Indiun Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules. 2015, as amended:

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31. 2024 taken
on record by the Bourd of Directors. none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

based on our audit, we report that the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are
not applicable to the Company, since the Company is not a public company as defined under scction
2071 of the Actas of 31 March 2024, Accordingly. reporting under section 197(16) is not applicable,

I'he modification relating 1o the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are
as stated in paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)b) of the Act and paragraph
2(1)vi) below on reporting under Rule 1 I{g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended):

with respect Lo the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements of the Company as on 31 March 2024 and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
refer o our separate Report in “Annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion:
and.

With respeet to the other matters 1o be included in the Auditor's [Report in accordance with rule 11
ol the Companics (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended). in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according w the explanations given to us:

(i) the Company. as detailed in note 44 1o the standalone financial statements. has disclosed the
impact of pending litigation on its financial position as at 31 March 2024:

(it) the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2024:

(i) there were no amounts which were required 1o be transterred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024-

(iv) (a) the Management has represented that. 1o the best of its know ledge and belief, as disclosed in
note 47. no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or
louned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share prentium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company w0 or in any other person orentity. including  foreign  entity
(“Intermediaries”™). with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behal of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide
any guarantee. security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:
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(iv) (b) The Management has represented. that, to the best ol its knowledge and beliel. us disclosed
in note 47, no funds (which are material cither indi idually or in the aggregate) have been received
by the Company from any person ur entity . including foreign entity (“Funding Parties™ ). with the
understanding. whether recorded in w riting or otherwise. that the Company shall. whether. directly
orindirectly. lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behallof the Funding Party (*Ultimate Beneliciaries™) or provide uny guarantee, security or the like
on behall of the Ultimate Beneficiaries: and

(iv) (¢) Bused on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances. nothing has come 10 our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e). as provided under (a) and {b) above. contain any material
misstatement.

(v} The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended March 31, 2024,

(Vi) Bused on examination, the Company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books
of accounts for the year ended March 31. 2024. which has feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility, However. the audit trail feature has not been enabled and operated throughout the vear for
all the transaction recorded in the aecounting software,

As proviso o Rule 301 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014 is applicable from April 1. 2023.
reporting under Rule 1eg) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014 on preservation ol audit
trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial vear
ended March 31, 2024,

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co, LLP For DARPN AND COMPANY
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 000756N/N50044 | s Registration No. 016790C

S

Pankaj Gupta
Partner
Membership No. 418438

N

Sunil Wahal

Partner

Membership No. 087294
LIDIN: 240872948BKAHOWT7418

Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
Dater September 16, 2024 Date: September 16. 2024
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Solarworld Energy Solutions Private
Limited on the standalone financial statement for the year ended 31 March'24.

Report on the matters specified in paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the
Order’) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013
(*the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 1 of *Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section.

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account

and records examined by us in the normal course of audit. and w the best ol our knowledge and beliel. we report

that:

()

(i)

{a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars. including quantitative
details and situation of property. plant and equipment.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets and accordingly, reporting under clause
3(i)anB) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

{b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property. plant and equipment,
and right of use asscts under which the assets are physically verified over a period of two years, which
in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In
accordance with this program, certain property, plant and equipment were veritied during the year and
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification,

(¢} There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the
lease agreements are duly executed in tavor of the lessee). held by the Company and accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(i)(¢) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(dy According o the information and explanations given © us the Company has not revalued its
property. plant and equipment. Further. the Company does not hold any right of use assels and
intangible assets. Accordingly. reporting requirement under clause 3(0(d) of the Order is not applicable
o the Company .

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination ol
the records of the Company. there are no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property |ransactions Act.
1988 (as amended) and rules made thereunder.

(a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year, In our opinion, the
frequency of such verification is reasonable. and procedures and coverage as followed by management
were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the
book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class of inventory.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Rs. 50 million. in aggregate, at points of time during the vear, from
banks or financial institutions on the basis of security o current assets. In our opinion and according 1o
the information and explanations given o us. quarterly statements are filed with such banks are not in
agreement with the books of account ol the Company. Details of the same are as below:
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[ Period [ Name Working Niature of I Nature of current Amount | Amount Ditference
ended of the capital limit = current assets/liabhilities as per as per {Rs. in |
bank sanctioned HERTH £ hoolks stock million)
| (Rs. in offered as (Rs. in | summary
million) securily million) (Rs. in
- | | | million)
Sep-23 | HDFC | 1.174.00 Pari-pussu | Trade receivables | 1.208.07 | 1,209.48 (141 |
bank | charge on : Trade payables 101.88 | 101.88 -
| ' | current assets J
| Dew-23 | HDFC | 1,174.00 Pari-passu | Trade receivables LI86.61 | 1.187.79 (1.19)
;' | bank | charge on Trade pavables 119.36 [ 18.96 0.40
| N - | eurrentassets | = o=
Mar-24 | HDFC rl,!?‘l,il(l Pari-passu Inventory 2248 - 2248
| bank | charge on _]_135_1_:'_' receivibles | 895,08 763,56 132,42 |
L currentassets | Trade payables ] 122.04 11792 | 4.12

{iii) The Company has made investment in, provided guarantee and granted loans or advances in the nature
of loans. secured or unsecured. o companies. firms. limited liability partnerships or any other parties
during the year, in respect of which:

{a) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations given to
us. the Company has provided loans as below:

o - (Rs.inm n)
Particulars Loans or advances in | Guarantees | Securi :
o o nature of loans : A ]
A. Aggregate amount granted / provided
| during the year: o _ ) | | _
| _ Subsidiary ' 200 Nl [ Nil]
- loint ventures - 65.00 Nl Nil
- Associate | Nil | Nil | Nil |
- Other ) L NIl 7027 Nil
B. Balance outstanding as at balance |
sheet date in respect of above cases
_(including opening balance): .
- Subsidiary 208 948 | Nil |
L Joint ventures ) - Nil | NI Nil
- Associate - ¢F- Nil ] Nl Nil |
- Others IR 129 | 70.27 | Nil

(b) According o the information and explanations given 10 us. the investments made. guarantees
provided. security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the
nature of loans and guarantees provided are not prejudicial o the Company s interest,

(¢) According to the information and explanations given o us, in respect of loans and advances in the
nature ot loans, there 1s no stipulated schedule of repayment of principal and payment ol interest on
loans granted by the company and the said loans are repayable on demand. Further loan has been
repaid during the year when demanded. There has been no default on the part of the party 1o whom
the money has been lent.

{d)  According 1o the information and explanations given 1o us, and on basis of our examination of the

records of the company. there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of loans and
advances in the nature of loans.
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(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, neither loans or advances in nature of
loans have been renewed or extended nor any fresh loans have been granted to settle the overdue of
existing loans.

(1) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company. in our opinion .the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specitying any Lerms or period of repayment
except for the following loans or advances in the nature of loans 1o its promoters and related parties
as detined in Clause (76) of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™):

(Rs. in million)

| Particulars - - - ;____,-_\Il parties ___!_flj{.-_m_mérs , Related parties |
A. Aggregate of loans/advances in nature of | .

| loans (including opening balance): : | | ‘
- Repayableondemand(A) 348 | ey 348

- Agreement does not specify any terms or Nil | Nil Nil |

. period of repayment (13) - ‘
Total (A+B) _ 3.48 Nil | 348 |
Percentage of loans/advances in nature of loans | 100% Nil 100% |
o the total loans ! .

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis ol our examination of records

of the Company. in respect of investments made and loans. and guarantees given by the Company. in our
opinion the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) have been
complied with.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has neither
aceepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are deemed to be deposits within
the meaning of sections 73 1o 76 ol the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder. 1o the extent
applicable. Accordingly. the requirement to report on cluuse 30v) of the Order is not applicable 1w the
Cumpany.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section 148 1) of

the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company
pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended. preseribed by the Central
Government for maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act. 2013, and are
ol the opinion that, prima facie. the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained by the
Company. We have. however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to
determine whether they are accurate or complete,

(Vi) ta) In our opinion. and according to the information and explanations given to us. undisputed statutor

dues including goods and services tax., provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tas., sales-ax.
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax. cess and other material statutory dues. as
applicable. have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities by the Company.,
Further. no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereol were outstanding at the ycar-cnd Tor a period

ofmore than six months from the date they became payable.
thyAccording o the information and explanations given o us, there are no statutory dues relerred in sub

clause (u) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account ol any dispute
exeept for the following:
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(Rs. in million)

! Name of the | Nature of dues Gross Amount Period to  Forum where
| statute ‘ amount paid under which the  dispute is
G | | _ protest | amount relates  pending
Income tax Act, | Income tax | - Iinancial year | Commissioner
1961 | ‘ 2022-23 | of Income-tax
| | (Appeals)

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

records of the Company. there were no transactions relating t previously unrecorded income that were
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1961 (43 of 1961)
during the yeuar.

{a) According to the information and explanations given to us. the Company has not defaulted in the
repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the
vaar.

(b) According to the information and explanations given 1o us including representation received from
the management ot the Company . and on the basis ol our audit procedures, we report that the Company

has not been declared a wiltul defaulier by any bank or lTnancial institution or other lender,

(¢} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given Lo us. money raised by way
of term loans were applied for the purposes lor which these were oblained.

(d) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company. funds raised on
short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the
Company,

{e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
standalone financial statements of the Company. the Company has not taken any funds from any entity
or person on account of or o meet the obligations of its subsidiary. associate and its joint ventures
companics,

(I} According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any loans
during the year on the pledge ol securities held in subsidiary. associate and its joint ventures companies.
(4) The Company has not raised any money by way of'initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments). during the year. Accordingly. reporting under clause 3(xia) ol the Order is not

applicable to the Company

{by According 1o the information and explanations given 1o us and on the basis of our examination of the

records of the Company. the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of

shares or (fully. partially or optionally ) convertible debentures during the year, Accordingly., reporting
under clause 3{x) (b) of the Order is not applicable w the Company.,

(a) To the best ol our knowledge and according Lo the information and explanations given o us, no fraud
by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered by
our audit.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by
the management of the Company. no report under sub-section 12 of'section 143 of the Act has been filed
by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules.
2014, with the Central Government [or the period covered by our audit.
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(¢) According o the information and explanations given o us including the representation made o us by
the management ol the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company
during the year.

{xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules. 2014 are not applicable o it. Accordingly.
reporting required under clause 3(xii) ol the Order is not applicable o the Company

(xiil) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. all transactions entered
into by the Company. with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act. The details
ol such related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone Hnancial statements, as required
under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specitied in Companies
tIndian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as preseribed under section 133 of the Act. Further. according
10 the mtormation and explanations given (o us. the Company is not required o consttute an audit
commiltee under section 177 of the Act as of March 31,2024,

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has an
internal audit system which is commensurate with the size and nature ol its business as required under
the provisions of section 138 of the Act.

(b)  We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors ol the Company ull date lor the period
under audit.

(xv) According to the information and explanation given o us. the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them and accordingly, provisions of section
102 ol the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Resers e Bank of India Act
1934, Accordingly. clause 3txviia) ol the Order is not applicable 1o the Company

{by The Company is not required o be registered under Section 45-1A of the Resery ¢ Bank of India Act.
1934, Accordingly. clause 3(svi(b) ol the Order is not applicable

{¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (C1C) as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of Indiz. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable 1o
the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company. the
Company is not part of any group [as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve
Buank) Directions, 2016 as amended]. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvij(d) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the current financial year as well as immediately
preceding linancial vear.

(xviil) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors ot the Company during the yeur,

{(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 45 1w the standalone financial statements, ugeing and
expected dates of realization ol [nancial assets and payment of financial Habilities. other information
accompanying the standalone financial statements. our knowledge of the Board ol Directors and
management plans and based on our examination ol the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing
has come o our attention, which causes us 1o believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that Company is not capable ol meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one vear from the balance sheet date. We, however.
state that this is not an assurance as w the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
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any assurance that all liabilities fulling due within a period of one vear from the balance sheet date. will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due

(xx) () In respect off other than ongoing projects. the Company has ransterred unspent amount to a fund
specified in Schedule VI of the Caompanies Act. 2013 (the Act) within a period of six months of the
expiry ol the financial year, in compliance with second proviso 1o sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act.
Ihis matter has been disclosed in note 35 1o the standalone financial statements,

{b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required 1o be transterred 10 a
special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act. This
matter has been disclosed in note 35 10 the standalone financial statements.

{(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi} is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone nancial statements
ol the Company, Accordingly. no comment has been included in respect of said clause under this report.

For 8 S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 0007S6N/N30044 |

Sunil Wahal

Partner

Membership No. 087294
UDIN: 24087294BKAHOWT7418

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 16, 2024

For DARPN and Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm®s Registration No. 016790¢"

/’

Pankaj Gupta
Partner

Membership No. 418438
UDIN: 244 18438BRKABL W2498

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 16, 2024
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Solarworld Energy
Solution Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024,

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act")

(Referred w in paragraph 2(h) under *Report on Other | cgal and Regulatory Requirements” section ol our report
ol even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference o standalone financial statements ol Solarworld
Energy Solutions Private Limited {the “Company™) as of March 31. 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone linancial statements of the Company for the yewr ended on that date which ineludes internal linancial
controls with reference w standalone financial statements,

Management’s Responsibility and those charged with governance for Internal Financial Controls
g2 [ y g 4

I'he Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
“the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components ol internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Iinancial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India(*1CAL')™,

I'hese responsibilities include the design. implementation and maintenance ofadequate internal financial controls
that were operating elfectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business. including adherence
to company ‘s policies. the safeguarding of its assets. the prevention and detection of frauds and errors. the
daceuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information.
as required under the Act.

Auditors” responsibility for the audit of the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is 0 express an opinion on the Compant's internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (*ICAL") prescribed under Section 143(10) ol
the Act Lo the extent applicable o an audit of internal financial controls with reference w standalone financial
statements, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {"the
Guidance Note') issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal

financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements were established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures 1o obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference o standalone lnancial statements includes obtaining an understanding ol such
internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists. and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control bused on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone finaneial
statements. whether duc o fraud or crror,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate W provide a basis lor aur audit
opinion on the Company s internal linancial controls with reference o standalone lnancial statements
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial controls with reference 1o standalone lnancial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally aceepled accounting principles. A
Company's internal financial controls with reference 1o standalone financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary o permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally
aceepted accounting principles. and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company: and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition. use, or disposition of the
Company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to these
Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal finuncial controls with reference to standalone financial statements.
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override ol controls, material misstatements due
Lo error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also. projections of any evaluation of the internal tinancial
controls with reference to standalone linancial statements 1o fulure periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions. or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion. the Company has. in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the
internal controls with reference Lo standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company considering
the essential component of internal control stated in Guidance note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of India (the *Guidance Note™).

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP For DARPN AND COMPANY
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 000756N/NS0044 1 Firm’'s Registration No. 016790¢

Sunil Wahal Pankaj Gupta

Partner : Partner

Membership No. 087294 Membership No, 418438

UDIN: 24087294BKAHOWT74 18 LDIN: 24418438 BKABL W2498
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi

Date: September 16, 2024 Date: September 16. 2024
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Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
CIN: U15100DL2013PTC255458

Standalone balance sheet as at March 31, 2024
{Amounts are T in millions unless otherwise stated)

Particul Asat As al As at
icuars Note Na March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 April 01, 2022
A, Assels
(1) Non current assets
(#) Property, plant and equipment 3 9.29 11.78 433
(b) Financial assets
(1) Investments 4 26,76 3231 3476
(11} Others financial assels 5 007 2.1 1159
(o) Deferred tax assets (ner) oB 954 465 246
(d) Non-current tax assets (net} 7 - in 6.72
Total non-currenl assets 45.66 54.87 59.86
{2) Current assels
(m) Inventories H 2248 15.19 1523
(b} Finuncial assets
(1) Investments 9 017 0.16 015
(ii) Trade receivables 1 K9S 08 0091 106 87
(i1} Cash and cash equivalents 11 20381 43131 1831
{iv) Bank balances other than (iil) above 12 20123 131.76 4917
{v) Loans 13 348 25370 296.28
{vi} Others financial assets 14 19 80 032 0.23
{e) Cuber current assets 15 91,72 159 38 55 99
Total current assels 1,438.67 1.113.73 592.23
Tatal assets (1+2) 1,484.33 1,168.30 652.09
B. Equity and liabilities
(1) Equity
() Equiry share capital 16 320 3.20 320
(b) Other equily 17 66691 179 05 43,51
Total equity 670.11 183.15 48,71
Liahilities
(2) Nom current liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18 L60 46 17046 101 41
(b) Provisions : 14 093 063 065
Total non-current Habilities 161,39 171.09 102,06
{3) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 20 450 58 476 20 412,61
{ii) Trade payables 2l
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 855 184 -
emerpises
taral outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 11347 111.20 32.75
enterprises and small enterprises
(i1} Other financial labilites 22 1631 007 0,38
{b) Other current lisbilities 2 2504 21121 45.57
{c) Provisions 24 Dol 13 54 (.01
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 25 I8.87 - -
Total current liabilities 52,43 H14.06 501,32
Total liabilities (7+3) 814,22 985.15 603.34
Total equity and liabilities (1+2+3) 1,484.33 1,168.30 652.09
Bagis of preparation and material accounting pelicies 2
See accompanying notes that form an intergal part of these standalone financial
As per our report of even date
8 5 Kothari Mehta & Co LLP DARFN And Company For and on behaif of the Board of Directors
Chanered Accountants Chartered Accountants Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Linited

Firm's Registration No DDOTSEN/NS0044]
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unil Wahal Rishabh Jain Kartik Tefiia
Membership No. 087494 Membership No. 418438 Director Director
Partner Barmer DIN 05115384 DIN: 06610105
Ploce: Place:
Place New Delhi Place: New Delhi Date: Date: <)
Date: September 16, 2024 Dute Y
Mukut Goyal Varsha Bharti
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No: A37545
Place
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Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
CIN: U15100DL2013PTC255455
Statement of profit an

d loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Amounts are ¥ in millions unless otherwise stated)

Note N For the year ended For the year ended
AR March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Income:
(a) Revenue from operations 26 5.010.16 232461
(b) Other income 27 4494 2591
Total income (1) 5,055.10 2,350.52
Expenses:
(a) Cost of materials consumed 28 381310 1.817.45
(b) Engineering, procurement and conslruction project expenses 29 436 34 25256
(¢) Purchases of stock-in-trade 30 310 343
(d) Employee benefits expense 31 B.68 499
(e) Finance costs 32 6780 5906
(f) Depreciation and amortization expense 33 4,29 231
(g) Other expenses 34 6737 31.49
Total expense (L) 4,400.68 2,171.29
Profit before tax 111 (H1I) 654.42 179.23
Tax Expense: 6A
(1) Current tax expense 17229 4720
(2) Tax related to carhier years (0.01) -
(3) Deferred tax (credit)/charge (4.87) (2.25)
Total tax expense (IV) 167.41 44,95
Profit for the year (V) (II-1V) 487.01 134.28
Other comprehensive income /(loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans gain/ (loss) 10.07) 021
Income tax relating to these items 6A 002 (0.05)
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) (VI) (0.05) 0.16
Total comprehensive income for the year (V+VI) 486.96 134.44
Earnings/ (Loss) per equity share attributable to owners of the Company
Rasic (Rupee) 35 7.53 2.08
Diluted (Rupee) 35 7.53 2.08
Basis of preparation and material accounting policies 2
See accompanying notes that form an intergal part of these standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date

% S Kothari Mehta & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No,000756N/N500441
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Director
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Date:
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Date:
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Place:

Date: 2
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Solarworli Encrgy Solutions Private Linited

CIN: UL15100DL20L IFTC2SS4SS

Standalone statement of cash fow for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Amvunts are € in milions unless uiherwise stated)

_ For the year ended For the year ended
Lunsie March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A: CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit befors tax 65442 179.23
Adjustment for:
Fmance costs 67,80 59,06
Remeasurement of fair value of investment 0o Wwary
Deprecintion and amortization expanse 429 231
Liahilites no longer required written back (4 90 (11 08)
Interest mcome (2140 (2507)
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/ loss - (0.34)
Provision for impairment of non-current investment - 247
Investment written off EEL] -
Bad debis and advances written oflf 2063 -
Provision/(reversal) for foreseeable losses on construction contracts - 1353
Loss/ on sale of property, plant and equipment {0.19) -
Operating profit before working capital changes 730.13 13110
Adjusted for:
d n (7.2%) 04
(Increase) in other financial assets (19.49) {0.09)
(Increase)/decrease in other assels 67,66 (103 39)
il id in trade b (40140 (403 04)
Increase /(decrease) i trade payables 13594 071
Increase/(decrease) Ananciul liability 16.25 (0.32)
{ }in other hakdit (186 1%) 165,64
Increase/(decrease) provisions (13 2%) 0.13
Cash generated/ (used) from operations 20033 (29.16)
Less: Income tax | paud )received (net of refund) 1128.57) (42 25}
Net cash E_‘gltd fromy/(used in} ﬁuﬂl‘ activities (A) 7176 (7141}
B: CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property. plant and equipment (1,83} (2.75)
Proceeds fiom sale of property, plant and equipment 022 -
Payment made for purchase of equity shares of assoceate’ jout ventures (4 00y 0:02)
Loans received back dunng the year 33233 77.36
Loan granted during the year {BT.00) (17 02)
Foced deposits made (431 02) (183.19)
Fixed deposins matured 364 87 16l 10
Interest recerved 1858 435
Net eash g § fromy (used) in bﬂ_l!‘_ﬂ‘ﬂl"lﬂel (B) 192.15 3233
€3 CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from long term borrowings - 78.02
Rep of long, term b ng: (9.99) (5497)
Proceeds/ yuf short term t ws net) (31 04} 2039
Finance cost pad {61.78) (34.86)
Net cash generated fromy (used in) financing activity (C) (103.41) 63.58
Net inerease/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 160,50 500
Cush and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 4331 1831
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 20351 43.31
Compunents of cash and cash equivalents considered only for the purpose of cash Mow statement
{a) Balances with banks
= In current nccounts 195,30 43 26
(b) Cash on hand 006 008
Bark Deposits with original maturity of up to three months 845 -
20381 43.31




Selarwarld Energy Solutions Private Limited

CIN: U15100DLI0I3PTC255458

Standalone statement of cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Amounts are ¥ in millions unless otherwise stated)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
Thus section sets out the movements in net debt for each of the year presented

As al As
el March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening outstanding 646,66 524.01
Cash flows:
Proceeds of long term borrowngs - 7802
Repayment of long term b g5 including interest repay (9.99) (8.97)
{Repayment ¥ proceeds from short term borrowings (net) ncluding micrest repavment (31.64) 29.39
Interest accrued 601 2420
Closing balance 61104 646,66
Note: Statement of cash flows bas been prepared under the indirect method as sel out i the Indian A {ard {Ind AS) T of cash flows” as specified in the Compames
{Indian Accounting Standacds) Rules, 2015
Basis of prep and ial ing pulicies 2
See accompanying notes that ferm an intergal part of these Jal: ial
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Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited

CIN: ULSI00DL2013PT (255458

Standalone statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Amounts are 2 in millions unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital* No of shares Amount
As at April 01, 2022 3,20,000.00 3.20
Changes in equity shares capital duning the year - =
As at March 31, 2023 3,20,000.00 3.0
Changes in equity shares capatal during the yew = -
As at March 31, 2024 3,20,000.00 3.20
* Also refer note 16
B. Other equity
Particulars i m"l - .wrpl“ —— - I Total
| Retamed urnlugﬂ Security !rﬂmunl
As at April 01, 2022 2.3 13.20 45.51
Addition during the year:
Add: Profit for the year 13428 - 134 28
Add. Cuher comprehensive income/ (lass) (net of tax)* 0l6 - ale
Balance as at March 31, 2023 166.75 13.20 179,98
Addition during the year:
Add: Profit for the year 48701 - 48701
Add: Other eomprehensive incame/ (loss) (ret of tax)* {0.05) - (0.05)
{Balance as at March 31, 2024 653.71 13.20 666,91
= —
* Also refer note 17
* As permitted under Ind AS, schedule 1T the Company has recogiised (Loss) / gam (net of tax) on re-measurement of defined employee benefit plans is recognized as part of retained earnings
Basis of preparation and material accounting policies 2
See accompanying notes that form an intergal part of these standalone financial stat t
As per vur report of even date
5 8§ Kothari Mehta & Co LLP DARPN And Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants tered Accountants Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
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Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
CIN: UIS100DL2013PTC255455
Notes to standalone financial statements for the yvear ended March 31, 2024

Corporate Information

Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited (‘the Company’) is a private limited company domiciled in
India & was incorporated on July 17, 2013, under the provisions of Companics Act-2013 (‘the Act’)
applicable in India. The registered oftice of the Company is located at 501, Padma Palace, 86, Nehru
Place, South Delhi. New Delhi-110019. India. The Company is principally engaged in the business of
solar power plant set up, engineering, procurement and construction (EPC) etc.

The standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024 are approved for
issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on September 16, 2024

Basis of preparation, measurement and material accounting policies
Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards ('Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA') under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ('Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The standalone financial statements up to year ended March 31, 2023, were prepared in accordance with
the accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Act, read together with paragraph 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 ("Indian GAAP" or "Previous GAAP"). These standalone financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, are the first set of standalone financial statements prepared
in accordance with Ind AS. The date of transition to Ind AS is April 01, 2022 (hereinafter referred to as
the 'transition date").

The standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 and the opening balance sheet as
at April 01, 2022 have been restated in accordance with Ind AS for comparative information.
Reconciliations and explanations of the effect of the transition from Previous GAAP to Ind AS on the
balance sheet. statement of profit and loss (including comprehensive income) and cash flow statements
are provided in note no 46.

The standalone financial statements are prepared on going concern, accrual and historical cost basis except
for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

* Defined benefit plans-plan assets measured at fair value.

» Certain financial assets and labilities measured at fair value

Accounting policics have been consistently applied except where a newly issucd accounting standard is
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy
hitherto in use.

Functional & presentational currency
The standalone financial statements have been presented in Indian Rupees (Rs. or INR), which is also the

Company’s functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest millions and decimals
thereof, unless otherwise mentioned.




Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
CIN: UIS100DL2013PTC255455
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Current vs non-current classifications
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the financial statements based on current / non-current
classification.

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) it 1s expected to be realized in. or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company normal operating
cycle.

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded:

¢) it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date: or

d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) it is expected to be settled in the Company normal operating cycle:

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

¢) it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or the Company does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms
of liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity
instruments do not affect its classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current only.
Use of estimates, assumptions and judgements

The preparation of the standalone financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to
make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities. the disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the standalone financial statements and reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the period.

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances
surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in
which changes are made and, if material. their effects are disclosed in the notes to the standalone financial
statements.
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Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
CIN: UIS100DL2013PTC255455
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Material accounting policies
Fair value measurement

Certain accounting policies and disclosures of the Company require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The
valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hicrarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or liability.
cither directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (1.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on obscrvable market data (unobservable
inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far
as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an assct or a liability fall into different levels of
the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of
the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. regardless of when the
payment is being made. When a performance obligation is satisfied, the revenue is measured at the
transaction price which is consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade
discounts and volume rebates after taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and
excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a customer, the Company determines
whether the nature of its promise is a performance obligation to provide the specitied goods or services
itself (i.c., the Company is a principal) or to arrange for the other party to provide those goods or services
(i.e., the Company is an agent). When the Company considers itself as a principal and satisfies its
performance obligation in a given arrangement, the Company recognizes revenue in the gross amount of
consideration to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services transferred. When
the Company considers itself as an agent and satisties its performance obligation in a given arrangement,
the Company recognizes revenue in the amount of any fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled
in exchange for arranging for the other party to provide its goods or services. The Company’s fee or
commission is the net amount of consideration that the Company retains after paying the other party the
consideration received in exchange for the goods or services to be provided by that party.

The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of solar modules, solar cells, solar accessories and
construction/project related activity, engineering, procurement and construction (EPC) and operation and
maintenance.




Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
CIN: UI15100DL2013PTC255455
Notes to standalone financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue is recognized at point of time when the control of the same is transferred to the customer and it
is probable that the Company will collect the consideration to which it is entitled for the exchanged goods
The point at which control passes is determined based on the terms and conditions by cach customer
arrangement.

Revenue from construction/project related activity

Contract revenue is recognized over time to the extent of performance obligation satisfied and control is
transferred to the customer. Contract revenue is recognized at allocable transaction price which represents
the cost of work performed on the contract plus proportionate margin, using the percentage of completion
method. Percentage of completion is the proportion of cost of work performed to-date, to the total
estimated contract costs. With respect to contracts, where the outcome of the performance obligation
cannot be reasonably measured. but the costs incurred towards satisfaction of performance obligation are
expected to be recovered, the revenue is recognized only to the extent of costs incurred.

Revenue from operation and maintenance

Revenue from operation & maintenance is recognized as the proportion of the total period of services
contract that has elapsed at the end of the reporting period.

For contracts where the aggregate of contract cost incurred to date plus recognized profits (or minus
recognized losses as the case may be) exceeds the progress billing, the surplus is shown as contract asset
and termed as “Unbilled revenue™. For contracts where progress billing exceeds the aggregate of contract
costs incurred to-date plus recognized profits (or minus recognized losses, as the case may be), the surplus
is shown as contract liability and termed as “Excess of billing over revenue”. Amounts received before
the related work is performed are disclosed in the balance sheet as contract liability and termed as
“Advances from customer”. The amounts billed on customer for work pertormed and are unconditionally
due for payment i.e. only passage of time is required before payment falls due, are disclosed in the balance
sheet as trade receivables. The amount of retention money held by the customers pending completion of
performance milestone is disclosed as part of contract asset and is reclassified as trade receivables when
it becomes due for payment.

Contract balances
(i) Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company
has received consideration (or the amount is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration
before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognized when
the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as
revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

(ii) Trade receivables
Areceivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i .e., only
the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).




Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
CIN: U1S100DL2013PTC255455
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to customer. If
the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned consideration that is
conditional.

Other income

Interest Income from bank deposits and loan:

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis by reference to the principal outstanding and the
effective interest rate,

Other items of income are accounted as and when the right to receive arises and it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment

i) Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and cquipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses if any, cost of an item of property. plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts
and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use
and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

ii) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other expenses on existing fixed assets, including day-to-day repair
and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the standalone statements of profit
and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

iii) Depreciation and useful lives
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated

useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment which coincide with Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.
Estimated useful life of the assets is given below:

Tangible assets Useful life
Plant and equipment 15 Years
Furniture and fixtures 10 Years
Office equipment S Years
Computers 3 Years
Motor vehicles 8 Years




Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
CIN: UIS100DL2013PTC255455
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

iv) Gain and loss on disposal of item of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant rind equipment are climinated from standalone financial statements, either on disposal or
when retired from active use. Losses/gains arising in case retirement/disposals of property, plant and
equipment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year of occurrence.

v) Residual values

The Company reviews the residual value, useful lives and depreciation method annually and, if
expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate
on a prospective basis.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

a) Raw materials, components, construction materials, stores, spares and loose tools: cost
includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on Cost is determined on ‘First in First Out’
(“FIFO™) method.

b) Cost of finished goods include cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing
costs. Cost is determined on “First in First Out’ (“FIFO”") method.

¢) Costof traded goods include purchase cost and inward freight. Costs are determined on *First
in First Out” (“FIFO™) method.

Assessment of net realizable value is made at cach reporting period end and when the circumstances that
previously caused inventories to be written-down below cost no longer exist or when there is clear
evidence of an increase in net realizable value because of changed economic circumstances, the write-
down, if any. in the past period is reversed to the extent of the original amount written-down so that the
resultant carrying amount is the lower of the cost and the revised net realizable value

Financial instruments

Financial assets and/or financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes party to a contract
embodying the related financial instruments. All financial assets, financial liabilities and financial
guarantee contracts are initially measured at fair value excepting for trade receivables not containing a
significant financing component are initially measured at transaction price, Transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition or issuc of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from as the case may
be, the fair value of such financial assets or liabilities, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognized in profit or loss.

In case ot funding to subsidiary companies in the form of interest free or concession loans and preference
shares. the excess of the actual amount of the funding over initially measured fair value is accounted as
an equity investment.




Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
CIN: U15100DL2013PTC255455
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

A financial asset and a financial liability are oftset and presented on net basis in the balance sheet when
there is a current legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and 1t is intended to cither
settle on net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is described below.

I. Financial assets Classification and subsequent measurement For the purpose of subsequent
measurement. financial assets are classified into the following categories upon mitial recognition:

(i) Financial assets at amortized cost — a (inancial instrument is measured at amortized cost if both the
following conditions are met:

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. After initial measurement. such
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

(ii) Financial assets at fair value

Investments in equity instruments — All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair
value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at fair value through profit and loss
('"FVTPL"). For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either as at fair
value through other comprehensive income ("FVOCI") or FVTPL. The Company makes such election on
an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from
OCT to profit or loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain
or loss within equity. Dividends on such investments are recognized in profit or loss unless the dividend
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment,

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the profit or loss.

De-recognition of financial assets

Financial assets (or where applicable, a part of financial asset or part of a Company of similar tinancial
assets) are derecognized from the standalone statement of Assets and Liabilities when the contractual
rights to receive the cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or when the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred. The Company also derecognizes the financial asset
if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

I1. Financial liabilities

Initial recognition

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at
fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense. are recognized in standalone statement
of profit and loss.
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Subsequent measurement
After initial recognition, the financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate ("EIR") method.

Amortized cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the ETR. The effect of EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the standalone
statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified. such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the standalone statement of profit and
loss.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss” (ECL) model, for evaluating

impairment of financial assets other than those measured at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on
the financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date): or

Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the life of the financial instrument)

Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The Company periodically assesses the
financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends,
and analysis of historical data and ageing of accounts receivable. The Company creates allowance for
unsecured receivables based on historical credit loss experience, industry practice and busincss
environment in which the entity operates and is adjusted for forward looking Statement. Subsequently
when the Company is satisfied that no recovery of such losses is possible, the financial asset is
considered irrecoverable and the amount charged to the allowance account is then written off against
the carrying amount of the impaired financial asset.

Impairment of non-financial assets

As at the end of cach financial year, the carrying amounts of PPE, investment property, intangible assets
and investments in subsidiary, associate and joint venture companies are reviewed to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If such indication exists, PPE,
investment property. intangible assets and investments in subsidiary. associate and joint venture
companies are tested for impairment so as to determine the impairment loss. it any. Goodwill is tested
for impairment cach year. Impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is determined:

(i) in the case of an individual assct, at the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and the value-
in-use; and

(ii) in the case of a cash generating unit (the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates
independent cash flows), at the higher of the cash generating unit’s fair value less costs of disposal and
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the value-in-use. (The amount ot value-in-use is determined as the present value of estimated future
cash flows from the continuing use of an asset, which may vary based on the future performance of the
Company and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. For this purpose, the discount rate (post-tax)
is determined based on the weighted average cost of capital of the Company suitably adjusted for risks
specified to the estimated cash tlows of the asset). If recoverable amount of an asset (or cash gencerating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount. such deficit is recognized immediately in the
Statement of Profit and Loss as impairment loss and the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. When an impairment loss recognized earlier is subject to full
or partial reversal, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit), except impairment loss
allocated to goodwill, is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, such that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss is recognized for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss (other than impairment loss allocated to goodwill) is recognized immediately in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the labilities are derecognized as well as through
the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial assct expire or it transfers the tinancial asset and the transter qualifies for de-recognition under
Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company’s
balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Provisions, contingent liabilities & contingent assets

General

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, The amount recognized as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Long-term provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money. Short term provisions are carried
at their redemption value and are not offset against receivables from reimbursements.
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Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past
events where it is cither not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable
estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Contingent assets

A contingent asset is not recognized unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits
will arisc. When an inflow of ecconomic benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed in the Ind AS
financial statements.

Onerous contract

Provision for onerous contracts. i.e. contracts where the expected unavoidable cost of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the cconomic benefits expected to be received under it, are
recognized when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle a present obligation as a result of an obligating event based on a reliable estimate of such
obligation.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash & Cash Equivalents in the comprise cash at banks and cash on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subjecet to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects
of transactions of a non-cash naturc and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments. The standalone cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company
are segregated. Certain arrangements entered with financiers have been classified as borrowings by the
Company. The Company presents cash outflows to settle the liability arising from financing activities in
its statement of cash flows.

Share capital

Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as equity only to the extent that they do not
meet the definition of a financial liability or financial asset. The Company's ordinary shares are classified
as equity instruments,

Income tax

Current tax

Current income tax asscts and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates
taxable income. Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside
profit or loss (cither in other comprehensive income (“OCI”) or in equity). Current tax items are
recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management
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periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provision where appropriate

Deferred tax

Deterred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
i the Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit
under Income-tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax
assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled. based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either
in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part
of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that-an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing costs,

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
Basic Earnings Per Share (‘'EPS') is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity

sharcholders by the weighted average number of equity share outstanding during the year, The weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for treasury shares.

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit by the weighted average number of
cquity shares considered for deriving basic carnings per share and also the weighted average number of
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equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive
potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the year. unless issued at a later date.

In computing diluted earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that either

reduces earnings per share or increases loss per share are included.
Segment reporting

The Company has engaged in the business of providing Engineering. Procurement and Construction
(EPC) and has only reportable segment in accordance with IND AS-108 '"Operating Segment'. The
Statement relating to this operating segment is reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors to make
decisions about resources to be allocated and to assess its performance. The accounting principles used in
the preparation of the financial statements are consistently applied to record revenue and expenditure in
the segment and are as set out in the material accounting policies.

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Employee benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated absences. bonus. ex-gratia and
performance-linked rewards falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are
classified as short-term employee benefits and are expensed in the period in which the employee
renders the service

Post-employment benefits

Provident fund

The Company’s state governed provident fund scheme, employee state insurance scheme and
employee pension scheme are defined contribution plans. The contribution paid/payable under the
schemes is recognized during the period in which the employee renders the service. The Company has
no obligation. other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. If the contribution payable to
the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid,
the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already
paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the
balance sheet date. then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead
to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

b) Defined benefits plan

Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the 'Gratuity Plan") covering eligible
employees in accordance with the payment of gratuity Act, 1972.Gratuity liability is a defined benefit
obligation and is provided on the basis of its actuarial valuation based on the projected unit credit
method made at each balance sheet date.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.
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Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

The Company records all short-term obligation for such compensated absences as well as performance
bonus on the basis of amount paid in the period during which the services are rendered by the employees,
all such expenses are recognize in the period in which they actually arise.

Foreign currency transactions and balances:

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at its functional currency spot
rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company
uses an average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated into the functional currency
at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at the fair
value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of transaction.

Leases

Identifying leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is or contains a lcase. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Lease contracts entered by the Company majorly pertains for premises and equipment taken on lease to
conduct its business in the ordinary course.

Company as a lessee

On April 1, 2022, the Company had adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases™ using the modified retrospective
approach by applying the standard to all leases existing at the date of initial application. The Company
also clected to use the recognition exemption for lease contracts that, at the commencement date, have a
lease term of twelve months or less and do not contain a purchase option (“short-term leases™) and lease
contracts for which the underlying asset is of low valuc other than land. (“low value assets™). The
Company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right
to use the underlying assets. '

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.c., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-usc assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
usc assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful
lives of the assets.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in "Impairment of
non-financial assets".
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Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease labilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company
exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognized as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to
future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a
change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has applied the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.c., those
leases that have a leasc term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option) and low-value assets recognition exemption.

Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies

When preparing the standalone financial statement, management makes a number of judgements.
estimates and assumptions about the recognition and measurement of assets. liabilities. income and
expenses

Income tax and deferred tax assets

The Company uses estimates and judgements based on the relevant rulings in the arcas of allocation
of revenue, costs, allowances and disallowances which is exercised while determining the provision
for income tax. A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be
utilized. Accordingly, the Company exercises its judgement to reassess the carrying amount of
deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period.

Useful lives of depreciable assets

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting
period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods.

Actuarial valuation

The determination of Company’s liability towards defined benefit obligation to employees is made
through independent actuarial valuation including determination of amounts to be recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss and in other comprehensive income. Such valuation depend upon
assumptions determined after taking into account discount rate, salary growth rate, expected rate of
return. mortality and attrition rate. Statement about such valuation is provided in notes to the
standalone financial statement.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

In assessing impairment, management cstimates the recoverable amount of cach asset or cash-
generating units based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to discount them.
Estimation uncertainty relates to assumptions about future operating results and the determination of
a suitable discount rate.

Contingencies

Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outtlow of resources, if' any. in respect
of contingencies/ claim/ litigation against Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of
pending matters with accuracy.

Revenue recognition

For performance obligation satisfied over time, the revenue recognition is done by measuring the
progress towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation. The progress is measured in terms
of a proportion of actual cost incurred to-date, to the total estimated cost attributable to the
performance obligation.

Recent accounting pronouncements and changes in accounting standards
There are no standards of accounting or any addendum thereto, prescribed by Ministry of Corporate

Affairs ("MCA’) under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, which are issued and not effective as at
March 31, 2024.

- Adoption of new accounting principles

Ind AS 12 income taxes: The amendments clarified that lease transactions give rise to equal and offsetting
temporary differences and financial statements should reflect the future tax impacts of these transactions
through recognizing deferred tax assets/liabilities on gross basis.

- Ind AS 1 presentation of financial statements: The amendments require to disclose 'material accounting
policies' instead of 'significant accounting policies' and related guidance to determine whether the policy
is material or not.

- Ind AS 8 accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors: Definition of accounting
estimates have now been included in the standard enabling distinction between change in accounting
estimates from change in accounting policies.

The Company has adopted these amendments effective April 01, 2023, and the adoption did not have any
material impact on the standalone financial statement.
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Naote 3:- Property, plant snd equipment

[ Deemed cost/ Cost Pln.lli & ) Office Mt wdildae Computer Furniture & Total

machinery equipm ent fixtures

Gross block:

Balance as at April 01, 2022 .03 013 8.15 1.52 1.33 11.16
Additions 159 033 isd 0.80 119 9.75
Deletions - - - - - -
Balance as al March 31, 2023 3.62 0.46 11.99 2.32 2.52 Iﬂ.ﬂ‘
Additions 0.5% 0 06 0.29 073 016 183
Deletions - - (.69 - - 064

‘Balnnce as at March 31, 2024 4.21 0.52 11.50 3.08 2.68 12.05
Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at April 01, 2022 0.00 0.03 5.93 0.78 0.08 6.83

l Depreciation for the year 032 011 079 072 037 231
Disposals - - - - » »

|Bahnrr as at March 31, 2023 0.33 0.14 6.72 1.50 0.45 9.14
Depreciation for the year 93 033 1.66 083 054 429
Disposals - - 063 - - 065
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1.26 0.46 7.73 .33 0.99 12.77

IN!I block (net) =
Balance as at April 01, 2022 .03 0.11 2.22 0.73 1.24 4.33

=

Balance as at March J éqz_ﬂ 3.29 0.33 5.27 0.82 2.07 1178
Balance as at Marca 31, 2024 1.95 0.06 3.87 0.72 1.69 9,20

Note:

(i) The Company does not own any immovahle property

(1) The Company has not revalued its property. plant and equipment

(i1} Certain vehicles agamst b 2, the details relating 1o which have been disclosed in note 18
(1v) Refer note no 43 for capital commitments

(v) The Company has elected Ind AS 101 exemption to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment a1 deemed cost as at the date of transition. Also, refer lo nate 46

= [ New
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4 Financial assets (non current) : Investment
Particu As ar As at As at
et March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
() Investment in equity shares of subsidiary company carried at cost {refer note i
Ortuson Renewal Energy Private Limued 400 - -
9999 ( March 31, 2023: Nil, Apnil 01, 2022 Nul) equity shiares of face value of
Rs 10 each
Sub total (i) 4.00 - -
Inv in equity
(i} Investnients in associate (refer note (ii))
Froneer Global Enterprises Private Limited
2,000 { March 31, 2023 2,000, April 01, 2022 Nil) equity slares of face value
of Rs 10 each 002 002 -
Sub tatal (ii) o pe =
(iii) Invesrments in joint ventures {refer note (i) )
Danion Power Private Limited
310 ( March 31, 2023 510, April 01, 2022 510) equity shares of face value of
Rs 10 each Q.01 0.01 041
0.0 0.01 0.01
Kehan Solarworld Private Limited
9.23.100 ( March 31, 2023 9,23, 100, Apnl 01, 2022 9,23 100) equity shares of
face value of Rs 10 each 923 923 923
923 923 223
Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Limited
13,530,000 (March 31, 2023 13,50,000, Apnl 01, 2022, 13.50.000) equity shares
of face value of Rs 10 each 13.50 1350 13.50
13.50 13.50 13.50
Fuwrelife Foods Private Limited
150,365 of 100 each and 999 of 10 each ( March 31, 2023 1,50,365 of 100 euach
and 999 of 10 each, Apnl 01, 2022 1,950,365 of 100 each and 999 of 10 each)
equity shares 15.05 15.05 1505
Less: Provisson for impairment - (5.49) (3.02)
Less * Investment written off {15.0%) - -
= 9.55 12.03
Sub total (iii) ﬂ.‘l'-l 32,29 M6
Total non curvent investment (i+ii+iii) 26.76 32,31 M.76
—t —
Aggregate of ung d i 26,76 3231 .70
Aggregate amount of impaisment - 549 EX
Also refer note no 49
Notes:
Investments extent of
As at
Particulary Mareh 31, 2024
—_—arch 3,
Fxtentof | No of sccurities |
(i) |Investment in equity shares of subsidiary company
Ortuson Renewal Energy Private Limited 9.99%, 9.999
(i} |lavestments in associate
Pioneer Global Erterprises Private Limited 20.00%, 2,000
(i) |Investmsents in joint ventures
Danton Power Private Limited S1.00% 510
Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Limited 24.00% 13,530,000
Kehan Solarworld Private Limited SLOO% 9,23,100
IFurureht‘c Foods Private Limited 25.00% 1,51,364
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Asat
Particulars March 31. 2023 |
Exentor| oo e
(i} [Tnvestment in equity shares of subsidiary company
Ortuson Renewal Energy Private Limited - -
(i) |Investments in associate
Prumeer Global Enterprises Private Limited 20 0084 2,000
(iii) |lavestments in joint ventures
Danton Power Private Limited 51.00% 510
Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Limited 24 000, 13,350,000
Kehan Solarworld Private Limied 51.00% 9,23 100
Futurelife Foods Private Limited 25.00% 1,51 364
As atl
Particulary April 01, 2022
(i} [Investment in equity shares of subsidiary company

Ortuson Renewal Energy Private Limited
Investmenls in associale
Pianeer Global Enterprises Private Limited

(i)

(i) Ll‘\-‘mﬂlltl in joint venlures
Danton Power Private Linited
Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Limited
Kehan Solarworld Private Limited

Futurelife Foods Private Limited

0 00% =
51.00% b 1]
24.00% 13,50,000
51.00% 9.23,100
25 00% 1.51,364

(iiiy The Company has of $1% (March 31, 2023 51%, Apnil 01, 2022 §1%) in Danton Power Private Limited and 24% (March
Linuted, 25% (March 31, 2023: 25%, April 01, 2022° 25%) in Funurelife Foods Private Limited and §1%
are treated as joint venture because the Company has joint control over the above entities and there is
venture have rights to the assets and obligations for the habilities of the Jount

rights for key b d require i I hald

| of the shar

Other financial assets: Non current
Dieposits with remaining maturity of more than 12 months*

31, 2023 24%, April 0], 2022 24%) in Ankita Agro and Foods Processing Private

(March 31, 2023, 51%, Apnil 01, 2022: 51%) in Kehan Solarworld Private Limuted The abave companes
no contraciual arangement or any other facts and circumstances that indicate that the parties o the joint
Company has also joint control over above companies as the appomtment of 1ts directors and the allocation af voting

0.07 211 1139
Tetal ﬂis? Hl 11.89
* March 31, 2024, Nil (March 31, 2023 Rs. 1.28 aullion, Apnil 01, 2022 Rs. 9 68 mullion), deposits pledged with bank against bank guarantee given and issuance of letter of credit
GA  Tax expenses
J For the year ended  For the year ended
() Jraicdes March 31,2024 March 31, 20
Amount recogrused in smtement of profit and loss
Current tax 17229 47.20
Prior period adjustment (o) -
Deferred mx charge/ (credit) (4.87) (2.25)
Tax expenses lor the year 167.41 44.95
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income (OCT)
For the year ended For the year ended
Particula Y ¥
i) Particikary March 31,2024 pyo s 5oy
Items that wall not be reclassifed w profit or loss
Tax on remeasurernent of defined benefit plan {eredit)/charge (0.02) 008
Income tax charged 1o OCI (0.02) 0.05
% Faor the year ended  For the year ended
nmn |
(0} [Parsiculrs March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Profit before tax (A) 654 42 17923
Expected income tax rate applicable to the company (R 25 17% 25.17%
Computed tax at ¥ rate (C = A*B) 164,70 45.11
Adjusted to taxable profit
1} Tax impact of expenses not deductible 0.35 -
1) Other 235 (0 16)
Income tax exp rep 1 in to the of prefit and loss (D) 167.41 44.95
Effective tax rate (E=1/A) 15,58% 25.08%




Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
CIN: UIS100DL2013PTC255455
Notes and other explanatory information to fin

(Amounts are ¥ in millions unless otherwise stated)

for the year ended March 31, 2024

6B Deferved tax (assets) liabilities (met)

4 As at As at Asat
P March 31, 2024 March 31,2033 April 01, 2022
Property, plant and equipment (1.02) (0.65) 0.63)
Provision (1 38) (1.38) (0.76)
Remeasurement of fair value of investment 001 0.0l 0.00
Exg llowable on pay i (102) .81 {0 26)
Unearned revenue - - {0.72)
Provision for employee henefit {0.13) O44) {0 10)
Deferred tax liabilities/ {assets) (9.54) {@ I:.-;Gl
Movement in deferred tax (assets) and linbilities (net) for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Credit)/charge in (Creditycharge in

Opening balance at : Closing balance as

Particulars April 01, 2022 statement of profit other olowrd:uuwe at March 31, 2023
and loss income
Property, plant and equipment {0.63) (0.03) - (065)
Provisien of imparement of investment (0 T6) (0.62) - {138)
Remeasurement of fair value of invesiment 000 0.00 - ool
Exp llowable on f brasis (0.26) 107 - 0.8l
Unearned revenue (0.72) 072 - -
Provision for employee benefit (0.10) (3 40) 005 (3 44)
Total deferved tax (assets)/ liabilities 'gﬁl 12.251 o.g_ {M
Movement in deferred tax {assets) and liabilities (net) for the year ended March 31, 2024
. (Credit)/charge in {Creditycharge in .
" Opening balance 2 Closing halance as
Particulars March 31, 2023 starement of profic other comprehensive at Mareh 31, 2024
and loss 2‘“
Property, plant and equipment (0.65) (0.37) - (L.02)
P of i of 11.38) - - (.33
Remeasurement of fair value of investment 0.01 .00 - 001
Exp lowable on payment basis 031 (7.83) . (102)
Provision for emplovee benefit (3.44) 133 (0.02) (a13)
Total deferred tax (asseis)/ liabilities _Liﬂ*na [ﬁ&ﬂ [0502! fm
7 Non-current tax assels (net)
Asat As at Asat
Particula
* March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Advance tax and tax deducted at source (net of provision for tax) - in 672
Total - &T: 6,72
8 Inventories (at lower of cost or net relisable value)
Particulars As a Asat g As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Consiruction matenials 2248 15.19 1523
Total Zg |§,l9 15.23
Inventary have been pledged as secunty against bank borrowangs, details relating to which have been given in note 20
9 Financial assets ; Investment
As at As at As at
Particul
- March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 April 01, 2022
Quoted investment (measured at fuir value through profit or loss)
Investments n mutual funds 017 016 .
Total
017 m_ 015
Aggregate book value of quoted investment 017 0.16 0.15
Aggregate market value of quoted investuent o7 b1e 015
10 Trade receivables®
i As at Asal As at
P;
ooy March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 April 01,2022
(Umsecured, unless stated otherwise)
Trade receivable considered good 86955 508,69 106.87
Unbilled revenue 2603 122 -
Total
- 89598 50001 106.87
* Breakeup of trade receivables:
Trade receivables - athers Bo4 9 508.87 10563
Trade receivables - from related panties (refer note- 37 1.07 104 1.24
Total
ot #9598 509.91 106.87

Refer note no 40 for ageing of trade receivables




Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
CIN: UIS10DL2613PT 255455

Notes and other expl ¥ infe ion to dalone financial

{Amounts are T in millions unless otherwise stated)

Cash and cash equivalents

for the year ended March 31,

2024

Particula As at As al Asa
Sriieslam March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 April 01, 2022
Balances with banks;
Currem accounts 19530 4326 18.25
Freed deposit with ongmal maturity of upio 3 months* 545 - -
Cash on hand 0.06 .05 0.06
Total 43.3] 1531
* Includes Bs 7.12 mullion (March 31, 2023 Nil, Apnl 01, 2022 Rs Nil), deposits pledged with hank against bank guarantee given and issuance of letter of credit
12 Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalent )
As at Asat As an
L March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 April 01,2022
Fixed deposns with remaining maturity of more than three mianths but less than
twelve months* 20123 131,76 9917
g.!l lﬂJ‘é !l:liz
* Includes Rs. 171,93 pullion (Mareh 31, 2023 Rs 5 73 million, Apnl 01, 2022 48 76 million), deposits pledged with hank agamst bank guarantee grven and issuance of letter of credit
13 Loans
Asa As al As ar
Particulars .
' March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 April 01, 2022
Unsecured, considered good, unless olherwise stated
Loan to related party (refer note 37) 348 210,64 235 64
Laoan to others - 43 06 a0 64
Total 345 53.70 206,28
— ———mmmm————
Notes:
(i) Details of loan and advance:

Type of borrower

Amount  of  loan
advance in the nature of]
lvan outstanding as ai
March 31, 2024

Percentage to the
total of loans &
advances in  the
mature of loans an

Loan to related parties

| 348

100 008

|Amount  of  Joan  orf
advance m the nature of]

Percentage to thel
total of lpans &

Type of bor !
Ll i loan outstanding as at pdvances  In the
March 31, 2023 RAtNFE of lonns
March 31, 2023

Loun 1o related parties 210.64 83 03%
Amount  of loan w'l'er:mhgc Yo o

d in the M.wld of loans &

Type of borrower e s 1 TGS the|

loan outstanding as  af
April 01, 2022

nature of loans af]
April 01, 2022

Loan 10 related parnes

235,64

749,539,




Solarwardd Energy Solutions Privaie Limited
CIN: ULSI00DL2013PTC 255455

Notes and other explanatory information o stand;

(Amounts are ¥ in millions unless otherwise stated)

for the year ended March 31, 2024

(i) The Company has provided following loan in pursuant 1o section 186 (4) of companies Act, 2013
e - As all As atl As at]
Particulars Rave of interest (%) pa | Purpose of loan March 31, 2024 March 51, 2023]  April 01, 2022
|Ortuson Renewables Private Limitad ’ General business - -
12.00% -
Purpose 208
March 31, 2024 12%, March | | 2
Kartik Solarworld Private Limited 31,2023 Nil (Genesal business 129 106 1.06
and April 01, 2022 Ny [PUIPOSe
One Marketing Solutions Private Lunited B.00% Seneasl husirioss - - 1531
purpose
Pioneer Fserve Private Limited 10.00% General business - 209.58 194.28
Texplas Textile India Privte Limited Nil 5::::‘: Rugimen . 450 1750
Karmic Energy Private Limited Nil Gonesal tuisiness - 38.56 1856
purpose
|Umesh Agarwal 10.00%, G | bukitiens - - 25.00
purpose
Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private limited 10.00% General bnsiniest a1 - -
Regent Garage Private Limited 7.25% - 8% Geneaal business - - 4.59
purpase
[Total 348 253.69 296.23 |
14 Other financial assets
3 As at As at As at
Particulars
o March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 April 01, 2022
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
Secunity deposits 6.21 017 0.08
Other recetvables® 1356 01s 015
Advance w emploves 0.03 - -
S 1950 032 023
* Other recenvables includes Rs. 11,56 million as on March 31, 2024 from IFFCO- Tokio General Insurance Linnited for the claim of loss of nventory durmg the year
15 Other current assets
: As atl As at As at
Yotk March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 April 01, 2022
Advances to suppliers 250 5211 41 55
Prepaid expenses 995 788 1.35
Balance with govemment authorities 7927 99 39 13 09
Total
olal 91.72 ISGIJB 55,99




Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
CIN: UIS100DL2013PTC255455

Nates and other explanatory information ta
(Amounts are ¥ in millions unless otherwise stated)

fnancial for the year ended March 31, 2024

i6_E ¢ share capital
As ar As at Asat
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Authorized share capital
10,00.000 ( March 31, 2023: 10,00,000, Apnl 01, 2022 10,00,000) equity shares of Rs 10 each
1000 1000 10 00
10.00 10.00 10.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
3,20,000 ( March 31, 2023 320,000, Apnil 011, 2022 3,20,000) equity shares of Rs, 10 each
2o 320 3.20
3.20 320 3.20
== —
16 Terma/rights attached to equity shares
i) The Company has only one class of equity shares, having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company's residual assets,

Each shareholder is eligible to one vate per share held The equity shareholders ate entitled 10 recerve dividend as declared from tme fo time.

i) In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company in proportion to the number of equity shares held by

shareholders, after the distribution of all preferential amounts

) Na class of shares have been issued as honus shares or for consideration other than cash by the Company during the five vears immedately preceding the current vear end

w) The Conpany las not allotted any fully paid up shares pursuant 1o contract without payment being received in cash

Recenciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the repurling period

(i) Reconciliation of number and amount of equity shares outstanding: No of share Amouni

As at April 01, 2022 3,20,000 320
Movement during the year - -
As at March 31,2023 3,20,000 3.20
Movement during the year - -
As at March 31,2024 E!ﬁll 3.0

{ii) Detuils of sharcholders more than 5% shares in the Company

Asat As at As at

) 01,
Pavticalise : :hrd: 31,2024 - March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
o :il' 3 "] %ofHolding | N L‘H"" i Y% of Holding No, of sharesheld | % of Holding

Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid .
Kartik Teltia 1.48.800 46.50% - 0.00% - 0,00%
Pioneer Facor IT Infradevelopers Private Lumited 1,48 800 46.50% 165100 51 599 1,65,100 51.59%
Anandi Telua - 0.00% 1,54 900 48 41% 1,54.900 48.41%

(iii) Movement of share of promotor of Campany

As at March 31,2024
No. of shares at
Particulars T the Change during ~ No. of shares at the W ot vatad shais % change during
commens ement of the year ead uf the year the year
the year
uity shares of INR 10 each fully Karuk Teltia
zd s : e g 148,800 1,48,800 16 50% 100.00%
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully Pioneer Facor IT Infradevelopers Private Linuted ?
sy 1,65,100 {16300 00) 1,48,800 46 50% DT
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully Anandi Teltia
paid-up 1,54, 900 (1549040 (0) - 000% =100, 0085
As at March 31, 2023
No. of shares at
the Change during  No. of shares at the ) % change during
Particul P N o
AR B el commencement of the year end of the year o8 foralsheres the year
the year
PE;lit:pshnes Of INR. 10 each fully Pioneer Facer IT Infradevelopers Private Limited 1.65.100 ) 165,100 s -
o (IR | ch full F il
:::Ail_l:pshares of INR 10 each fully Anandi Teltia 1.54.900 ) T PR i
As ot April 01, 2022
No. of shares at
Particulars Priosiiies Raiis the Change during  No, of shares at the % of total shares % change during
commencement of the year end of the year the year
ihe year
Equuty shares of INR 10 ench fully Pioneer Facor IT Infradevelopers Private Limited _ ;
paid-up 165,100 - 165,100 51.59% -
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully Anandi Teltin
1,54,900 - 1.54,900 48 41% -

paid-up




Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
CIN: UI5100DL2013PTC255455

Nuotes and other explanatory information to dal financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2024
(Amounts are T in millions unless otherwise stated)

17 iber Equity

Pard As at As at Asat
MEERiary March 31,2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
(i) Securities premivm account®
Opening balance 13.20 13.20 13.20
Add: Prenium on shares 1ssued during the year & =
Closing balance 13.20 13.20 13.20
(i) Ketained earning**
Opening balance 16675 32131 2546
Add Remeasurement of mutual fund - - 003
Add: Profit for the year 487.01 13428 662
Add: Remeasurement (loss)/ gain on defined employee benefit plan®** (0.05) 016 020
Closing balance 653.71 166.75 32.31
Total other equity (itii} 666.91 179.95 -l_%_L'
* Security premium: Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve 15 utilised in aceordance with the provisions of § 52 of the C Act, 2013
** Retained earnings: Retained earming are profit/loss that the Company has earned ull date less ransfer 1o other reserve, dividend or other distribution or transaction with shareholder
Ll nts of net defined benefit plans: Differences between the interest income on plan assets and the return actually achicved, and any changes in the labilities over the year due to
changes in actuanal F oF exj d wathin the plans, are r ve income and are adjusted to retaned earnings
18 Borrowings (Non current)
Particulars At Ase! A
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Secured
= Term loan from banks
Loan against property (refer note (1)) 168.00 176.16 106 09
Vehicle loan (refer note (i1)) 299 3.58 1.29
Total secured (A) 170.99 179.74 107.38
—
Current maturities of non-current borrowings
Loan against property 989 B.e9 474
Vehicle loan 0.64 0.59 1.23
Amount disclosed under the head "current borrowings” (B) 10.53 9.28 5.97
M
e ————————————————
Total (A-B) 160,46 170.46 101.41
— —
@) |Name of Bank As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Lender: Standard Chartered Bank
Rate of interest: 8 75% p.a (vanable)
Sanctioned amount: 74,50 million
Repayment: 120 Monthly instalment 1.e. Rs €93 nullion = GsH
Security details: Mortgage of personal immovable propeny by directors, Carporare o ; =
|guarntee by Pioncer Securities Private Limited and Pioneer Facor IT Infradevelopers
Private Linuted
Lender: Standard Chartered Bank
Rate of interest: 8 00% p.a (variahle)
Sanctioned amount: 110.00 million
Repayment: 120 Monthly instalment 1.e. Rs. 1 05 million 97.96 101 66 106,09
Security details: Mortgage of personal immovable property by directors, Carporate
guarantee by Ploneer Securities Private Limited and Pioncer Facor IT Infradevelopers
Private Limited
Taotal 168.00 1 TS.I_E 106,09

un \
New Dethi ) o

Y4




Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
CIN: U15100DL2013PTC255455

2.1 i =l atas

Nates and other explanatory information to
(Amounts are € in millions unless otherwise stated)

ts for the year ended March 31, 2024

(ii) [Name of Bank

As at]
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
April 01,2022

Lender: HDFC Bank Limited

Rate of interest: 8 75% p.a

Sanctioned amount: |76 million

Repayment: 60 Monthly nstalment i.e. Rs. 0.03 mullion
Security details: Hypothecation of vehiele

149

176

Lender: HDFC Bank Limited

HRate of interest: 8.75% pa

Sanctioned amount: 1.76 million

Reg ent: 60 Monthly I Le Rs 003 nullion

Security details: Hypothecation of vehicle

1.49

Lender: Yes Bank Limited

Rate of interest: 8 86% pa

Sanctioned amount: 3 74 million

Repayment: 40 Monthly mstalment 1 e Rs 0 11 million
Security details: Hypothecation of vehicle

006

129

Total

.99

3.58

1.2%

19 Non current provision

Particulars

As al
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
April 01, 2022

Provision for emplayee benefits (refer note 36)
= Gratuity

Total

20 Financial Liabilities: Current

Current horrowings

0.63

0.63
=

Particulars

As at

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
April 01, 2022

(A} Secured (refer note 18)
~From banks

Loan aganst property *

Vehicle loan

Cash eredit and working capital demand Joan (refer note (1))
Acecrued interest

Total secured borrowings (A)
{B) Unsecured

Loan from related parties (refer note (i1) & 37)
Loan from others (reler note (1))

Total unsecured borrowings (B}
Total current borrowings (A+B)

g 89 869 4.74
64 059 1.23
35383 2350 00 13841
3.90 261 1.25
368.26 261.89 145,63
—_— = 3
3732 16931 25198
45.00 4500 25.00
81,31 214.31 176.98
450.58 476.20 422.61
N

* Loan against property includes Rs 97 96 million from bank carrying interest rate of 8% (variable) p a mcluding interest acerued Further, The loan has been repaid after the balance sheet date

Notes:
(i) Details of cash credit and working capital demand loan

The Company has availed cash credit and working capital demand loan facilites from HDFC Bank Limited These facilities are secured by first pari-passu charge agaimst all current assets, present
and future, and are guaranteed by Additional Director Sushil Kumar Jain, Director Kartik Teltia, Director Rishabh Jain, Director Mangal Chand Teltia and Anand: Teltia. The loans are repayable on

demand and carry interest rale i the range of 7 00% to 9.00% p a

(i) The unsecured loans from related parties and directors are repayable on demand and carries an interest rate in the range of 11 508 10 12.00% p.a

(iii) Loan from others Rs. 45 00 million (March 31, 2023 Ry 45.00 nullion, April 01, 2022 Rs. 25.00 mullion) The loan is repayable on demand and carry a interest rate of 13 00% pa

21 Trade payables*

Perticalire As As at As at
March 31, 2024 Muarch 31,2023 April 01, 2022
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 855 184 -
tatal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises 11347 111.20 3295
Total 122.02 113.04 32.75
— —_—

Refer note no 41 for ageing of trade payables
For payable to related parties refer note 37

* Includes letter of eredit of Rs. 61.67 million (March 31, 2023 Rs. 45 52 million, April 01, 2022 Nil) availed from HDFC Bank These trade credits are largely repayable within 90 days from the

date of draw down




Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited

CIN: UL5100DL2013PTC255455

Notes and other explanatory information to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Amounts are ¥ in millions unless otherwise stated)

22 Other financial liabilities

Particul As ar As at As at
MBS March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 April 01,2022
Emplayee benefits payable 070 0.07 038
Provision for earporate social responsibility 0ot - -
Other payable* 15 60 - -
Total 16.31 0.07 0.38

* other payable of Rs 15.60 million 15 payable on account of delay in completion of engineering, procurement and construction project (EPC)

23 Other current liability

P o As at Asat Asal
e March 31,2024 March 31, 2023 April 01,2022
Addvance from customer 0.70 206.07 3976
Stawtory dues 087 514 293
Unearned revenue 2347 - 288
Total 25.04 111.21 45.57
— E—— e
Movement of contract liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and April 01, 2022:
——— 2" confract liabilities fo SnG Apr
As at As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Opening balance - 2.88 -
Additons / (utilisation) during the year 2347 (2.88) 2.88
Closing balance 23.47 - 1.38
Current 2347 - 188
Non curreat = = »
24 Current provision
As at As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 Muarch 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Provision for employee benefits (refer note 36}

Ciratuity 001 001 001
Other provisions (refer note (i) - 1353 -
Total .01 13.54 0.01

— ——
(i} Other provision includes provision for onerous contracts
Movement in provisions:
As at As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Opening balance 13.53 - -
Additional prowvsion during the vear - 13.53 -
Provision used during the year (13.53) - -
Closing balance - 13.53 -
*Ap for contracts is d ar the present value of the lower of the expecied cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cast of continuing with the coniract, which is
determined based on the costs of fulfilling the obligation under the contract and an allocation of ather costs directly related 1o fulfitling the contract,
15 Current tax liabilities (net)
Pravision for tax (net of advance tax and TDS) 38.87 - -

Tolal 38.87 A %




Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited

CIN: ULS100DL2013PTC255455

Notes and other explanatory information to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Amounts are 2 in millions unless otherwise stated)

26 Revenue from operations

Particul For the year ended For the year ended
articulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(a) Sale - engineening, procurement and construction project 496018 2,298 36
(b) Sale of products i 420
(¢} Sale of services (operation and maintenance and other SETVICESR) 44 15 2105
(d) Other operating revenue

Sale of scrap 272 -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 5!010,10 1&24.6]

Disclosure under Ind AS 115, revenue from contracts with customers

The Company undertakes engincering, procurement and construction b The ongoing contracts with

construction, engineening, designing, supply of materials, d pment of system, 1 praject

A) Di!s!muion of revenue

i, operations and
sale of goods, construction and project related activity, operation and mamntenance and other services. The revenue disclosure as below, T

l etc. The C

the disaggrega

s are for solar unlity project. The type of work in these contracts involve
derives its revenue from
of revenue

For the year ended

For the year ended

SO March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Within India 501016 2,324 61
Qutside India - =
5,010.16 1,324.61
B) The following table provides inform ation about contract asset and contract liabilities from contract with customers;
For the vear ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(i) Comtract assets and liabilities as at beginning of the year
Opening unbilled revenue 122 -
Opening unearned revenue - 288
Opening advances from customers 206 07 3976
Opening trade receivables 508 69 106 87
(ii) Revenue recognized during the year 5.010.16 232461
(iii) Contract assets and liabilities as at end of the vear
Closing unbilled revenue 26.03 122
Closing unearned revenue 23147
Closing advances from customers 070 206.07
Closing trade receivables 86995 508 69
€) The following table provides information about revenue recognised over point in time and satisfied aver time
Purttetara For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Point in time 9.06 4.69
Sansfied over time 500110 2,31992
D) Reconciliation of contracted price with sale - engineering, procurement and construction project during the year:
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particul
Y gk March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening contracted price of orders on hand 7,710,786 4,121.82
Add' Fresh orders 26 00 3,588 94
Add/ (less): Change orders recerved (net) {15.60) -
Less: Orders completed during the vear 991,93 -
Closing contracted price of orders on hand 6,729.23 7,710.76
Total revenue recogised dun ing the year 4,960 18 2,298.36
Revenue out of orders completed during the year 991,93 -
Revenue out of orders under execution at the end of the year (1) 3,968 25 2,298 36
Revenue recognised upto previous year (from orders pending =
completion at the end of the year) (i1) 23303 #2136
Tal 1o be recog d in future (1) 230 67 5, 18045
Closing contracted price of orders on hand (i+Ei+Hii) 6,729.23 7.710.76




Solarwarld Energy Solutions Private Limited
CIN: UISI00DE2013PTC 255455
Naotes and other expl. Infy i dal 1 inl for the year ended March 31, 2004

¥ to
(Amounts are 2 in millions unless otherwise stated)

17 Other Income

Z For the year ended Far the year ended
- March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
On deposits with banks 1005 5.03
Loan 1135 008
Interest on meome tax refund 005 040
Prafit on sale of property, plant and equipment 019 -
Remenasurement of fur value of mvestment o1 0ol
Gain on foreign exchange fluctuation 677 034
Liaahilities no Jonger required written back 4.96 008
Insurance claim recevable 1156 -
Total 4.4 15.91
28 Cost of materials consumed
. For the year ended For the vear ended
Sacikuian March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening stock 15.19 1523
Purchases 352039 181741
Less: Closing stock 2248 15.19
Total 381310 1.817.45
19  Engi ing, pr and ion project exp
For the year ended For the year ended
e March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Es P and @ ion project exp 436.34 252 56
Total 43634 L5155
30 Purchases of stock-in-trade
For the year ended For the year ended
Enrfialey March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Purchases 30 343
Total 3.10 343
31 E benefits e e
For the year ended For thve year ended
gl March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Salaries and wages 786 431
Contribution ta provident fund and other funds 023 0.0
Provision for gratiry expense 123 018
Staff welfare expenses {136 0.30
Total 868 4.99
31 Finance cost
Particul For the year ended Faor the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest expense on borrowing 6027 50.79
Other borrowing cost 646 815
Interest on late payment of statutory dues 1.u7 niz
Total 67.80 £9.06
33 Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Particul Far the year ended Far the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreaiation an property, plant and equipment 429 23}
Total 4.29 1.31




Solarworld Energy Selutions Private Limited

CIN: UI15S100DL2013PTC255455

Notes and other expl y infe 1o standalone financial far the year ended March 31, 2024
(Amounts are ¥ in millions unless otherwise stated)

M Other expenses

For the year ended For the year ended
fariouliny March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Repair and maintenance:-
- Plant & building 112 .
= Others L% 087
Kenit expenses® 382 242
Legal & professional expensss 1843 69
Insurance expenses 1.50 !
Travells d and 319 278
Advernsement and business promotion expenses 1.04 0.8
Payment 1o auditor (refer note 34 1) 2.20 wnis
Office expenses 0.96 039
Corporate social responsibility expense {refer note 34 2) 1.40 -
Rates & taxes 097 039
Provision for impairment of non-current imvestment - 147
[nvestment wiitten off 9.55 -
Bad debts and advances wrilten off 2063 -
Provision/{reversal) for fi ible losses on o comracts - 1353
Miscellmeous expenses 078 .64
Total 67.37 3‘&
*reperesents |eases rent for short terms leases
4.1 Payment to auditors (excluding applicable taxes)

Audit feeg 220 nis
Tax audit. GST audit and internal audit - *
Out of pocke! expenses - -

220 0.15

34.2 The details of corporate sociz! responsibility as prescribed under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2003 are as follows:
As per Section 135 of the Compades Act, 2013, Company. meeting the appheability threshold. needs to spend at least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding thee financial
Years on corporale social responsibility (CSR) activities. A C5R commattee has been tormed by the Company as per the Act. The funds were primanly allocated to a corpus and utilized through the
year on these uctivities which are specified in ScheduleV 11 of the Companies Act, 2013

For the year ended For the year ended
R March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1) Giross amount required 10 be spent by the Company durmg the year 140 -
(i) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 1.40 -
(i) Amount spemt during the vear (in cash)
= construction’ acquisition of any asset - -
- on purpose other than above 1.39 -
(iv) Shartfall / (Excess) at the end of the vear wol -
(v) Total of previous vears shortfall - -
(vi) Details of related party transactions
(vii) Where a provision s made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a ¢ | abligation, the
in the provision during the vear should be shown separareh + .
Upeming provisien . =
Additon during the year |40 -
Unlisation 139 -
Closing provision® 001 -

* The Company has deposited the unuiilised amount of Rs. 0.01 million n *PM CARES Fund” afier the bakance shest dale
35 Eamings per share (EPS) computed in accondance with Ind AS 33 "Eamings Per Share"

Basic EPS 15 caloulated by divading the profit/(loss) for the years allributable 1o equity shareholdars of the Company by the weighted average nunmiber of equity shares outstanding durng the years
Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they were entitled 1o participate in dividends relative 1o a fully pad squity share durng the reporting years.
The weighted average number of equitv shares putstanding during the years is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a nghts issue, share split, and reverse share split
{eonsobdation o"shares) that have changed the number of equity shares ding, without a ponding change m

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attrit fo equity shascholders by the weighied averuge number of equiry shares outstanding during the years plus the weighted average number

of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares uito equity shares.

For the year ended| For the year ended
March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
Net profit for the vea butable (o equity sharcholders Rs (a) “487.01 134 28
MNumber of equity share at the beginning of the vear 3,20,000 3,20,000
Add | Stock split rato 1°2 (refer note 48) 6,440,000 6,40,000
Add - Bonus shares issued during the vear (refer note 48) £i.40.00, 000 6, 40,00, 000
Add: Weighted avernge number of equity shares sssued dunng the year - -
Number of equity share at the end of the year 646,440,000 B, 46,40,000
Weighted average number of equity shares oulstanding during the vear- Basic (L) 6.46,40,000 6.46,40,000
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the vear-Diluted (¢) 6,46,40,000 6,46,40,000
Face value of equity shares (Rs. per share) (refer note 48) 5.00 300
Eaming per Share (Basic) (Rs ) (a/b) * 7.8% 08
E i Share (Diluted) (Ks ) (a/c) * 7.53 1.08
'Inliuwuhtbzmqui:mrsol‘lnd&sn_ﬁuhmicn:dddmeusmppqshwermmacumlperindand, year p d have been calculated restated after considenng the share

split and bonus issue
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36 Disclosure pursuant to IND AS - 19 - Employee benefit expense
(A) Post employment beaefit plans: The Company has the following defined benefit plans.

Granaty In accordance with the applicable laws, the Company provides for grawty, a defined benefit renrement plan (“The Gratuity Plan”) covering elymible employees. The gratnuty plan

provides for a lump sum nt {0 vesied

libilities with regard to the gratuity plan are d

L Change in present value of obligation

il ol . death, incapaciation or tesmunaton of employment that are based on last drawn salary and tenure of employment
d by actuanal val on the reparting date
As at] As all As at

| Employee tumover {50 basis pout movement)

Particalars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Reconciliation of present value of defined henefit obligation
Present value of the obligation at the beginning of the
year {14 0.66 073
Acquired pursuant to scheme of arangement - - -
Current service cast 019 013 016
Interest cost 0.40s 005 0.05
Changes in financial assumptions 004 {001 (0.06)
Changes n expenence adjustments 0.03 {0.19) (0 21)
Present value of the obligation at the end of the year 0.94 0.64 0.60 |
4 As atf Asat As all
Farticolars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 Agpril 01, 2022
Reconciliation of (wet assets)liability recognised
| Provision for gratnty recognised as per actuanal valuation 094 0.68 066
repart
Add Add Ip d for employ e ) ) i
within the Campany
Add Additional provision on account of terminal benefits 3 - _
done under arithmetic caleulation
Liability/ {asseis) ised im the Standalone balance
Loz .94 .66
[sheet . 064
= As ai As ut As al
Fariculars March 31, 2024) March 31, 2023
Present value of funded obligation 0.94 0.64 066
Fair value of plan asset - - -
Nei {asset)liability recognised 0494 064 {66
11 Amount gnised in the Standal 1 of profit and loss under employee benefits expense
(i) Expense recognised in the standalone stasement of profit and loss
: For the year ended Far the year ended As at
Fitiepliny March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 April 01, 2022
Current service cost 019 13 016
[nterest cost 0.0% 005 008
Actuanial gam/{loss) on obligavon for the vear (0.07) 021 027
Total 017 .39 0.48 |
(i) Breakup of actuarial (gain)! loss
: For the year ended For the year ended Asal
Earticulery March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01,2022
Changes in financial assumptions (00 04| 0.0 0 06
Changus in experience adjustments {0 03)) 019 021
Liii) Assumptions
Partisilare As al As at) As at
March 31, 2024} March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022,
Discount rate 712 7308, 7265
Salary escalation 10 R 10.00%% 10
Moriality 100% of IALM 2012-14 100% of TALM 2012-14 100% of LALM 2012-14
Weighted average duration of the projected benefit
obligation 17.20 1673 17.510
(iv) Sensitivity analysis
As al As all Asat
[ Particula
O March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01,2022
Decrease Increase Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
| Discount rate (50 basis point movement) 0,09 008 0,06 005 a7 006
Salary escalation rate (S0 basis pomt movement) 008 008 a0s 0.06 0.06 0,06
010 0.07 002 0.01 002 0.02
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{B)

for the year ended March 31, 2024

(v) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

As a
March 31, 2024]

As al
March 31, 2023

Q1w 1 Year 0.0] 0.01
112 Year 0.06 ooz
2to 3 Year 003 LIRS
itod Year 0.03 ooz
4105 Year 0.03 002
Fwo Yen 002 002
© Year onwards 077 0.5]

Current/ non-current classification

P As all As ] As aff
Faticiht March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023} April 01, 2022
Current 0.01 0.01 Q.01
Non current 093 063 (.65
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37 Related party disclosures:
A. List of related parties as per the requirements of Ind-AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures

Holding Company of joint venture (Pioneer Facor IT Infradevelopers Private Limited)
Pioneer Securities Private Limited

Joint venrurers

Pioneer Facor IT Infradevelopers Private Limited
Anandi Teltia (Till March 08, 2024)

Kartik Telua ( w.e £ March 08, 2024)

Companies where joint venture exercise significant influence
Pioneer Fil-med Prvate Limited

Enterprises controlled or significantly infl ed by key 2 personnel or their relatives
Ayaan Solarworld Private Limited

Pioneer Global Enterprises Private Limited ( Till July 26, 2022)
Kartik Solarworld Private Limited

One Marketing Solutions Private Limited

Simplehealthy Foods Pnvate Limned

Proneer Fincap Private Limited

Teltia Trading Private Limuted

Pioneer Eserve Private Lunited

Sushil Jeetpuria and Company

MC Telua HUF

Associate
Pioneer Global Enterprises Private Limited ( w.e f July 26, 2022)

Joint Ventures

Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Limited ( Till April 10, 2024)
Kehan Solarworld Private Limited

Futurelife Foods Private Limited (w.e.f August 16, 2021

Danton Power Private Limited (w.e f March 15, 207¢)

Subsidiaries
Futurelife Foods Private Limited (w.e.f August 02, 2020 ull August 16, 2021)
Ortusun Renewable Power Private Limited (w.e f January 10, 2024)

Key management personnel (KMP)

Mangal Chand Teltia { w e f November 30, 2021) [hrector
Kartik Telta Dwrector
Rishabh Jain Director
Sushil Kumar Jamn (w.e.f March 26, 2024) Additional Director
Aastha Gupta (w.e.{ March 26, 2024 Till June 27, 2024) Additnonal Director
Samiksha Jain ( w.e.f March 26, 2024 Till June 27, 2024) Additional Director
Mukut Goyal (w.e.f August 22, 2024) Chief Fmancial Officer
Varsha Bharti (w.e.I August 22, 2024) Company Secretary
Helatives of (KMP)
Anandi Teltua
Gauray Teltia
Aastha Gupta
Samiksha Jan
Mangal Chand Teltua
Umesh Agarwal
Sushil Kumar Jain
= S
7 o5QY 90/
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(Amounts are 2 in millions unless otherwise stated)

37.1 Related party disclosures:

B. Transactions with the related parties

financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(i) _Transactions with the related parties for the vear ended

4 For the year ended For the year ended
Porticolats March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Sale of products
Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Limited - 297
Pioneer Global Enterprises Private Linuted 1.60 »
Kehan Solarworld Private Limited 0.84 =
Sale of services
Kehan Solarworld Private Limited - 042
Sales return
Kehan Solarworld Private Limited 042 -
Purchases
Futurehfe Foods Private Limated o "
Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Limited 65.50 -
Ayaan Solarworld Private Linmited - 273
Pioneer Fil-med Private Limited - 170.29
Purchase return
Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Limited 1.52 -
Proneer Fil-med Private Limited - 213
Engineering, procurement and construction project expenses
Damon Power Private Linuted 361.22 207.78
Electricity expenses
Pioneer Facor IT Infradevelopers Prvate Linuted 0.60 0.04
Rent expenses
Fioneer Facor |1 Infradevelopers Private Limited 370 233
Pioneer Fincap Private Linuted .09 0.09
Other expenses
Futurchfe Foods Private Limited - 012
Pioneer Facor IT Infradevelopers Private Linited 0,55 -
Remuneration paid 1o KMPg
Mangal Chand Teltia 0.24 0.24
Professional fees to KMP and their relatives
Kartik Teltia 385 2.00
Rishabh Jain 347 -
Sushil Jeetpunia and Company 018 1.80
Interest income on lvans
One Marketing Solutions Private Lumited - 0.07
Orusun Renewable Power Private Limited 0.08 -
Umesh Agarwal . 45
Karuk Solarworld Private Limited 027 -
Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Limited 011 -
Pioneer Eserve Private Limited 10.89 19.23
Finance cost
Aastha Gupia 0.81 047
Gaurav Teltia 1.16 1.07
Piomeer Fil-med Private Limited 028 0.81
Fioneer Fincap Private Limited 1.99 1428
Samiksha Jain z .43
Rishabh Jain - 0.16
Sushul Kumar Jain - 0.72
Kartik Telta 141 0.67
Mangal Chand Teltia 0.28 -
Pioncer Facor IT Infradevelopers Private Limited 243 5.59

\
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(Amounts are T in millions unless otherwise stared)

tor the year ended March 31, 2024

Fasticilacs For the year ended For the vear ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Loan given
Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Linnted 65.00 -
Umesh Agarwal - 10.00
Futurelife Foods Private Limited 0.02 -
Loan received back (including interest amount)
Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Linnied 65.00 -
Umesh Agarwal - 3545
Omne marketng Solutions Private Limited - 15.37
Pioneer Eserve Private Linuted 219.39 2.00
Futurelife Foods Private Limited - -
Danton Power Private Limited - -
Loan repaid (including interest amount)
Aastha Gupta 1.00 -
Kartik Telua 14.10 10,05
Rishabh Jain - 238
Craurav Telua - 045
Pionger Eserve Private Limited - 2.00
Samiksha Jam - 548
Anandi Teltia 9.00 -
Sushil Kumar Jain - 3046
Pioneer Facor IT Infradevelopers Private Limited 105.72 51.54
Pioneer Fil-med Private Limited 50.26 8181
Pioneer Fincap Private Limited 149.24 B6.50
Loan taken
Anandi Telta 18.00 -
Kartk Telua 14.30 12.23
Mangal Chand Telua 6.00 -
Pioneer Facor [T Infradevelapers Private Limited 72.50 -
Aastha Gupta - 7.00
Sushil Kumar Jain - 3.00
Pioneer Fil-med Private Linuted 50.00 50.00
Pioneer Fincap Private Limited 2900 94.00
Recoverable expenses received
Simplehealthy Foods Private Limited - 0.0l
Futurelife Foods Private Limited a0l -
karnk Telua - 0.02
Reimbursement paid by related party on behalf of Company
Rishabh Jain 033 -
Kartik Teltia 370 4.08
Danton Power Private Limited 0.04 0.80
Sushil Jeetpuna and Company 228 037
Reimbursement payable repaid
Sushil Jeetpunia and Company 228 038
Rishabh Jain 033 -
Kartik Telua 4.35 353
Danton Power Private Limited 0.26 0.80
Reimbursement paid by Company on behalf of entity
Proneer Global Enterprises Private Limuted 0.02 0.42
Kartik Telatia - 0.02
Futurelife Faods Private Limited 0.08 -
Investment written off
Futurelife Foods Private Limited 1505 -
Investment made
Pioneer Global Enterprises Private Limited - 0.02




Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited

CIN: UlS100DL2013PTC255455

Notes and other explanatory information to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Amounts are € in millions unless otherwise stated)

37.1 Related party disclosures:

(i) The following balances are ding at the end of the reporting yoar

As at As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Borrowings*
Aastha Gupta 716 743 -
Anandi Teltia 9.00 - -
Samiksha Jain - - 510
Rashabh Jain - - 224
Pioneer Facor IT Infradevelopers Private Limited - 31.03 7754
Pioneer Eserve Private Limited - - 200
Pioneer Filmed Private Limated - - ilos
Sushil Kumar Jain - - 26,81
Pioneer Fincap Private Linuted - 11846 9810
Gauray Teltia 10.66 92.62 911
Kartik Telua 425 278 -
Mangal Chand Teltia 625 - -
*“Borrowings are inclusive of inlerest
Loans & advances*
Kartik Solarwerld Private Limited 120 1.06 1.06
Pioneer Eserve Private Linuted - 209 58 19428
One Marketing Solutions Private Limited - - 1531
Ortusun Renewable Power Private Limited .08 - -
Umesh Agarwal - - 25.00
Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Limited 011 - -
*Laoans & advances are inclusive of interest
Advance 1o suppliers
Danton Pawer Private Limited - - 176
Ayaan Solarworld Private Linuted 012 0.37 168
Other receivable
Futurelife Foods Private Limited 008 0.00 -
Danton Power Private Limited 022 - -
Pioneer Global Enterprises Private Limited 0.02 - -
Simplehealthy Foods Private Limited - - 0.01
Trade payable
Kartik Teltia - (.63 ooe
Pioneer Filmed Private Limited - - jo2
Futurelife Foods Private Limited - 012 -
Sushil Jeetpurig and Company - - 0.01
Danton Power Private Limited 1578 4025 -
Pioneer Facor IT Infradevelopers Private Limited 005 0.04 060
Trade receivable
Pioneer Global Enterprises Private Limited - 045 113
Kehan Solarworld Private Linuted 1.07 059 014

MC Telua HUF - - 0.01
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38 Finnncial instruments

This secoion gives an overview of the significance of fi

for the year ended March 31, 2024

nancial instruments for the Company and provides additional information on balance sheet items that contam financial instruments

The details of material accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basts on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class
of financial asset, financiul lability and equity instrument are disclosed in the Standalone financial statements

{u)  Financial assets and liabilities

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabihiies, It does not include fair value mformation for

not measured ot fair value of the carrying umount is a reasonable approximation of fair value

38,1 Catergory-wise classifeation of financials intruments

financial assets and financial liabilities

As at
T = T y
March 31,2024 FVIPL Amortised Cost otal Carrying Value
A. | Financial assets
Cash & cash equivalents - 203 81 203.81
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents - 201 23 201.23
Trade receivables - 895 98 895.98
Other financial assets - 19.87 19.87
Loans - 348 348
Investments 0.17 26,76 2693
Total 017 1,351.13 1,351.30
B. | Financial liabilities
Barrowings - G11.04 611.04
Trade payables - 122.02 122.02
Other financial liabilities - 1631 16.31
Total - 74937 749.37
i FVTPL- Amortised Cost Total Carrying Val
March 31, 2023 morti o8 otal Carrying Value
A. | Financial asseis
Cash & cash equivalents - 43 31 43,31
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents - 13176 131.76
Trade receivables - 50891 50991
Other financial assets - 243 243
Louns - 25370 25370
Investmenis 016 23 3247
Total 0.16 973.43 973,57
B. | Fimancial liabilities
Borrowings - 646 66 646,00
Trade payables - 11304 113.04
Other financial habilities - 0.07 0.07
Total - 755,77 759,77
As at April 01, z022 FVTPL* Amaortised Cost Total Carrying Value)
A. | Financial assels
Cash & cash equivalents - 1831 1831
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents - 99,17 9917
Trade receivables - 106 87 106,87
Other financial assets - 1182 11.82
Loans - 296,28 296 28
Investments 0.15 3476 3491
Total 0,15 £67.22 567.36
B. | Financial liabilities
Borrowings - 524.02 524,02
Trade payables 3275 3275
Onher financial Labilites - 038 038
Total - 557.15 5587.15

* Fair value through profit and loss
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The ing hods and ions were used to estimate the fair values:

1 The section explams the judg and made in determumng the fair values of the financial instruments that are
a) recognized and measured at fair value
b) measured at amortized cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements
To provide an indication abeut the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified 1ts financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the
ing standard, An ion of each level is mentioned below

For assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value as at balanc= sheet date, the classification of fair value calculations by category is summ arised below:

Particulars Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
As al March 31, 2024

Investment in mutual fund 017 " - "
As at March 31, 2023

Investment in mutual fund 016 - - .
As at April 01,2022

Investment in mutoal fund 015 - = -

Trausfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3
There were no transfers between Level |, Level 2 or Level 3 during the year ended March 31, 2024, year ended March 31, 2023 | April 01, 2022
Note: The above mformation should be read with summary of hasis of preparation and material accounting policies as disclosed in note no 2,

Determination of fair values

Fawr values of financial assets and liabilities have been det d for measurement and/or disclosure purposes hased on the following methods. When applicable, fusther inf about the
ussumptions made in determining fair values 15 disclosed m the notes specific 1o that asset or lability.

Ly

i) The fair value of mutual funds are based on price quotations at reporting date
it) The fair values of other current financial assets and financial liabilities are considered to be equivalent to thewr carrving values
1) The carrying amounts of current borrowings at fixed rate and other borrowings at floating rate of mterest are considered to be close 1o the fair value
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38 Fimancinl instrument- Fair values and risk management (continued)

The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) being the Board of Directors (Board) has overall ponsibility for the establsk and oversight of the C nisk fr k

Py

Board of Directors regularly reviews the changes in the markel conditions, management policies and proced and the ad of nsk fi ork 1n relation to the nsks faced

by the Company The framework secks to 1dentify, asses and mitigate financial risk i order to nummize porential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance

In the course of its b the Comp is exposed primanly to luctuations in foreign currency exchange rutes, interest rates, equity prices, hquidity and credit nisk, which may adversely
impact the fair value of its financial instruments

The € has to the fall g sk ansing from financial instouments,

1) Credit risk

1) Liquidity risk

3) Market risk

This note presents informanon about the Company ‘s exposure 1o each of the above risks, the Company 's objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company s
management of capital

1) Credit risk

Credit risk is the nsk that counterparty wall not meet its abligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. Credit risk encompasses of both, the direct risk
of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness s well as cancentration of risks. Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limuts and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous
basis to whom the credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for credit, Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk principally consist of trade
receivables, nvestinents, cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits and other financial assets

Credit risk exposure
The following table shows the exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date
March 31,2024

T0% of the outstanding trade recervable as at Marck 31, 2024 (March 23, 2023 - One customer., and Apal 01, 2022 © One customer)

The Company's major

public sector undertakings. For private
the Company's histarical expeniences The Company 's exposure
Board of Directors (Boacd). Credit period varies as per the contrac

s, the Company eval the creditworthiness based on pub

tual terms with the customers. Company doesa’t have significant fi

Particulars Carryi 4
: . rrying
1l i
Estimated gross carrying amount a Ex it lossei skt st ot
default ! b
provision
Other financial assets 19 87 - 19 87
Loans 348 - 348
Investments 2692 - 26.92
March 31, 2023
Particulars Carrying
Estimated gross carrvi 1 al| . : :
o Lo L Expected credit losses|  amount net of]
default] =2
provision
Other financial assets 243 - 2.43
Loans 253.70 - 253.70
Investments 3247 - 3247
April 1, 2022
Particulars “arryi
Estimated gross carrying amount at Expected credit L .
amount net of]
defauly losses iy
provision
Other financial assets 11.82 - 11.82
Loans 296.28 - 29628
Llnvestments 34.01 - 3491
(i) Trade & other receivables:
The Company has an established process to evaluate the eredit p | eredit nsk. Credit evaluations are performed by the Company before agreements
to render services are entered into with prospective customers Outstanding customer receivables are regularly d One cust F indmadually accounted for more than

¥

infi and

ta s counterparties are continuously reviewed and monitored by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) being the
in the contracts with customers,




Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited

CIN: UI5S100DL2013PTC255455

Notes and other expi ¥ infor ion to dal financial for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Amounts are ¥in millions unless otherwise stated)

Expected credit loss under simplified approach for trade receivables:

o As at As al As at
Tatficulas 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Ageing of gross carrying amount
Unbilled revenue 26.03 122 -
Not due 59395 304 73 3568
less than 180 days 27558 123.61 6726
181-365 days - 80,01 341
More than 1 year 0.26 034 051
2-3 years - - -
More than 3 vear 016 - 0.01
Gross carrying amount R95.95 S09.91 106.87
Expected credit loss - - -
Net earrying amount £95.98 509,91 106.37
(i) Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances:

Credit risk 15 limited as the Company generally invests i deposits with hanks with high credit ratings assigned by mter | and d eredit rating agencies. Counterparty credit linuts
are reviewed by the Company periodically and the limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty's potential failure to make

payment

Impairment on cash and cash equivalents, deposits and other financial instruments has been measured on the [2-month expected credit loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the
posures. The Comp iders that its cash and cash equivalents have low credit risk based on external credit ratings of counterparties

1) Liguidiry risk

Liquidity risk is the nsk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are proposed o be sertled by delivering cash or other
financial asset. The Company's financial pl g has 4. as far as possible, that there 15 sufficient liquidity to meet the liabilities whenever due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unaceeptable losses or risking damage to the Company s reputation

The Comp regularly i the rolling f 1o ensure it has sufficient cash on an on-going basis 1o meet operational needs. Any short-term surplus cash generated, over and above the
quired for working capital g and other operational req + 18 retained as cash and cash equivalents (to the extent required) and any excess 1s mvested i inlerest
bearing term deposits with appropriate o op the cash returns on investments while ensuring sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities

Maturity profile of financial liabilities

The following table details the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities wath agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of Fuancial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The tables include principal cash flows alang with interest. To the extent that interest
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves at the end of the reporting period. The contractual matunity is based on the earliest date on which the
Company may be required to pay

ticulary ] 8|
Taithen On demand| Less than 1 year| 1-S years More '::':" Total
As at March 31, 2024
Borrowings 82.32 378.52 12178 110.23 692,86
Trade payahles - 12201 0,01 - 122.02
Other financial liabilities - 1631 - 16.31

As at March 31, 2023

Rorrowings 214 31 273174 122.66 133,12 743.83
Trade payables . 113 01 0.04 = 113,04
Other financial Labilities - 0.07 - 0.07

As at April 01, 2022

Borrowings 27698 152 26 63 18 100 92 593,34
Trade payables - 26.40 635 - 32.75
Other financial habilihes - 0.38 - 0.38
3) Market risk

Market risk 15 the nisk of lass of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from adverse changes in market rates and prices (such as inlerest rates, foreign currency
exchange rates) or in the price of market risk-sensitive instruments as a result of such adverse changes in market rates and prices. Market nisk 15 attributable 1o all market risk-sensitive financial
wistruments, all foreign currency receivables and payables and all short term and lang-term debt, The Company is exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate nsk. mterest
rate risk and the market value of s investments. Thus, the Company s exposure to markel risk is a function of nvesting and borrowing activities and revenue generating and operating activities
in foreign currencies.




Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited

CIN: UIS100DL2013PT 255455

Notes and other explanatory information to stundalone financial statem ents for the vear ended March 31, 2024
(Amounts are T in millions unless otherwise stated)

(a) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk 15 the nsk that the future Standalone cash flows of a financial wstrument will Nuetuate because of changes in market interest rates The Company exposure 1o the risk of

changes in market mterest rates relates primarily to its long-term debt obligations with Noating interest rates.
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because entities in the Company, borrow funds at floating interest rates

Parthcolars As at As at As at
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022

Financial liabilities

Fixed rate borrowings B33l 217.89 27827

Vanable rate horrowings 52573 428,77 245,75

Total borrowings 611.04 646.66 524.02

Interest rate sensitivity - variable rate instruments

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for financial instruments at the end of the reporting year and the stipulated change taking place at the
beginning of the financial year and held hroughaut the reporting period in the case of instruments that have Noating rates A rensonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest
rates at the reporting date would have increased /(decreased) profit foss by the amounts as under:

Profit or loss
Particulars 100 basis point | 100 basis point
increase decrease
Asat March 31, 2024 524 (526}
As at March 31, 2023 429 14.29)
|As at Apnil 01, 2022 246 (2.46)

(b} Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency nisk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates, The fi | currency of the Company s Indian

Rupees and its revenue 15 generated from operations in India. The Company does not enter into any derivative instruments for trading or speculative purposes The Company borrowings are all
in Indian rupees The impact of foreign currency risk on the Company 15 not material,

Price risk
The Company is mainly exposed to the price risk due 10 its mvestment in mutual funds and equity nts. However, Company's equity are held for strategic rather than trading

purposes

The price risk anses due to uncertainties about the future market values of these investments. However due to the very short tenor/amount of the underlying portfolio in the funds, these do not
puse any significant price risk
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(Amounts are ¥ in millions unless ntherwise stated)

39 Capital management

The Company manages its capital structure n & maaner 1o ensure that it will be able 1o continue as a goung concemn while optimising the retum to stakeholders through the approj debt and equity balance
The capital structure of the Company consists of debt, cash and cash cquivalents and equity butable 1o equity sharcholders of the Company which compnises issued share capital (including premium) and
lated reserves disclosed in the § of Changes m Equaty

The Company’s management reviews the capital structure of the Company on an annual basis As part of this review, the management considers the cost of capilal and the risks associated with cach class of capital
The Company’s plan is 10 ensure that the geanng ratio (debi equity ratia) 15 well wathin the limit, No changes were made in the objectives, policies ar process for managing is capital during the year ended March
31, 2024, March 31, 2023, Apnl 01,2022

Consistent wath others in the industrv, the Company manitors capital on the basis of the following geanng ratio
= net devt (el borrowings and lease Labilites net of cash and cash equivalents)
+ divided by total equity’ (as shown mn the balance sheet, meluding non |

= there have been no breaches in the fi ial ¢ 15 of any bearing loans and b gs m the reported penod
Asat As at As ot

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023 Aeril 01, 2021
Cument bomowings 440,05 466.93 416,64
Noa current borrowings * 17094 179.74 107 3%
Less: Cash and cash luding bank bal 405 04 175 08 11748
Total debt (A) 206.00 47159 M54
Total equity (B} 670,11 183 15 48 71
Capital and net tlnbr!(,‘-;\*'!l §76.11 Gﬁ._'ﬂ 458,25
Gearing ratio A/C 2351% 71.03% HY.30%
* lncludes current matunities of long term borrowmngs

40 Trade receivable ageing schedule
As on March 31, 2024

Outstanding for Tolluwi riods from due date of payment
Particulars Unbilled Not due Less than 6 6 months - 1 1=2 years 21-3 years More than 3 Total
s months year years

Undisputed trade receivables- considered E_Oﬁd 2603 59395 27558 - .26 - 0 le 89598
Undispuned wade receivables- which have
sigmificant increase in credit nsk - - - . - ¥ = 5
Undisputed e recenvables- credit impared - - - - - » & ¥
Dhsputed trade receivables- considered good - - - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivables- which have L
significiut increase in credir risk - - - . ) - i
Disputed trade bles- eredil impaired - - - < - = - -
Total 26.03 593,95 27558 - 0.26 - 0.16 89508
Less: Credit i praired -

e 895,93

As on March 31, 2023

. 0 ding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Unbilled Not due Less than 6 6 months - 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
revenue e s i

Undisputed trade receivables- considered good 122 304.73 123.61 #0001 034 - - 50991

Undisputed trade recenvables- which have

significant increase i credit risk i T - - - - -
Undispuied trade receivables- credit impaired - - - - - - & -
Disputed trade recevables- considered good - - - - P - - =

Disputed trade recenvables- which have
significant increase in credit risk

Dasputed trade receivables- credit unpaired - - - - - - - -
Tutal 1.22 304.73 123.61 5001 .34 - - 509.91
Less: credit impaired &
Net S09.91

As on April 01, 2022

OQuistanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Unbilsd Not due Less than 6 6 manths - | 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
v months year vears
Undisputed wade receivables- considered - 35 68 67 26 341 051 - il 106.87
Undisputed trade recervables- which have
significant incrense in credit nsh - > . 2 i % - =
Undi. | trade receivables- credit impaired - - - - . 3 = .
Disputed trade receivables- considered good - - - . - = % -
Disputed trade receivables- which hove
significant increase in credit sk -
Disputed trade receivables- credit impaired - - . - i - % =
Total - 35.68 67.26 a1 0.51 - 0.1 106,87
Less: Credit impaired %
Net 106.87
NBEECO
3’? %o
7
Zz
? =
g *
&
~
\ &
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Notes and other explanatory inf ion lo standalone linancial for the year ended March 31, 2024
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41 Trade payable ageing schedule
As on March 31, 2024

O ding for follewing perivds from due date of payment
Particulars Not dues Less than one 12 years 2-3 years More than Total
year Jyears
Total outstandinug dues of micro emerprises and small enterprses - 855 - - - 8.55
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises - 113 46 0.01 - - 113.47
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises & - . . - -
Dis dues of creditors ather than micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - -
Total - 122.01 0.01 - - 122.02
As on March 31, 2023
0O ing for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not dues Less than one 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
year 3years
Total cutstanding dues of micro prises and small 1 = | B4 - - - 1.84
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
ENEIprises - 111 16 003 01 - 111.20
Dusputed dues of micra enterprises and small enterprises - - % ” = -
Disputed dues of ereditors other thun micro enterprises and small enterprses - - - - - =
Total - 11301 .03 001 - 113.04
As on April 01, 2022
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not dues Less than ane 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
Year Jyears
Total outstanding dues of micro prises and small enterprises - - - - - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enlerprises - 26 40 635 - 32.75
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small emerprises i - = . = =
{Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - =
Total - 26.40 6.35 - - 32.75
42 Segment reporting:
Operting segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete 1 is lable that 15 evalusted regularly by the chief d maker, in deciding how 1o allocate
and £ P :
The Company is pnmarily engaged in the business of engineering, procurement and construction (EPC) relating to imfrastructute, Information reported 10 and evaluated farly by the chief op g decisi
maker (CODM) for the purp of llscation and ing pertc focuses on the business as a whole and accordingly, n the context of Operating Segment as defined under the Indian Accounting
Standard 108, there s single reportable segment
Other infarmation
Revenue from theee customer of the Company represents 93 52% (March 31, 2023 96 83%) of the Company total revenue.
Geographical information
The following table shows the camving amaunt of segiment asscis by geographical area to which these areas are attnbutable -
Non - current assets* As at As utl Ason Apnl 0,
Jll'h__rdl_ggz-l 31 March 2023 2022
India 936 1761 2264
Outside lndia - & =
*Non-current assets excludes financial instraments and tax assets
43 Capital and other commitment
E: 1 amount of ng to be 4 on capital account and nol provided for vear ended March 31, 2024 15 Nil (March 31,2023 Nil, and Apnl 01,2022: Nif)
4 Cnﬂm Liabilities
il Asar As at As on Apnl 01,
ok i Murch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 2022
Disputed statutory bability of Holding Company {rcier note (1) & (i) kAl | - 22
Disputed loan and advances of Holding Company (refer note (iii1) - i 56 3856
Comarate fior fi 1al oblig of other related purty (refer note (iv)) 7027 - -
Caomporate guarantees for financial obligations of joint ventures (refer note (iv » S48 1551 213

) Disputed demand for Income tax includes n dispute of Rs. 7 71 million (March 31, 2023 Rs. Nil and Apal 01,2022 Rs. Nil) for financial vear 2022- 23 between the Company and income tax department for which
the Company has filed appeals with respective authorities. The Campany also believes thit the above issies. when finally serled are not likely to have any significant impact on the financial position

of the Company.
(i) Disputed demand for DVAT includes a dispute of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2023 Ra Nil and Apnl 0], 2022: Rs. 22,01 million) for fi 1al year 2016+ |7 b the Company and department of trade and faxes
(DVAT). The Company has filed an objection against the order passed by the assessing officer During the year ending March 31, 2023, the Company has | & ta ble order and gly, no

contngent liability has been disclosed

(iii) The Company bad given towl advances of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2023 Rs. 38 56 million and Apnl 01, 2022 Rs 38 56 million) in different tranches requirements to Karmic Encrgy Private Limited ("KEPL") for
Acquinng magonty stake in the sud Company The Company had alse remited as a partial pavment towards ane time settlement of Kamuc Encrgy Private Limited Loan Account with State Bank of India in
financial year 2020-21. The matter is subjudice & beng followed up
Subsequently, several disputes had arisen between Company and "KEPL" in relation to the agreement and both parties had filed Criminal complants with Economic Offences Wing of Cnme Branch of Delhi Police
amony, other Authoritics,

State bank of India had agreed 10 the request made by "KEPL" 10 release the amounts dunng the FY 23-14 and bank has released the funds in favour of the Company
{iv) The Compamy had provided a corporate guarantce 1o the bank for fimancing extended o 1ts jomt venture and related party In the event that the joint venturs and related pruarty fails to meet its repayment obligations

of loan, the Company wall be required to fulfill the loan obl However, corp was iwsted based on the joint venture's and relaed party creditworthiness and its strong repayment hastory, with
no prior defaults. Therefore, the Company has not recognized a liabilig ig cOmorale suaranise given 1o joint venture and related party. The impact of corporaie guarmice commission 1 matersal
1o the Company

LY
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Notes and other expl i to dalone fi I for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Amounts are T in millions I-lua otherwise stated)

46 First time adoption of Ind AS ('FTA")
These siandalone finaneial statemwents, for the year ended March 31, 2024, are the ficst standalone financial statements, the Company has prepared in sccordance with Ind AS. For periods up to

and inclading the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company prepared its dalone fmancial in d with g standards notified under section 133 of the Compames
Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companses (Accounts) Rules, 2014 ("Indian GAAP® or *Previous GAAP*)
Aceordingly, the Company has prepared dalone financial which comply with Ind AS applicable for the vear ended on March 31, 2024, together with the comparative period data

s at and for the year ended March 31, 2023, as described in the summary of material accounting policies,

In preparing these standalone financial statements, the Company's opening balance sheel was prepared as al Apnl 01, 2022, the Company s date of 1ransition 10 Ind AS. This note explains the
principal adjustmenis made by the Company in restating i1s Indian GAAP standalone financial stalements, mcluding the balance sheet as at Apnl 01, 2022 and the standalone financial statements
a5 at and for the vear ended March 31, 2024

A Transition of balance sheel as at March 31, 2023

o Homa M:::; “;:;:r Reclassifications** Remeasurement Prior period error M':I“:Tln:ng
Assets
| Non-current assets
Property, plani & equipment 11,19 - - - 1179
Financial Assets - = =
Fg I i) 3790 (0,10 - (5.49) 2
(i} Other financial assets - 211 - - 211
Mon-cirent lax assets (net) - in - - im
Deferred tax assets (net) ui {E) 0,84 - (.54 328 4.66
Total non curvent assets 500,53 5.73 054 (2.21) 54.58 |
Current assets =i
Inventones i) 50578 - - [45K) 59} 15.19
Financial assets
A1) Investments wilCy - 0l 006 - 0.6
Ejli] Trade receivables iFy 5018 69 - 0.73 0 a9 S09 5}
(1) Cash and cash equivalents 177.19 (133,87 - - 4332
(v) Bank balances other than (i) above - 13176 - - 131 7o
(v} Loans 453,36 {199.67) . - 25169
(vi) Others fingneial assets - 032 - - 032
Other current assets it (G 6.72 151.37 - 130 159 38
Total current assets 1.651.74 (50.00) 0,79 mam“ 1,113.72
Total assets 1,702.27 (44.27)) 133 (490.01) 1,168.30
uity & liabilities
Equity
uity share capital 320 - - - iz
Other equity 190,65 - 1.32 (12.02)) 179,55
Total equity 193.85 = 132 (12,02 183,15
Non curvent liabilities
Fmancial liabilives
(1) Borrowings 170 45 - - - 1700 45
(1) Other finaneial habdlities - - - - -
Provisions 0.63 - - - 063
Other Long term liabilinies - - - = -
Tutal non current liabilities 171.08 - - - 17108
Current liahilities
Fuiancial liabiiies
(u_: Borrowings 473.064) 261 - - 47621
ables il () G159 3oy - (402 53| 11304
1) Other financial liabiibies - 0.07 - - 007
Other current Liabilities 214,95 (3.73)) - - 21122
Provismons 1 (H) 4720 (47 20 - 13.53 13353
Current (o babilities (mvei) * 5 - -
Total curreni labilities L AST b (44.27) - (479,00 H14.07
1,702.27 (44.27) 132 (491.02) 1,168 30
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Notes and other cxpl v infi ion (o standalone financial fur the year ended March 31, 2024
{Amounts are T in millions unless otherwise stated)
Transition of statement of profit and loss for
the year ended on Mareh 31, 2023
Particulars Nates As per IGAAP| bt 5 . As per Ind AS
March 31, 2023 * Reclassifications Remeasurement Prior period error Mareh 31, 2023]
Revenue from operations e (F) 2,367 43 - 360 {d46.42)) 23461
Other income u (C) 25.50 - 0l - 25.91
Total income 2,393.33 - 3.6l (46.42)} 2.350.52
Cost of materials consumed m{G) - 186630 - (48 85 181745
Purchase of stock m trade 2.296.36 (2.293.43 - - 343
Change in mventory (450.55) (490.55) - - +
Lhrect expenses 302,13 (302 l3![ - - -
Engireering, | and - 25256 - - 25256
project expenses
Employee benefil expense i (D) 545 - (.46 . 499
Finance cost i (G 0l 38 - 02 (1.30) 549, 06
Depreciation and amorization expense 231 - - - 231
Other expense i () & 293 (13.36) - 16.00 3148
(H)
Total es 2,206.90 (981.09) (145} (34,15 2,171.25 |
Frofit before tax 186,43 S8 108 5,09 {I!,I«-_B-ﬂ 17%.24
Tax Expenses
Current lax 4720 - - - 47.20 |
Deferred rax il () (021} - 1.25% (3.25) (2.25)
Total tax expenses 46,98 - 1.25 (3.28) 44,95
Profivi(luis) after tax 13944 981.09 384 (8.99) 13429
Other comprehensive income for the year
Ttems that will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss
Re-measurerment of defined benefit plans i (D) - - 121 - 021
Income tax relating to tems that will not be w (E) - - (005) - {0 05)
reclassified to profit of loss
Other comprehensive income for the year - - 0.16 . 0.16
Total comprehensive income for the year 139.44 981.00 4.00 (4.99) 1445

New Delhi
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€ Transition of balance shevl as al April 81, 2022

Particulary Notes AsperlGAAPF) T %
March 31, 2027 B
Asveis
Non-current ansets
o . plant & equipments 413 - = - 433
Financial assety x - =
(1) Investumenta with TR {0 [ - G023 34 T
() Otfer Binarnén] asscts - 1159 - [[EE]
Mamcrrend fx asses (iwl ) - .72 - - 672
Ddeferred Lax assets (et} in (E} 0.63 - 082 102 247
Total mon current asvets 4184 (2.00) 5957
Currvnt assels
Imventories 1521 - - - 1523
Financial aswis
{i) lvestments LN = i 0 os
tir] Trade revervables 1% 87 - - -
| () Cash and cash equvalents 129.07 (110 76 - -
() Baulk balances othes than (u) shove = 9217 =
1) Lians 213 (24 83 - -
{51) Chers fmane ial wssets - [FE) - -
Orther cument assets 33,63 2 4 - =
Total current assets 62626 34 0.08 -
Total ussets w610 (15, (2] {200}
E & limbilities
| Equicy
ity share capatal 1w = - . 320
il
Ethey equaty 5121 - 267 l3u'.:."| 4351
Total equity e - (2.67) (3.02)] a1
MNon currond linbilities e —— ]
e Cuuneay Bk fitics
Finaroual Lisbilines
(1) Bonrowings [T - - - T
(0 Otdier tinassin] T balitics - % = - =
Provassons w10 - - 06 - 083
M’Eﬂwﬂﬂ“’_ﬂ 10441 = L2 5 103,06
Current linbilines
Francial |iabilitees
(1] Bomowmgs 42137 1.25 - a 42261
{m) Trade payalsles i [Li} 1133 (980 - Lo2 3266
Adunn) Crtber fiunial Babilities - 047 - - 047
Ol swrend Liabilives 4538 (2 66 138 - 45 57
Provisiins 304 5 04) [T - (0]
Curvent tax halulites inet) - = - s
| Todal current Binhilitics 51319 {1584 L9 1.U2 50134
Todal wquity & lisbilities 66910 {15 86, 0.87 =L 652,11

* The auktited fuuncil statements fpares fave been reclassified to confomi 1o Ind AS presentation vequaensens for e purposes of thas wote

New Delhi
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(Amounts are ¥ in millions unkess otlerwise siaivd)

p  Exemprions availed on first time adoption of Ind AS:

Il A% = 101 allows frd-tmse adogrien certius enenplions and centain oplional smp teorm the 7 appl of veriain requi under [nd AS The Comgany has apphed the fillowing
exempisalin and optuonal exempiions
(il Mandstory Exeeptiony
{a) Extimares :-
O assesenent of the estimates made under the girevious GAAP fusancial stalemenits, (e Company has cancluded that there 15 no recessity 1o revise the estunates under Ind AS, as there 1 no obyjective

evidence of an errar in those estimales. However, estammles that wers requited under Ind A3 but not required under previous GAAP are made by the Comgany for the relevan reparning dates reflecting
conditions exeating as al that date Key estumtes dered in pref of financial that were nol requared wder the previous GAAP are Listed below

= Faur valuainn of fancial instrurments camed at FYTE

- Determuation of the discoutited value for financial insiruments carried are amortized cost.

= bnsparient ol (inincial assews Based on the expected cradit ks model

b)) Classification and measurement of finaneial assets:

Ind AN 101 requumes an entity 1 ussexe classificabon of finaneml nssets on the hams of facts and cirousnatances cxistiig as at the date of asisisicn. Fardver, the stantard ettty measurement of fmancal
assets gocounted of amorared cust based on Gets opd cireumatances existing of the date of transdon of P " icable  Acconfingly. the Company had determined the
clasafiation of financial aveets based on facts and sircumatances that exist on the date of transition Messurenvent of fmancial assets d a1 sl has boen done P by except where
the saine 13 anpracticable

() De-recognition of financial assets and Habilities

Ind A5 101 requuises a fiest-tume adopler ke apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind A5 109 prospectively for transschons eccwrimg on or afler the date of trarwition to Ind A% However, lnd A% 101
alkowes & first-time addopter 10 apply the de-recogmition requirements i Ind AS 1049 retrospectively from  date of entity s choice provided that the wformation meeded to apply Lisd AS 109 0 fancial seets
and fimancial Labilities derscogmnized as o result of past was obtamed at fhe ume of nitially sccounting for those transactions.

There ase na iteans of fuancaal asset and lLabilies which are required 1o be de-recagrinzed s per lid AS 109

{d] Classification of security depasic
Uncler 1od AS, security deposit received/given are recorded s current finase sl Labaliny/ourvent fiancial sssets as the same is repayahies ccervabbe v demand

(i) Optional Exenption

im) Deeoneid cost far property, plant snd equipment:

Ind AS 101 pqm.u.m.um-.dupurmdmmmmmuummuh.rwanut'lup.m-y.pz.u:mieqmpmm..;wwmmeﬁmudnm--uuuMunrmwu»wm
w:uluiupmwevmfrmwmuwa:udcwudmulmdwhhnfmmmnﬂnnnkugmry dpu fon o g lsabilities A agly. the Company has elected to
measiine all of its jroperty, plani sl equipmen ai theit previous GAAP camying value 3 af tansation date Apral 01, 2022 The Company has provided the depreciation based on the extimated useful life of

{b) Business combination

Ind AS 101 provides the uptn 1 apply Lid AS 103 prospectively rom the transtion date o from 3 specitic date puor to the wansition date. This provides reliet fro full retrospestive application tiat
wiould requu of all busmeas cormd P to e Lransition date

The Company elecied 1o apply Ind AS 103 prosy b bzaness coth cecurring after (s rasation date. Husiness combinations occurring prior to the transition date huve not been restated The
greain hes apphied same exempison for myestient in assooiate and jount ventises

ubsidinries, associate and its joint ventures and impairement of finsncial assets
AAP, jount ventures were classificd o subail ) ) o lor usug the line by hine method ol the time of dich Baged on an under Ind AS 111
ot Arvangernents, these lave been sccounted a8 joimt ventte using the ot methid The 18 based on the fact that there i3 & contractual arrangerent that indwate thal

b pusuies 1o e WAt veneuzes Bave nighis t the mesets and obligations for the abilies of the joint arangement

The Compuasr has elected o carry its investema m subsidiry o asocnte and its jout venfures a1 deemed cost being curying smount wnder previous CGAAP on the Iransition date

(i} Reconciliation between previous GAAF and Ind AS
A. Transition from previous GAAP to Ind A%, balance sheet and statement af profit and boss accounts docs not hate any unpact expect the reclassilivation & required by the Ind AS

B Fin | nasets at el
Fau value of financia) assets and lLiabilites The Company has financial eseivables and pavables that are non-derivative fimancial it amets. Under previcus GAAP, these were carmed af transactions cost
less allovwances far wnpairent, if amy Ulncder Il A3, tese tiancin| assets and liabilives are sitially d b far value and subsequently nieasured at | cost, less afl flor urnpay

if any. For wanssctions entered mio an or afier the date of wanstion to Ind A%, the requitement of uutinl vecoguibion ot G value is applied prospectvely

C. Financial assets measured at FVTPL

Under previows GAAP, the imvestments i rosual funds were teodgnized at cost nder Ind AS, the same are subsequently sevogrized at faur value at the end of every financial reporting year Accordingly,
the datference benween the cost and the fair valuie of the mistial funds is recognized & a gaint [ {lons) in the statement of profit and loas

D. Bemeasurement gain/{loss) of nel defined benefit uhligution

Usndes jrevious CAAP. actuarial gains und dnsses were reooprsed in profit o Loss. Under lud AS, the scruanial gains and losses form part ol revessucnent of the net defined bensfis liabality / ssset whuch
15 in other ! e Consequently, the 121 elfect of the same has akso been recognised i other congprehrsive invome under Tnd AS matead of profit of koas Thes chasge does not
affeet tota] equity

E. Defervod tax adjustents

Under Frevious GAAP, deferred tases were vecogized for tse lay effect of tining differences between aeconntug profit sid teusble profit for the year using the income statensent approach. Under lnd AS.
delerred taxes are recognized using fhe bulance sheet spprosch for funke tax | of tempatary it between the camying valve of sssets wnd habilities and their respective tax bases. The
u-mmm.wmmmmmm.dhxmlulwmlndAS | Tead oy deny luif Dieferred tax ad are d i ! o the
e byangg transaction enhes n retained eamungs o through staterient of profit snd loss or other comprebensive meome

F. Revenue from contracts with customers:
Under Previous GAAP, revenue i secognised whan the seller has tranafesred the property n goods. Under fnd AS, the Company stiall recogmse revenue when it satisfies a perfotmance obligation by
trumsferring o promased goods or services Lo the costormers

Certamn sales contracts were accounted under the previous GAAP o o groan hasie However, unden lod AS, based on an svaluation caried oul. the ey has determined that 1 s aolmg a5 an agen! after
considerug a number of factors, ineluding, among other things, whether the Group 15 the prmary obligor under the arangerent, has iventory risk, bas customer's eredit nsk and has latitude m
mHqusmm.Thul.udurlluir\s.mmmImmnhdmambml.md“dwﬂmuﬁuﬂhLmolqu'nyuntApnlUL!u!.‘lnl!\ohnﬁllll.zm!.mﬁlhlmuxm’mlplnl’nfm
the year ended March 31, 2023

G Explanatury motes for prior peckod adjustments

Ulnder s peevionia CGLAAP, the Company 4 A that certun fo it ol ol revenie and purclise ol vear e, overbead looding in g af ey,
and estimate of lung term emplayee benrfits an the hass of actmnal valustion were enmvsesly onutted Thes resubied m an odjustmens 1 e allected Gnancial siatement line items for pror years that i
not the result of o change in sceounting policy

H. Liability an unerous cantract
Thie Company hia recognised the liabalily oo anerus comract 1 sccordance with Ind AS 37 tegartiing costh that an entity needs 1o inchude vwhion assessing whether a contract s eerous or kss-muking

L tavestiments in subsidiaries and asseciate and its jumit veniures

Under previous GAAP_ join! ventures were elasmfied ax subsad aned dingl o fun sy the line by line method a1 the tme of i EHased o an nder bnd AS | Uese
subsidiaries are reated a5 jound venture because the Compony has joint cortrol over the ubove aiiies and there is no | ar any other facts and that indicate that the
purties 1o the jomn! venture have nghts to the assets aud obl far the luabalities of the poist Compruy has alsa joint control over abave corpanies a8 the appointment of its directors and
the allosation of voting rights for key business dectsioms requare approval of Lhe sharehald

J. Regronping | reclassification® *
Appropriate adjustients bave been made in the standalote financial information, wherever required, by & reclastication of the corresponding ilems of meome. expenses. nsseis, lisbilines and cash flows i
ander 0 bring them 1 lue with the Ind AS presentation requirements




Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
CIN: U15100DL201 3P TC255455

Notes and other explanatory information to
(Amounts are 2 in millions unless otherwise stated)

financial stat for the year ended March 31, 2024

46  First time adoption of Ind AS (FTA")

Reconciliation between previous GAAP and Ind AS

The followng reconciliations provide the explanation and qualification of the differences ansing from the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS in accordance with

Ind AS 101, First nme adaption of Indian Accounting Standards

1. Equity reconciliation

i Asm Asat
Particulars Natly March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Equity as reparted under previous GAAFP 190 .65 51.21
Ind AS udjustments
Remeasurement of gratwity and other comprehensive income m (D) - (0.66)
Financial assets measured st FVTPL 1w (C) 003 0.02
Remeasurement of mutual fund w(Ch 0.03 o3
Prior period adjustment of processing fees an borrowings w (G 1.30 (1.02)
Prior peniod adjustment of Impairment on investment w (G (549) (3.02)
Remeasurement of revenue as per Ind as 115 w (F) 1.22 (2.8%)
Prior peniod adyustment on mventary m (G 1.94 -
Priot penod on provision for hiability on onerous eontract i (H) (13.53) -
Deferred tax impact on the aforesaid adjustments i (E) 383 184
Other equily as per Ind AS 179,95 45.51
2. Total comprehensive income reconciliation

i As at
Particulars Notes March 31, 2-92
Profit after tax as per previous GAAP 139.44
Ind AS adjusiments
Fair vilue adjustments:

Investments at fair value through profit and loss account 1w (C}) a0
Remeasurement of employee benefit obligatian (net of tax) w (D) 046
Prior period adjustment of Impairment on investment i (G (16.00)
R of | ing feez on borrowings 1 (H) 232
Remeasurement of revenue as per Ind as 115 1 (F) 4.10
Prior period adjustment on inventory (G 1494
Deterred tax impact on the aforesaid adjustments i (E) 204

Net profit after tax as per Ind AS 134.28
Other comprehensive income (et of tax) i () 016
Tatal comprehensive income as per Ind AS 134,44
3. Cash Mow reconciliation for the year ended March 31, 2023

As per previous  Ind AS Adjustments As per Ind As

GAAP

Net cash generated from(used in) operating activitics (38.01) (33.40) (7141)
Net cash flows used in investing activities 1564 17.19 3283
Net cash flows from financing activines 70,48 (6 90) 63 58
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 48.11 (23.12) 25,00
Cash and cash equivalents at the Apnl 41, 2022 129.1 11077 183
Cash and cash equivalents at the March 31, 2023 177.19 87.65 4331
Statement of cash Now
Other than effect of certain reclassifications due to difference in presentation, there was no other material effect of cash flow from i ing, i 8. g activities

For all penods presented




Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
CIN: UI‘I.MLNISFI'C‘]M!
Notes and other inf ion (o Jal

(Amounts are T h ‘millons wnless otherwise stated)

47 Other Statutory Information

(i) The Comgany do oot have any immovable property which 15 not held in the name of Compary.
(i) The Company has not provided any loan o7 advances 10 specified persons

{iih The Company do not luve amy benami property, where any proceeding has heen imitiated of pending agiinsi the Compaiy for any berami property.
{ivh The Comypany has nol avatled amy facilities from hanks «om the basis of secunty of curent assets.
{v) The Companr is not declared wilful defoulter by any bak or any financil imstitunon

beoff

(v The Company docs a0l have aiy

with

for the year ended March 31,2024

(v} The Company does not bave any cliarges of satisfaction which 15 m 10 be tegistered with ROC beyond the stanitory penod

{vili The Courpany e e et received any fund from any person or entity, including foreign entities (funding party ) with the understanding (whether tecorded (n writing or otherwise) that the Company shall

(@) directly or indivectly lend or inyest i other persons or entitiss. idettified in any nanner whatsorver by or on belalf of the Funding Party (ultimate beneficiancs). o
(b} peovide amy guaraniee, secunty or the like on behalf of the ulnmate beneficianes,

(i The Compuny has not advanced or inaned or uvested funds 1o any other person or entity, imchding foresgn ennies

with the

thal the

ta) directly or indirectly lend of duvest in siher persons or entities identified 1 ary manner whatsoever by of on belialf of the Company (ultinate benefickuies), or
(b)) provade any guaranies, secunity or (he like 10 or on belalf of the vitimate beneficianes

(x) The Company does mot have any tmpsaction which i ot recorded i the books of sccounts that has been susrendered or disclosed a3 incame during the year in the fax assessments under the Income Tax At 1961 (such s, search or surey of aiy
other televant provisions of the ncome tax Act, 1961)

() The Companny las ol traded or unvested in cryplo currency or virual currency durng the financial year

(i) The Compay Has complied with the nnmber of lavers for s in downstream compaucs prescribed under chause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Coupanies (Restriction on muber of Layers) Rules, 2017

Aty The Compuarm has mot entered into amy soheme of

which

bas impact on current ar previons financial years

(i The Company had sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks and/or financial institutions in the previous years on thie basis of secunty of curment asscts of the Company. The quarterly returns,stalements

filed by the Company with such banks and financial are generally in with the dued books of accounts of the Company excepl given as below® -
Perivd Ended| Nm'lb.mli Waorlding capital limit Nuture of current assels Natore of currest| Amount as per] Amount as pe Difference Reason for material discrepancics)
sanction offered as security rent b bili buoks (Ra. summary (Rs.
(R, inmi
Trade recervables 1,208 07 209 48 1,41} explined by the managerent, the Quartedy
Sep-21 HDFC bank tinipo | Fackpedsu g on mcrent : L2 —t
ayables P
agsete Trade payabl 101 88 101 8% 3 with Banks were prepared snd
Dec-23 HDFC bank 1,174,00 Pari-passu charge on current Trade recetvables 115561 1,187.79 {119} fiked before the of all financial
itk isets Trade payabiles 11936 18.96 0,40 |closure which led 1o the above differences between
Inventory the books of accounts and quarierly statement
Parkp oo el : 2248 - 2248 i
Mar-24 HDFC bank L7400 et Trads voceivables e Sl e submitted with Banks hased on provisiona] books of|
Traide pavables 122.02 117,92 4.1¢ |account.
[sinck book debi

* Company has 1ot filed reuri for the first quaster of year ended March 31, 2024 and for the year ended Masch 31, 2023 and Apnil 01, 2021, afterwards the quarterly retums or

aod other

Tinancial

on ageing analysis of the
queTers

48 Subsequent Events

filed by the Company with such banks or financial

are ot in

with the i

d books of account of the Company of the respective

(i) The Board of directors of the Corpaiy in their meeting held on April 17, 2024 und Apnl 22, 2024, has approved 2 Private Placement of 16,874 and 14,673 equity shates at 4 issoe price of Rs 15,615 and Fs 17068 T/- per cquily shures
respectively. Further these shares fave been allotterd i two tranches on April 17, 2024 (16,874 shares) and April 22, 2024 (14,673 shares).

(i O April 10, 2024, the Company hus estered im0 a share transfer agreement with Tellia Trading Private Limited, Rishabh Jain and Sushil Kunar Jain. Pursust o which the Company has tansferred its 1350000 shares i Ankitn Agro and Faod
Processing Private Limited to the memioned individuals for Rs. 3867 each equity shares.

iy The Company has increased i3 Anthorised capital trom Ruapees 10 nullion Hupees 430 million alver the appiovil seughi i sharcholder’s meetng bekd on Auguat 12, 2004,

(iv) The Board of Directors, ot teir meeting held on Augast 19, 2024, reconmended for the sub-division of equity shares of the Company from existing face value of INR. 10/~ each o face value of [NR. S/ each (ie split of 1 equity share of INH

10/ each o 2 equity shares of INC 5/~ cach), s the same has been apy

d by the sh

mthe E

dimary General Meeting of the Company held on August 22, 2014

(v} On Septemiber 13, 2024, the board proposed the issue of banus shares of 70.00,000 equity shares of Rs 10/- each in the proportion of 1 100 Le. 100 (One Hundred) Bonus Equity Shares of Rs 8- each for every | (one) fully paid-up Equity Share
of Hs. §/- each held by the existing shareholders of Company.

(vi} The Company las passed a special resolution i the Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EGM) of the sharchalders of the Compatsy on August 24, 2024 1o convert the Compam Trom Private Limited o Public Limsted wid consequently Companry has

fiked fur fiesh cenificate of

soliware for

49 The Compuany has used

S0 Previous vear figures huve been regrouped

Summary of hasis of p anid material

wed, whesever

2 pulicies

2

Ser accompunying notes that Torm an intergal part of these standalone flinancial statements

As per our report of even date

5 5 Kothari Mehia & Ca LLP
Chanered Accounians
Firm's Reglstrution No 0007S6RMNS0044 1

- i,
__-—.'.'-"-—."‘
Sunil Wahal
Membership No 087294
Partnes
Place: New Dell
Date: September 16, 2024

DARFN And Company
(‘h.\nered Accouriants

Pankaj Gupta
Membership No 413438
Firtner

Place New Delli

o conform 1o current year's classification

The approval from Registrar of Company (ROC) las not reoefved 111l the date of approval of the financial statements.

its books of aceount which the Compary has sot implemented the feature of recording sudit rail (edit log) facility (0 the accomnting software dusing the year

For mml vn behall of the Board of Directors
Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited

-

Rishabh Jain
Director

DIN 05115384
Place:

({/\: e d

Mubat Goyal
Chuef Fusansial Officer

Director
DIN G6610 1405 ©

Place:
Date:

Varsha Bharti
Comnpanry Secretary
Membership No. A37545
Place:
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We b ¢ audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Solarworld Energy Solutions Private
Limited (the “Holding Company™). and its subsidiary. (the Holding Company und its subsidiary together reterred
10 as the “Group™}. its associate and its joint ventures, which comprise the consulidated balance sheet as al March
31. 2024. and the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income). the
consolidated statement of cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended on
that date. and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies
and other explanatory information (hereinafier referred to as the “consolidated financial statenents™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according lo the explanations given to us. and based on the
consideration of reports of the other auditors on separale financial statements of the subsidiary . associate and juint
ventures referred 1o in the other matters section below, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the *Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and Iair
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of aftairs of the
Group. its associate and its joint ventures as at March 31, 2024, and their consolidated profit. their consolidated
total comprehensive income. their consolidated cash flows and their consolidated changes in equity Tor the yvear
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under seetion 143(10) of the Act.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit ol
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent ol the Group. its associates and
joint ventures in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants ol [ndia
("ICAI') wgether with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements under the provisions ol the Act and the rules thereunder. and we have fulfitled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained together with the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred
10 the other matters section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

I'he Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsiblc for the other information. The other
inlormation comprises the information included in the Director’s Report. but does not include the linancial
statements and auditor’s report thereon. The Director™s Report is expected to be made available 1 us after the date
ol this auditor’s report.

Our upinion on the consolidated linancial stalements does not cover the other inlormation and we will not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In conniection with our audit of the consolidated linancial statements. our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and. in doing so. consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated [inancial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit. or
otherwise appears o be materially missiated.

Page 1 of 10
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When we read the Director’s Report. if we conclude that there is & material misstatement therein. we are required
Lo communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

T'he accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding Company’s Board of
Directors. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134{5) oI
the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements that give atrue
and fair view of the consolidated financial position. consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash ows of the Group including of its
associate and ils joint ventures in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other accounting principles generally aceepted in
India. The respective Board of” Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate and joint
ventures are responsible for maintenance of adeguate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for sateguarding ol the assets ol the Group including its associate and joint ventures und lor preventing and
deteeting frauds and other irregularities: selection and application ol appropriate accounting policies: making
Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design. implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls. that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
ol the accounting records. relevant w the preparation and presentation ol the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due (o fraud or error, which have
been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the
Holding Company. as aloresaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group and of its associate and its joint ventures are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of
ILs assoctate and joint ventures to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable. matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend 1o liguidate
the Group and of'its associate and its joint ventures or 1o cease operations. or has no realistic alternative but 1o do

S0.

I'he respective Boards of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates and joint ventures
are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its associate and joint

venlures
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are Lo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated linancial statements as a4 whole
are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and W issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accardance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstalements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

Page 2 of 10
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Ag part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing. specified under section 143(10) of the Act we
exercise professional judgment and maintain prolessional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement ol the consolidated financial statements. whether
due to fraud or error. design and perform audit procedures responsive Lo those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sulficient and appropriate 0 provide a basis lor our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error. as fraud may
involve collusion. forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations. or the override ol internal control:

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order 0 design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i} of the Act we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls:

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management:

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis
ol'accounting and. bused on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and of its associate and
joint ventures Lo continue as & going concern. I we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated linancial
statements or, il such disclosures are inadequate. to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However. future events or conditions
may cause the Group and of'its associate and joint ventures Lo ¢ease Lo continue 4s 4 going concern:

e [avaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the consolidated financial statements.
1ether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

mncluding the disclosures. and w
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obuain suflicient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group and of its associate and its joint ventures, to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audit of consolidated financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial
statements. of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated
{inancial statements, which have been audited by the other auditors. such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction. supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance ol the Holding Company and such other entities included
in the consolidated financial statements ol which we are the independent auditors regarding. among other matlers.
the planned scope and timing ol the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal financial controls that we identity during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence. and o communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable. related saleguards.
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Other matters

a.

The consolidated financial statements includes total assets of Rs. Nil, and net assets of' Rs, Nil as at March
31. 2024, total revenues of Rs. Nil and net cash inflows/(outflow) net Rs. Nil for the vear ended on that
date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements in respect of one of its subsidiary. The
consolidated financial statement also includes Group’s share of total loss after tax Rs. (2.88) million for
the year ended March 31. 2024, and total comprehensive income of Rs. (2.88) million for the year ended,
March 31, 2024, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of two joint ventures,
The financial statements of these subsidiary and joint ventures have been audited by one of the joint
auditors ("DARPAN and Company”) of the Holding Company in his individual capacity whose reports
have been furnished to us by the management and our opinion so far as it relates w0 the amounts and
disclosures included in respect ol the aforesaid subsidiary and joint ventures is based solely on the audit
reports issued by one of the joint auditors in his individual capacity.

Our opinion on the consolidated lnancial statements above and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below. is not modified in respect ol the above matters with respect to our reliance on the
work done and the reports of the other auditors.

The consolidated linancial statement includes Group's share of total profit alter tax Rs 23,22 million for
the year ended March 31. 2024, and total comprehensive income ot Rs. 25.19 million lor the y car ended.
March 31, 2024, as considered in the consolidated tinancial statements. in respect ol one associate and
ils two joint ventures, whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These financial statements
have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and
our opinion on the consolidated financial statement, in 50 Far as it relates t the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these associate and joint ventures, and our report in terms of subscction (3) of
Section 143 of the Act, insofar as it relates to the aforesaid associate and its joint ventures, is based salely
on the reports ol the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below. is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect o our reliance on the
work done and the reports of the other auditors.

I'he consolidated tinancial statements of the Group including associate and its joint ventures companies
tor the year ended March 31, 2023, were audited by one ot'the joint auditor whose repont dated September
12. 2023, expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements.

I'he comparative finaneial information ol the Group for the vear ended March 3 1. 2023 included in these
consolidated financial statements. are based on the previously issued statutory Nnancial statements
prepared in accordance with the Companies { Accounting Standards) Rules. 2021, specified under Section
133 and other relevant provisions of the Act audited by one of the joint auditor whose repart tor the vear
ended March 31. 2023 dated September 12, 2023 expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those
financial statements, as adjusted for the differences in the accounting principles adopted by the Company
on transition to the Ind AS. which have been audited by us.

The comparative financial information of the Group on the transition date opening balance sheel as at
April 01, 2022 included in these consolidated financial statements, are based on the previously issued
statutory [inancial statements prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules.
2021, specilied under Section 133 and other relevant provisions ol the Act audited by the predecessor
auditor whose report for the year ended March 31, 2022 September 24, 2022 expressed an unmoditied
audit opinion on those financial statements. as adjusted for the differences in the accounting principles
adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS. which have been audited by us.
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I, With respect to the matiers specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
2020 (“CARO™ the “Order™) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(1 1) ol the Act,
1 be included in the Auditor’s Report. according to the information and explanations given 1o us. and
based on the Auditor’s Reports on the financial statements of Company and its subsidiary. associate and
ity joint ventures as at and lor the year ended March 31. 2024, included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group and its associate and its joint ventures. there are no matter which require
reporting as specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order,

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act. based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of

the other auditors on separate financial statements and other financial information of the subsidiary,
associate and ils joint ventures incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act. we report. Lo the extent applicable. that:

(a)

(b)

el

(©)

(N

we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and beliet were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements:

in our opinion. proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears {rom our examination of those
bioks and the reports of the other auditors. except for the matiers stated in the paragraph 2(i)vi]
below on reporting under Rule |1(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014,

the consolidated balance sheet. the consolidated statement of profit and loss including other
comprehensive income. the consolidated statement ol cash lows and the consolidated statement of
changes in equily dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant bouks ol account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

in our opinion. the aforesaid consolidated financial stalements comply with Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015:

On the basis of the wrilten representations received from the dircctors of the Holding Company as
on March 31. 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary company. associate company and its joint venture
companies incorporated in [ndia, none of the directors of the Group companies and its associate and
its joint venture companies incorporated in India is disqualified as un March 31. 2024 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) 0 ['the Act:

Based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate linancial
statements of the subsidiary. associate and its joint ventures companies. we report that the provisions
ol section 197 read with Schedule V 1o the Act are not applicable to the Holding Company and its
subsidiary. associate and its joint ventures companics incorporated in India whose linancial
statements have been audited under the Act since none ol such companies is a public Company as
defined under section 2(71) of the Act as of March 31. 2024, Accordingly. reporting under section
197(16) is not applicable.

The qualitication relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are
as stated in paragraph 2 (b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph

Page 5 0of 10




SS KOTHARI MEHTA & CO. LLP DARPN AND COMPANY

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No. 000756N/N30044 | Firm™s Registration No. 016790C
Plot No, 68, Okhla Industrial Estate Phase-111 B-47. Gali No. 4. Mohan Baba Nugar
New Delhi-110020 Badarpur. New Delhi - 110044

(h)

(1)

2(i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) ol the Companies (Audil and Auditors) Rules. 2014 (as
amended):

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference Lo consolidated
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A” which is based on the auditors’ reports ol'the Holding Company. subsidiary company.
associate company and its joint ventures companies incorporated in India. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements of those companies.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) the consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated Iinancial position of the Group. its associate and its joint ventures as detailed in note
44 10 the consolidated financial statements:

(i1} the Group. its associate and its joint ventures did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts [or which there were any material foreseeable losses as at March 31, 2024:

(iii) there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the investor education und
protection fund by the Holding Company and subsidiary company. associale company and its joint
ventures companies covered during the year ended March 31, 2024,

(iv) (a) the respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company. its
associate and its joint ventures company which are companies incorporated in India whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such
subsidiary .associate and its joint ventures company respectively that. to the best of their knowledge
and belief. as disclosed in note 50 o the consolidated financial statements, no tunds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed tunds or securities premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or its subsidiary company. associate and its joint
ventures company Or in any person(s) or entity(ies). including foreign entities (*the intermediaries™).
with the understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise. that the intermediary shall,
whether. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behall of the Holding Company. or any such subsidiary company. associale
company and its joint ventures companies (Cthe Ultimate Beneficiaries™ ) or provide any puarantee.
seeurity or the like on behall the Ultumate Beneficiaries:

(iv) (b) the respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company. associale
and its joint ventures companies which are companies, incorporated in India whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such
subsidiary, associate and joint ventures respectively Lhat, to the best of their knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the note 50 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, no funds have
been received by the Holding Company or its subsidiary company . associate company and its joint
ventures companies [rom any person(s) or entity(ies). including foreign entities (‘the Funding
Partics’). with the understanding. whether recorded in writing or atherwise. that the Holding
Company, or any such subsidiary, associate and its joint ventures companies shall, whether directly
orindirectly. lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (*Ultimate Beneliciaries”) or provide any guarantee. security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries: and:
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(iv) (¢} based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the
subsidiary. associate and joint ventures which are companies incorporated in India whose {inancial
statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come 10 our or other auditor's notice that
has caused us or the other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) ot
Rule T1(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

(v) The Holding Company. subsidiary, associate and its joint ventures companies have not declared
or paid any dividend during the year ended March 31. 2024,

(vi) Based on our examination. which included test checks and that performed by the respective
auditors of the subsidiaries, associate companies and joinl ventures. which are companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, the Holding
Company, its subsidiaries, associate companies and its joint ventures incorporated in [ndia have used
accounting software for maintaining books of account which have a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and that have operated throughout the vear for all relevant transactions recorded in
the software, except in respect of Holding Company which has used an accounting sollware for
maintaining its books of accounts for the year ended March 31,2024 which has feature olrecording
audit trail (edit log) facility. However. the audit trail feawre has not been enabled and operated
throughout the year lor all the transaction recorded in the accounting software,

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable trom April 1, 2023.
reporting under Rule 11(g) ol'Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit
trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the inancial year
ended March 31,2024,

For 8 S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP For DARPN AND COMPANY
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 000756N/N500441 sienrig Registration No, 016790C

P

/ ‘M"I
Sunil Wahal
Partner

Membership No. 087294
LIDIN: 24087294 BKAITOX2442

Pankaj Gupta

Partner

Membership No. 418438

UDIN: 24418438BK ABLX3995

Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
Date: September 16, 2024 Date: September 16. 2024
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Solarworld Energy
Solution Private Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024,

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Group its associale and joint ventures
as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of Solarworld Energy Solution Private Limited (hereinafier referred to as
“Holding Company ™} and its subsidiary Company . its associate Company and its joint ventures companies. which
are companies incorporated in [ndia. as of that date.

Management's Responsibility and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

I'he respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company. its subsidiary Company. associate Company and its
joint ventures companies. which are companies incorporated in India. are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls with reference o consolidated fnancial statements based on the internal
control with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria established by the respective Companies
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants ol India ("ICAI”). These
responsihilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business. including adherence to
the respective Company's policies. the safeguarding of'its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. and the timely preparation ol reliable financial
information. as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors” Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference 10 consolidated
tinancial statements of the Holding Company . its subsidiary company. associaie company and its joint ventures
Companics. which are companies incorporated in India. based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidanee Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the ~Guidance Note™)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing ("SA™). prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Act. to the extent applicable o an audit of internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements was established und maintained and i1 such
controls operated effectively in all material respect.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal [inancial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit ol internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference Lo consolidated tinancial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists. and testing and evaluating the design and operating etfectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement. including the assessment of the risks
ol material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. whether due o fraud or error.
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We helieve that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by other auditors ol the
subsidiary company . associate company and joint ventures companies. which are companies incorporated in India.
in terms of their reports referred Lo in the other matters paragraph below. is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide
2 basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference o consolidated lnancial statements
ol the olding Company. its subsidiary company. its associate company and its joint ventures, which are
companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process designed
1o provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated
financial stalements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements include those policies
and procedures that ( 1) pertain to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary Lo permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted aceounting principles. and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
socordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company: and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition. use. or disposition ol the
Company's assets that could have u material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations ol internal financial controls with reference o consolidated financial
statements. including the possibility ol collusion or improper. Management override ol controls. malerial
misstatements due to error ar traud may oceur and not be detected. Also. projections ol any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements Lo future periods are subject to the
visk that the internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

Opinion

In our opinion o the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of the reports of the other auditors referred to in the Other matters puragraph below. the Holding
Company. its subsidiary. associate and its joint ventures, which arc companies incorporated in India, have, in all
material respects. an adequate internal financial controls system wilh relerence o consolidated financial
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated linancial statements were operating
¢lTectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the criteria for internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
linancial statements established by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants ol India.

Other matters
Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(1) of the Acton the adequacy and operating eflectiveness of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements in so far as it relates to one joint venture

Company. which is incorporated in India. is based on the carresponding reports of the auditors of such company
incorporated in India.
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I'he audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statlements of one sy bsidiary Company, one
associate and three joint ventures which are companies covered under the Act. and reporting under Section
143(3)t1) is exempted vide MCA notification no. G.S,R. 583(E) dated 13 June 2017 read with corrigendum dated
14 July 2017,

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of the above maiters.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP For DARPN AND COMPANY
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm®s Registration No, 000756N/N30044 | Firm’s Registration No. 016790C

@_
*
Sunil Wahal
Partner
Membership No. 087294

UDIN: 24087294BKAHOX2442 UIDIN: 24418438BKABLX3995

Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
Date: September 16. 2024 Date: September 16, 2024
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Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited

CIN: U15100DL2013PTC255455

Consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2024
({Amounts are ¥ in millions unless otherwise stated)

X . Asat Asal As at
Suaa Note Mo March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
A, Assels
(1) Non enrrent asects
(2} Property, plont and equipment 3A 926 1176 432
(h) Goodwill iB .00 - E
{c) Financial assets
{1} Investments 4 88.13 68.28 36.70
(11) Others financial assets 5 0.07 211 1159
(d) Deferred tax assets (net) L] la17 4.67 246
(&) Non current tax assets (net} 7 - itz 672
Total nan-current assets 113.63 20.54 81.7%
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories & 2248 15.19 1523
(b) Financial asseis
(1) Investments 9 0.17 018 015
(11) Trade recervablas 10 #9598 509 91 10687
(iit) Cash and cash equivalents 1 204 81 43.31 1831
(1v) Bank balances other than {11) above 12 201.23 13176 9917
{v) Loans 13 1.40 25370 296,28
(v1) Others financial assets 14 19,80 0.32 023
(c) Other current assets 15 91.70 159.38 5599
Total current assels 1,436.57 1,113.73 592,23
Total assets (1+2) 1,550.20 1.204.27 674,02
B. Equity and liabilities
(1) Eqaity
{a) Equity share capital 16 320 .20 320
{b) Other equity 17 73275 21592 6744
Equity attributable to owners of the holding Company 735.95 . 219.12 70,64
Total equity 735.95 219.12 764
Lishilities
(2) Non current liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 18 160 46 170.46 10141
{b) Provisions 19 093 063 0.65
{d) Other non-current liabilities
Total uon-current liabilities 161.39 171.09 102.06
(3) Current liabilities
() Financial liabihues
(1) Borrowings 20 450,58 47620 422 61
{11) Trade payables 21
total cutstanding dues of wiero enterprises and small 8.55 1.84 -
enterprises
total outstanding dues of creditors vther than micro 113.49 111.20 3275
enterprises and small enterprises
(i1} Other financial Liabilities 22 16.31 0.07 038
(b} Cikier current liabilites 23 25.05 211.21 45.57
(e) Provisions 24 o1 13.54 001
{d) Current tax hiabilities (net) 25 3887 . =
Total current liabilities 652.86 814.06 501,32
Tatal labilities (2+3) 814.25 985.15 003.38
3 ibilitics (1494
Tatal equity and liabilities (142+3) iISSvI}.ZG zéﬂsu? 674.02
Basis of preparation and malerial accounting policies 2
See accompanying notes that form an intergal part of these consolideted ‘ancial stutem ents
As per our report of even date
5 5 Kothari Mehta & Co LLP DARPN And Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
Firm's Registration No.0007 S6N/MNS00441 'sum(:;m No 016790C 0}’) ;’_/\N
== " ‘/ .
nil Wahal Pankaj Gupita Rishabh Jain Kartik Teltia
Membership No. 087294 Membership No 418438 Director Director
Partner Partner DIN: 05115384 DIN 06610105
Place: New Delhi Place: Place Place. [J
Date September 16, 2024 Date. Date: Date:
Ly \
Mikut Goyal Varshh Bharti
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place, Membership No. A37545
Date: Place:

Date:



Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
CIN: UI5100DL2013PTC255455

Consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

{(Amounts are ¥ in millions unless otherwise stated)

il Nofe no For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Income;
(a) Revenue from operations 26 5,010.16 2,324.61
(b) Other income 27 44.86 2591
Total income (I} 5.055.02 2,350,52
Expenses:
{a) Cost of matenals consumed 28 381310 1,817.45
(b} Engineering, procurement and construction project expenses 29 436.34 252.56
(&) Purchases of stock-in-trade 30 KR} 343
(d) Employee benefits expense 31 8.68 4.99
{e) Finance costs 32 67.80 39.06
(1) Drepr and 100 €Xp 33 428 2.31
() Other expenses 34 60.35 3149
Total expense (IT) 4,393.65 2,171.29
Profit before share of profit/(loss) of an associate/ joint venture 661.37 179.23
Share in profiv{loss) of joint ventures/associate (net of taxes) (IV) 22.34 14.07
Profit before tax V (I1+1V) 683.71 193.30
————
Tux Expense: 6A
(1) Current tax expense 172.29 4720
(2) Taxrelated to earlier years (0.01) -
(3}  Deferred tax (credit)/charge (5.48) (2.26)
Total tax expease (V1) 166.80 44.94
Profit for the year VII (V-VI) 516.91 148,36
Other compreheasive income /(loss) A
(1) Items that will not be reclassified (o profit vr luss
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans gain/ (loss) {0.07) 021
Income tax relaling to these iems 0.02 (0.05)
(i1} Share i other comprehensive income of joint ventures/associate (net of taxes) (0.03) (0.04)
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) (VIII) (0.08) 012
Total comprehensive income for the year (VIIHVII) 516.83 148.48
Profit for the year attributable to :
Owmier of the Company 516.91 148.36
Non-controlling interests - -
516.91 148.36
Other comprehensive income attriburable to :
Owner of the Company (0.08) 012
Non-controlling interests - -
(0.08) 0.12
Total other comprehensive income attributable to :
Owner of the Company 516.83 148.48
Non-controlling interests o .
516.83 148.48
Earnings/ (loss) per equity share attributable to owners of the holding Company
Basic (Rupee) 35 8,00 230
Diluted {Rupee) is 8.00 2.30
Basis of preparation and material accounting policies 2
See accompanying notes that form an intergal part of these lidated fi I stat t
As per our report of even date
55 Kothari Mehta & Co LLP DARPN And Company For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
Firm'’s Registration No 000756N/N500441 m's Registration No 016790C 7
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Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited

CIN: Ul5100DL2013PTC255455

Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Amounts are ¥ in millions unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particatary March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
A: CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit before tax 683.71 193 30
Adjustment for:
Share of profit in joint ventures/ associate (net) (22.34) (14.07)
Finance costs 67.80 3906
Remessurement of fair value of investment (0.0 (0.01)
Depreciation and amortization expense 4.28 23
Liabilities no longer required written back (4.96) (0.08)
Interest income (21.31) (25.07)
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/ loss - (0.34)
Provision for imparrment of non-current mvestment - 247
Investment written off 244 =
Bad debts and advances written off 2063 -
Provision/f{reversal) for [k ble losses on ion L = 13.53
Loss/ (profit) on sale of praperty, plant and equipment (0.1%) -
Operating profit before working capital changes 730,05 2310
Adjusted for:
(Increase/decrease in inventories (7.29) 0.04
{Increase) in other financial assets (19.49) (0.09)
{Inerease)/decrease in other assets 67.68 (103.39)
(Increase) in trade receivables (401 40) (403.04)
1 (d } in trade payabl 1396 8071
Increase/(decrease) financial habihry 16,25 (0.32)
Increase/(decrease) in other Labilines {186.17) 165.64
Increase/{decrease) in provisions (13.29) 0.18
Cash generated/ (used) from operations 20030 (29.17)
Incomelax!Egdllffeuejvedlnetj (128 35) (42.23)
Net cash generated from/(used in) aperating activities (A) 7175 (71.40)
: CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property, plant and equif (1.83) (2.75)
Procecds from sale of property, plant and equipment 022 5
Investment in share capital of subsidiary (refer note 46) (4.00} =
Pavment made for purchase of equity shares of associale/ jont ventures 001 (0.03)
Loans received back during the year 33233 7736
Loan granted duning the year (B7 00) (17.02)
Fixed deposits made {431.02) (183.19)
Fixed deposits matured 364 87 161.10
Interest received 1858 435
Net cash generated from/ (used) in investing activities (B) 192.16 32.82
1 CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from long term borrowings = 7802
Repayment of long term borrowings (9.99) (8.97)
Proceeds/(repayment) of short term borrowings (net) (31.64) 29.39
Finance cost paid (61.78) (34 85)
Net cish generated from/ (used in) financing activity (C) (103.41) 63.58
Net increase’ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 160.50 24.99
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginaning of year 43 30 18.31
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 203.81 43.30
Components of cash and cash equivalents considered ouly for the purpuse of eash flow statement
(a) Balances with banks
- In current accounts 19530 43.26
{b) Cash on hand 0.06 .05
Bank Deposits with onginal matunty of up to three months 845 A
203.51 4331




Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited

CIN: UL5S100DL2013PTC255455

Consolidated statement of cash lows for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Amounts are T in millions unless otherwise stated)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
This section sets out the movements in net debt for each of the year presented:

As at
Pavpmentofdent March 31,2024 Mareh 31, 2023
Opening outstanding 646.76 524,12
Cash Mows: -
|Proceeds from long term borrowings 78,02
Repayment of long term borrowings (8.97)
FProceeds/(repayment) of short term horrowings (net) (31.54) 20,39
Interest expense 2420
Closing bal 611.14 646.76

Note: Statement of cash flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 “Statement of Cash Flows” as specified in the

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20135,

Basis of preparation and muterial sccounting policies
See accompanying noles that form an ntergal part of these consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date

S S Kothari Mehta & Co LLP DARPN And Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited

CIN: UI5100DL2013PTC255455

C lid t of ch in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Amounts are ¥ in millions unless otherwise stated)

4 siat

A. Equity share capital® No of shares Amouni
As at April 01,2022 3,20,000.00 320
Changes in equity shares capital during the year - -

As at March 31, 2023 3,20,000.00 320
Changes in equity shares capital duning the year - -
As at March 31, 2024 3,20,000.00 3.20
* Also refer note 16

B. Other equity

| Reserve & surplus |
Particul z , = m Total
0 ary | Retained earnin: Securily premivm o

As at April 01, 2022 5424 13.20 67.44
(Addition during the year:

Add: Profit for the year 14836 = 148.36
(Add: Other comprehensive income/ (loss) (net of tax)* 0.1z - 012
|Balance as at March 31, 2023 202.72 13.20 215.92
Addition dering the year:

Add: Frofit for the year 516.91 - 51691
Add: Other comprehensive income! (loss) (net of tax)y* (0.08) - (0.08)
[Balance as at March 31, 2024 719.55 13.20 732,75
* Also refer note 17

* As permitted under Ind AS, schedule II1 the Company has recogaised (Loss) / gain (net of tax) on of defined employee benefit plans 15 recognized as part of retained

earnings

Basis of preparation and material accounting policies

See accompanying notes that form an intergal part of these ¢ lidated fi 1 st
As per our report of even date
S S Kothari Mehta & Co LLP DARPN And Company

Chartered Accountants

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No 0007 56N/N 500441

T
unil Wahal
Membership No. 087294 Membershup No. 418438
Partner Partner
Place: New Dethi Place:
Date. September 16, 2024 Date.
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Chief Financial Officer

Place

DIN 06610105
Place,
Date;
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Company Secretary
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Solarworld Energy Solutions Privale Limited
CIN: U15100DL.2013PTC255455
Notes to the ¢ lidated financial st

{Amounts are T in millions unless otherwise stated)

Note 3A:- Property, plant and equipment

for the yeer ended March 31, 2024

|Deemed cost/ cost Plant & machinery Office equipment Motor vehicles Computer Furniture & fixtures Total
Balance as at April 01, 2022 0.03 0,14 8.15 1.52 1.33 11.17
Additions 359 133 3184 0.80 1.19 975
Delenions S 2 = - - =
Balance as at March 31, 2023 3.62 0.47 11.99 ﬁ 2.52 20,92
Additions 0.59 006 029 073 016 1.83
Deletions = = 0.69 2 - .69
Balance us at March 31, 2024 421 0.53 11.5% 3.05 2.68 22,06
Accumulated depreciatiun -
Balance as at A!)ril ul, 2022 0.01 0.03 5.93 0.79 .09 6.85
Depreciation for the year 032 (VN 079 0.72 037 231
Disposals - - - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 0.33 0.14 6.72 L51 0.46 9.16
Depreciation for the year 093 033 1 66 0.83 054 429
Dhsposals - - (.65 - - 0.65
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1.26 0.47 7.73 2.34 1.00 12.80
sSine
Net block (net) "
Balance as at April 01, 2022 (L02 011 222 0.73 1.24 4.32
Balance as at March 31, 2023 3.29 0.33 527 0.81 2.06 11.76
Balance as at March 31, 2024 2.95 0,06 3.86 071 1.69 9.26

Note:

(i) The Group does not own any immovable property

(i} The Group has not revalued its property, plant and equipment

(iii} Certain vehicles against borrowings, the details relanng to which have been disclosed in note 18
(iv) Refer note no 43 for capital commitments

(v) The Group has elected Ind AS 101 exemprion to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment at deemed cost as at the date of transition. Also, refer to note 49




Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited

CIN: U15100DL2013PTC255455
Notes to the lidated financial stat ts for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Amounts are ¥ in millions unless otherwise stated)

3B Goodwill on business combination

< As at Asat As at
Particulars Mareh 31, 2024 March 31,2023 April 01, 2022
Opening balance = = -
Addition during the year:
On of b I (refer note 46) 6.00 - S
Closing balance 6.00 - -
4 Fi ial asseis (non current) : lovesiment
; Asal As at As at
Particul
iculars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Investments in equity accounted invesiees
(i) Investments in associate (refer note (i))*
Pioneer Global Enterprises Private Limited
2,000 ( March 31, 2023° 2,000, April 01, 2022: Nil)
equity shares of face value of Rs [0 each o2 0.02 -
Add: Accumulated share of profit/ (loss) in associate .00 0.04
Sub total (i) 0.02 0.06 -
"= ——
(ii) Investments in joint ventures (including share of
profit/ (loss)) (refer note (ii & iii))*
Danton Power Private Limited
510 ( March 31, 2023: 510, Apnl 01, 2022: 510) equty
shares of face value of Rs 10 each 0.0l 0.m .01
Add: Accumulated share of profit/ (loss) in joint venture (0.01) [0.01) (0 01)
Kehan Solarworld Private Limited
9,23,100 { March 31, 2023 9,23,100, April 01, 2022
9,23.100) equity shares of face value of Rs 10 each 923 923 971
Add. Accumulated share of profit/ (loss) i joint venture 6 85 5,79 455
16.08 15.02 13.78
Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Limited
13,50,000 ( March 31, 2023: 13,50,000, April 01, 2022
13,50,000) equity shares of face value of Rs 10 each 13.50 1350 13.50
Add: Accumulated share of profit/ (loss) in joint venure 38.53 3437 19.15
72.03 47.87 3265
Futurelife Foods Private Limited
1,50,365 of 100 each and 99% of 10 each ( March 31,
2023 1,350,365 of 100 each and 999 of 10 each, April
01, 2022: 1,50,365 of 100 each and 999 of 10 each)
cquity shares 15.05 15.05 15.05
Add: Accumulated share of profit/ {loss) in joint venture (711 (4.23) (1.76)
Less: Provision for impairment - (5.49) (3.02)
Less . Investment written off (7.94) - -
= 5.33 10.27
Sub total (ii) #8.11 68.22 26,70
Total non cucrent investment (i+ii) 88.13 G8.28 56.70
——— =
Aggregate tofung d in ] 58.13 68.28 56.70
Aggregate amount ol impairment - (5.49) (3.02)

* The Group has not recognised losses Rs. 11.97 mullion (March 31, 2023: Rs. 2 99 million profit i.e , upto the extem of loss not recognised in books in previous year and loss of Rs. 3,05
million in April 01, 2022) in relation to its interest in Danton Power Private Limited, because the Group has no obligation in respect of these losses: Also refer note no 47,

Noles:
Iny s extent of holding

. As al
Particnlars March 31, 2024

Extent of holding No of securities

(i) llnvestmenr! in associate

Proneer Global Enterprises Private Lumited 20.00%) 2,000
(i) |Investments in joint ventures

Danton Power Private Limited 531.00% 510

Ankiia Agro and Food Processing Private Limited 24.00% 13,50,000

Kehan Solarworld Private Limited 31.00% 9,23, 100

Futurelife Foods Private Limited 25.00%, 1,51.364




Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
CIN: UIS100DL2M3PTC255455
Notes to the lidated finaucial stat ts for the vear ended March 31, 2024

(Amounts are T in millions waless otherwise stated)

Asatl
Particulars March 31, 2023
Extent of holdin Nuo of securities

(i) |Imvestments in associate

Pioneer Global Enterprises Private Limited 20 00% 2,000
(i} [Investments in joint ventures

Danton Power Private Limited 51,008 510

Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Limited 24.00%% 13,50,000

Kehan Solarworld Private Limited 51008 923,100

Futurelife Foods Private Limited 25.008% 1.51 364

As at
Particulars April 01, 2022
Extent of holdin No of securities

(i) [Investments in associate

Pioneer Global Enterprises Private Limited 0.00% _
(ii) |Investments in joint venlures

Danton Power Private Limited 51.00% 10

Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Limited 24.00% 13 50,000

Kehan Solarworld Private Limited S1.00% 923,100

Fi life Foods Private Lumuted 25.00%) 1,51,364
(i) The Group has holding of 51% (March 31, 2023: 51%, April 01, 2022: 51%) in Danton Power Private Limited and 24% (March 31, 2023 24%, April 01, 2022: 24%) in Ankits Agro and Food

Processing Private Lumted, 25% (March 31, 2023: 25%, Apnl 01, 2022: 25%) in Futurelife Foods Private Limited and 51% (March 31, 2023; 51%, Apnl 01, 2022 51%) m Kehan Solarworld
Private Limited The above companies are treated as joint venture because the Company has juint contral over the above entities and there is no contractual arrangement or any other facts and

arcumstances that indicate that the parties to the joint venture have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities of the joint arrangement. Group has also joint control over above

p as the appoi of its directors and the allocation of voling rights for key b pproval of the shareholders. Also refer note 47
5 Other financial assets: Non current
Particul As at As at As at
articulars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 April 01,2022
Deposits with remaining maturity of more than 12
maonths* 0.07 211 1159
Total .07 2.11 11.59
= ——
* March 31, 2024: Nil (March 31, 2023 Rs. 1.28 million, April 01, 2022 Rs. 9.68 million), deposits pledged with bank against bank given and i of letter of credit.
6A Tax expenses
0 PaEtTa For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss
Current tax 17229 47.20
Prior period adjustment (0.01) =
Deferred tax charge/ (credit) (5.48) (226)
Tax expenses for the year 166.50 44.94

(I} Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Amounit recognised in other comprehensive income
Tax on remeasurement of defined benefit plan charge/ (credit) (0.02) .05
Tax expenses for the year (0.02) 0.05

(1) Particulars

For the year ended
March 31,2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Accounting profit/ (loss) before income tax (A)
Applicable tax rawe (B)
Computed tax expense al statutory rate (C= A*B)

Adjusted 1o taxable profit

i} Tax effect on non deductible expenses

ii) Other

Income tax expense reported in to the consolidated
statement of profit and loss (1)

Effective tax rate (E=D/A)

661,37 179.23
25.17% 25.17%
166.45 45.11
036 =
(0.01) ©17)
16680 44.94
25.22% 25.07%




Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
CIN: UL5100DL2013PTC255455
Notes to the ¢ lidated financial stat s for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Amounis are ¥ in millions unless otherwise stated)

6B Dieferred tax (assets)/ liabilities (net)

. As at As al Asat
Particuiany March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 April 01,2022
Property, plant and equipment (1.03) (0.66) (0.63)
Provision (1:59) {1.38) (0.76)
Remeasurement of fair value of investment 0.00 0,00 0.00
Expenses allowable on payment basis (7.01) 0.82 (0.25)
Unearned revenue - = {0.72)
Provision for employee benefit {0 [;1) (3 45) {010y
Deferred tax liabilities/ (assets) {10.17) (4.67) (2.46)
Movement in deferred tax (assets) and liabilities (net} for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023

. {Credit)/charge in (Credit)eharge in 3
Particulars il ?‘I‘;m:lgl:]:l;:;; statement af profit other comprehensive '(N-:us:nhg bulanes
’ as a
. and loss income s arch3t, 2023
Property, plant and equipment (0.63) (0.03) - (0 66)
Provision of impairement of investment (0.76) (0.62) - (138)
Remeasuremeni of Tar value of investment 0.00 0.00 - 0.00
Expenses allowable on payment basis (0.25) 107 = 0.82
Unearned revenue 0.72) 0.72 = =
Provision for employee benefit (0.10) (3.40) 0.05 {3.45)
Total deferred tax (assets) liabilities . (2.26)
x{ W liabiliti 2.46 26 0.1]_5 {4.67)
Movement in deferred tax (assets) and liabilities (net) for the year ended March 31, 2024
; (Credit)/charge in (Credit)/charge in
Particulars us Olp;n:’g‘;al;;;; statement of profit other comprehensive Closing batance
al Ap ¥ aid Tt tniimie as at March 31, 2024
Property, plant and equipment (0.66) (0.37) = (1.03)
Provision of impairement of invesiment (1.38) 10.61) - (1.99)
Remeasurement of fair value of investment 0.00 000 - 000
Expenses allowable on payment basis .82 (7.83) - (7.01)
Provision for employee benefit (3.45) 133 (0.02) (0.14)
Total deferred tax (asseis) liabilities L-L_G?] (5.48) 0.02 Ill}.l‘}l
7 Income lax assels (net)
PRI As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Advance tax and tax deducted at source (net of provision
fior tax) - 3.72 6.72
Total - 3.72 6.72
8 Imventories {ut lower vl cost or net relisable value)
Particulars Asat Asat As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Construction materials 2248 15.19 1523
Total 22.48 15.19 15.23
==
Inventory have been pledged as security against bank borrowings, details relating to which have been given in note 20
9 Fi inl assels : lnv
Particulars Asat Asal Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 April 01,2022
Quoted investmient (measured al fair value through profit and loss)
Investments in mutual funds 0.1 016 015
Total
0.17 0.16 0.15
Ageregate book value of quoted investment 0.17 0.16 015
0.17 0.16 0.15

Aggregate market value of quoted investment




Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
CIN: U15100DL2013PTC255455

Notes to the c lidated financial for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Amounts are ¥ in millions unless otherwise stated)

10 Trade receivables®

Paitical As at Asat As at
ACDOAES March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
(Unsecured, unless stated otherwise)
Trade receivable considered good 869.95 508.69 106,87
Trade receivable which have significant increase in credit risk - = %
Trade receivable-credit impaired - - =
Unbilled revenue 26,03 122 -
Total 805,98 509.91 106.87
- — —
* Break-up of trade receivables:
Trade receivables - others 894,91 508.87 105.63
Trade receivables - from related parties (refer note- 37) 107 1.04 1.24
Total 805.98 509.91 106.87
Refer note no 41 for ageing of trade receivables
11 Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars Asat Asat Asal
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Balances wilk banks:

Current acoounts 195.30 4326 1B.25
Fixed deposit with onginal matunty of upto 3 months® 845 - -
Cash on hand 0.06 .05 .06
Total 203.81 43.31 18.31

* Includes Rs 7.12 million (March 31, 2023: Nil, Apnl 01, 2022 Rs. Nil), deposits pledged with bank against bank guarantee given and issuance of letter of credit
12 Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalent
. Asat As at As at
I
Farticulrs March 31,2024 March 31,2023 April 01, 2022
Fixed deposits with remaining matunty of more than
three months but less than rwelve momths* 201.23 131.76 9917
201.23 131.76 990.17
* Includes Rs 171,93 million (March 31, 2023 Rs. 5. 73 million, April 01, 2022: 48 76 million), deposits pledged with bank against bank g given and of letter of credit
13 Loans
Particulars M Ak Asat As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stuted
Loan to related party (refer note 37) 140 21064 23564
Lyan to others ~ 43.06 60.64
T
otal 1.40 ETO 296.28
Notes:

Details of loan and advance:

Amount  of loan or|{Percentage lo the total
advance in the sature offof loans and advances in

Ty f boi g
Ype.ol.borrower loan outstanding as atfthe nature of loans at
IMnrcIl 31,2024 March 31, 2024
Loan 10 related parties | 140 | 100.00%

Type of borrower

Amount  of loam or|Percentage to the total
advance in the nature offof loans and advances in|
loan outstanding as atfthe nature of loans al
March 31,2023 March 31, 2023

Loan to related parties

| 210.64 | 83.03%

Amount  of loan wlPtrre-lage to the total

{advance in the nature off

of loans and advances in

Type of barrower
loan outstanding as atfthe nature of loans ai
April 01, 2022 April 01, 2022

Loan to related parties 235 64 79.53%




Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
CIN: U15100DL2013PTC255455
MNotes to the ¢ lidated fi inl stat 15 for the vear ended March 31, 2024

(Amounts are ¥ in millions unless oltherwise stated)

(i) The Company has provided following loan in pursuant to section 186 (4) of com panies Act, 2013

" : As atl As at} As all
| - Rate ol interest (%) p.. P Mo
Particulars e olinferest (%) pa ke March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 April 01. 2022
March 31, 2024: 12%, March
Kartik Solarworld Private Limited 31, 2023 Mil General business purpose 1.29 106 1.06
and Apnil 01, 2022: Ml
One Marketing Selution Private Limited 8.00% General business purpose - ] 1531
Pioneer Eserve Private Limited 10.00% (General business purpose - 209,58 194,28
Texplas Texule [ndia Private Limied Nil General business purpose * 4.50 17.49
Karmic Energy Private Limited Nil General business purpose 38.56 3856
Umesh Agarwal 10.00% (General business purpose - - 2500
Regent Garage Private Limited 7.25% - 8% (General business purpose - - 458
Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Limited 10.00% (General business purpose 011l * -
Tatal 1.40 253.70 296.28
14 Other financial assets
. As at As at As at
Particulars
ol March 31,2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
Security deposits 6.21 0.17 008
Other receivables® 13.56 0.15 015
Advance to employee 003 - -
Total
19.80 Eﬁ 0.23
* Other receivables includes Rs, 11.56 million as on March 31, 2024 from IFFCO- Tokio General Insurance Limited for the clamm of loss of inventory during the year,
15 Other current asseis
Particulars Asmt Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 April 01, 2022
Advances to suppliers 250 5211 4155
Prepaid expenses 993 7.88 135
Balanee with government authorities 79.27 99.39 13.09
Total
91.70 159.38 55.99




Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
CIN: U15190DL2013PTC255455
Nates to the lidated i inl st ts for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Amounts are ¥ in millions unless otherwise stated)

16 Equity share capital

: Asat Asat As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Authorized share capital
10,00,000 ( March 31, 2023 10,00,000, April 01, 2022 10,00,000) equity
shures of Rs. 10 each
10.00 10.00 10.00
10.00 10.00 10.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
3,20,000 ( March 31, 2023 3,20,000, Apnl 01, 2022; 3,20,000) equity shares
of Rs. 10 each
320 3.20 3.20
3.20 3.20 3.20

16 Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Holding Company has only one class of equity shares, having a par value of Rs 10 per share Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Holding
Company's residual assets. Each sharcholder is eligible to one vote per share held. The equity shareholders are entitled 1o receive dividend as declared from time to time.

In the event of hquidation of the Holding Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Holding Company in proportion {o the number of
equity shares held by shareholders, after the distribution of all preferential amounts,

iii) No class of shares have been 1ssued as bonus shares or for consideration other than cash by the Holding Company duning the five years immediately preceding the current year end.

w) The Holding Company has not allotted any fully paid up shares pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash.

ii)

Reconciliation of the ber of shares ding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
(i) Reconciliation of number and amount of equity shares outstanding: No of share At
As at April 01,2022 3,20,000 3.20
Movement during the year s =
3,20,000 3.20

As at March 31,2023

Movement during the year
As at March 31, 2024 3,20.000
é‘= 3-=.20

(i) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01,2022
Particulars
No. of shares . No. of shares .
held % of Holding feld % of Holding No. of shares held % of Holding
|Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid
Kartik Teltia 1,48,800 46 50% - 0.00%] - 0.00%
Pioneer Facor [T Infradevelopers Pnvate Limited 1,48 800 46.50% 1,65,100 51.59%) 1,635,100 51,599
Anandi Teltia - 0.00% 1,54 900 48.41% 1,54,900 48.41%
{iii} Movement of shareholding of promotor of the Company
As at March 31, 2024
Nbo. of shares at
the Change during  No. of shares at the %a ch duri
Particular Promoter N # chauge furlng the
g et commencement the year end of the year SRS year
of the year

Equity shares of INR 10 Kartik Telua

each fully paid-up = 148,800 148,200 46.50% 100.00%

Equity shares of INR 10 Pioneer Facor IT Infradevelopers Private Limited :

i Hilly v 165,100 (16,300) 1,48,800 46.50% -0.87%

Equity shares of INR 10 Anandi Teltia

1,54,900 (1,54,900) - 0.00% -100.00%

each fully paid-up

As at March 31, 2023

No. of shares at

Particulars Promoter Name the Change during  No. of shares af the s atiotalilinces % change during the
commencement the year end of the year year
of the year
Equity shares of INR 10 Pioneer Facor IT Infradevelopers Private Limited
cach fully paid-up 165,100 = 165,100 51.59% 0.00%
Equity shares of INR 10 Anandi Teltia =
1,534,900 - 1,54,900 48.41% 0.00%

each fully paid-up




Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
CIN: UIS100DL2013PTC2IS5455

MNotes to the

lidated financial for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Amounts are T in millions unless otherwise stated)

17_Oiher equity

. As at As at As at
Particular
RELERYS March 31,2024 March 31,2023 April 01, 2022
(i)  Securities premium asccount®
Opening balunce 1320 13.20 13.20
Add. Premmium on shares issued dunng the year - - =
Closing balance 13.20 13.20 13.20
e e
(ii) Retained earning™*
Openming balance 20272 5424 3219
Add: Remeasurement of mutual fund - - 003
Add Profit for the year 51691 14836 2197
Add: Remeasurement (loss) gain on defined emplovee benefit plan*** {0.08) 0.12 0.05
Closing balance 719.55 202,72 54.24
M
. - e ————————————— e
Total other equity (i+ii) 73275 215.92 67.44
* Security premium: Securities premium i3 used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve 15 utilised in accordance with the provisions of Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013
** Retained earmings, Retuned earning are profivloss that the Company has earned nll date less transfer to other reserve, dividend or other distribution or transaction with shareholder
*** Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans: Differences between the interest income on plan assets and the return actually achieved, and any changes in the liabilities over the year due to
changes in actuanial assumptions or expenience adjustments vathin the plans, are { 1n other compret ve income and are adjusted 1o retained earnings.
18_Borrowings (Non current)
Particulars At Agat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Secured
= Term loan from banks
Loan against property (refer note (1)) 168.00 176.16 106,09
Vehicle loan (refer note (11)) 2.99 138 129
Total secured (A) 170.99 179.74 107.38
=
Current maturities of non-current borrowings
Loan agamst property 9.89 8.69 474
Vehicle loan 064 0.59 123
Amount disclosed under the head "eurrent borrowings' (B) 10.53 9.28 5,97
%
s - e ——————————————
Total (A-B) 160.46 170.46 101.41
(i) |[Name of Bank Aday Ava As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Lender: Standard Chartered Bank
Borrower: Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
Rate of interest: 8 75% p.a (variable)
Sanctioned amount: 74.50 million 70 04
Repayment: 120 Monthly instalment i.e. Rs. 0.93 million oz 2
Security details: Mongage of personal immovable property by directors, Corporate
guarantee by Pioneer Securities Pnivate Limited and Pioneer Facor IT Infradevelopers]
Private Limited
Lender: Standard Chartered Bank
Borrower: Solarworld Energy Selutions Private Limited
Rate of interest: 8.00% p.a (variable)
Sanctioned amount;: 110.00 millicn
Repayment: 120 Monthly instalment i @ Rs. 1 05 millian Lk 10166 106.09
Securily details; Mortgage of personal immovable property by directors, Corporate|
guarantee by Pioncer Securities Private Limited and Pioneer Facor [T Infradevelopers
Private Limited
Total 168.00 176.16 106,09




Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
CIN: U15100DL2 (N 3PTC255455
Notes to the lidated financial stat ts fur the year ended March 31, 2024

(Amounts are ¥ in millions unless otherwise stated)

- As al As at] As al
{ii); [Name of Baak March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 April 01, 2022

Lender: HDFC Bank Limited

Borrower: Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
Rate of interest: §75% p.a

Sanctioned amount: 1.76 million 14l L =
Repayment: 60 Monthly instalment i.e. Rs. 0.03 million
Security details: Hypothecation of vehicle

Lender: HDFC Bank Limited
Borrower: Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Liruted
Rate of interest: 873% pa

3 149 =
Sanctioned amount: 176 mullion L.76
Repayment: 60 Monthly instalment i.e. Rs. 0.03 million
Security details: Hypothecation of vehicle

Lender: Yes Bank Limited

Borrower: Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Liumited
Rate of interest: 8.86% pa

Sanctioned amount: 3.74 million : %40 129
|Repayment: 40 Monthly instalment 1.e. Rs. 0.11 million
Security details: Hypothecation of vehicle

]Tolal 2.99 3.58 1.29
19 Non eurrent provision
A As at As at Al
Particolars 5 At
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Provision for employee benefits (refer note 36)
- Gratuity 0.93 0.63 .65
Total 0.9
otal 3 0.63 0.65
20 Financial liabilities: Current
B As at As at As
Particulars at
Muarch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Current borrowings
(A) Secured (refer note 18)
From banks
Loan against property® 9.89 8.69 474
Vehele loan 0.64 059 123
Cash credit and working capital demand loan (refer note (1)) 35383 250,00 138.41
Acerued interest 3.90 261 125
Total secured borrowings (A) 368.26 261.89 145.63
— — —
(B) Unsecured
Loan from related parties (refer note (1) & 37) 3732 169.31 25198
Loan from others (refer note {iii)) 45.00 45.00 2500
Total unsecured borrowings (B) 82.32 214.31 276.98
Total t by il A+B
‘otal current borrowings ( ] 450.58 4T§‘.__2_‘l-} 422.61

* Loan against property includes Rs 9796 mullion from bank carrying interest rate of 8% (variable) p.a including interest acerued, Further, The loan has been repaid afier the balance sheet date.

Notes:

(i) Details of cash eredit and working capital demand loan
The Group has availed cash credit and working capital demand loan facilities from HDFC bank Limited. These facilitics are secured by first pari-passu charge against all current assets, present and
future, and are guaranteed by Additional Director Sushil Kumar Jain, Director Kartik Telua, Director Rishabh Jain, Director Mangal Chand Teltia and Anandi Teltia. The loans are repayable on
demand and earry interest rate in the range of 7.00% to 9.00% p.a

(i) The unsecured loans from related parties and directors are repayable on demand and carnes an interest rate i the range of 11 50% to 12.00% p.a
{iii) Loan from others Rs. 45.00 million (March 31, 2023: Rs. 45.00 mullion, April 01, 2022 Rs. 2500 million) The loan 1s repayable on demand and carry ainterest rate of 13.00% p.a.

21_Trade payahles*

As at As at
Particulars Asat
Murch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022

total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 855 184 .

total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and

small enterprises 113.49 111.20 32.75
Total

al 122.04 113.04 32.75

Refer note no 41 for ageing of trade payables
For payable to related parties refer note 37

* Includes letter of credit of Ris. 61 67 million (March 31, 2023 Rs, 45,52 million, April D1, 2022, Nil) availed from HDFC Bank These trade credits are largely repayable within 90 days from the
date of draw down
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22 Other financial liabilities

Friicid Asat As at As at
articulars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 April 01, 2022
Employee benefits payable 070 0.07 0.38
Provision for corporate social responsibility expenditure 0.01 - -
Other payable* 15.60 = %
Taotal 1631 0.07 0.38

* other payable of Rs, 15.60 million is payable on account of delay in completion of engineering, procurement and construction (EPC) project.

23 Other current liability

Particulars Asat Asal Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 April 01, 2022
Advance from customer 0.70 206.07 39.76
Statutory dues 0.88 514 293
Unearned revenue 2347 - 288
1 05
Tota 15.05 211.21 45.57
Movement of contract liabilities for the year ended:
As at As at As at
Particulars Murch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Opening balance - 2.88 -
Additions / {utilisation) dunng the year 2347 {2.88) 2 R8
Closing balance 2347 e 2.88
Current 2347 = 2.88
Non current - - =
24 Curremt provision
Asat As at As at
riicul
Particelars March 31,2024 March 31,2023 April 01,2022
Provision for employee henefits (refer note 36)
Gratuity 0.01 0.01 0.01
Other provisions (refer note (1)) - 13.53 :
I
Total 001 @ 0.01
(i) Other provision includes provision for onerous contracts
Movement in provisions:
As at As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 _April 01, 2022
Opening balance 13.53 Z .
Additional provision during the year - 13.53 #
Provision used during the year (13.53) - =
Closing balance - 13.53 2

*A provision for onerous contracts is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract, which is
determined based on the incremental costs of fulfithing the obligaion under the contract and an allocation of other costs directly related to Rulfilling the contract.

28 Current tax liabilities (net)

: As at Asat Asat
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 AgehE a0
Frovision for tax (net of advance 1ax and TDS) 3887 = "

Taoral 3887 = -
e
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26 Revenue from operations

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
{n) Sale - engineenng, procurement and construction project (EPC) 4,960.18 2,298 36
(b) Sale of products 311 420
) Sale of services (operation and maintenance and other services) 44.15 2208

(d) Other operating revenue
Sale of scrap 272 =
Total revenue from contracts with cusiomers 5.010.16 Zg]‘l.{.]

Disclosure under Ind AS 115, revenune from contracts with customers

The Group undertakes engineenng, procurement and construction business. The ongoing contracts with customers are for solar utility project. The type of work in these contracts involve
construction, engineering, designing, supply of materials, development of system, installation, project t, operations and maintenance ele. The Group derives ils revenue from

sale of goods, construction and project related activity, operation and maintenance and other services. The discl as below, rep the disaggregation of
A) Disaggregation of revenue
For the year ended For the year ended

Panicilars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Within India 5,010.16 2,324 51

Outside India - N
5,010.16 232461

B) The following table provides infarmation about contract asset and contract liabilities from conlract with customers:

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(i) Contract assets and liabilities as at beginning of the year*

Opening unbilled revenue 1.22 =

Opening unearned revenue = .88

Opening advances from customers 206.07 976

Opening trade receivables 308.69 106 87
(ii) Revenue recognized during the year 5,010.16 232461
(iii) Coantract assets and liabililies as at end of the year*

Clasing unbilled revenue 2603 122

Closimg unearned revenue 2347 -

Clasing advances from customers .70 206.07

Closing trade receivables 86995 508,69
€) The following table provides information about revenue recognised over point in time and satisfied over time

Paisticilars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Point in time 9.06 469
Satisfied over time 5,001.10 231992

D) Reconcilintion of contracted price with Sale - engineering, procurement and construction project:

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars
March 31, 2024 Murch 31, 2023

Opening contracted price of orders on hand 7.710.77 4,121.82
Add: Fresh orders 26,00 358895
Add/ (less): Change orders received (net) (15.60) =
Less: Orders completed duning the year 991.93 =
Closing contracted price of orders on hand 6,729.24 7.710.77
Total revenue recognised during the year 4.960.18 2,298 36

(a) Revenue out of orders completed during the year 991 .93 =]

() Revenue out of orders under execution at the end of the year (i) 3,968,235 2208136
Revenue recognised upto previous year (from orders pending
campletion at the end Elf ll'l:c year) (i) il 23156
Balance revenue to be recognised in future (i) 230.68 5,180 45
Closing contracted price of orders on hand (i 6,729.24 7,710,77

.
TR

“s:.
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27  Other Income

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulal
articulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest Income on
Deposits with banks 10.05 503
Loan 1127 20.05
Interest on income tax refund 005 040
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipments 01 =
Remeasurement of fair value of investment 0.01 0.1
Gain on foreign exchange fluctuation 6.77 0,34
Liabilities no longer required written back 496 0.08
Insurance claim receivable 11.56 "
Total 44.86 25.91
——

28 Cost of materials consumed

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening stock 1519 1523
Purct 3,82039 181741
Less: Closing stock 2248 15.19
Tatal 381310 1,817.45

29 Engineering, procurement and construclion project expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars
March 31, 2024 Mareh 31,2023
Engineering, procurement and construction project expenses 436.34 252.56
Total 436.34 252.56
—_———
30 Purchases of stock-in-trade
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Purchases 310 343
Taotal 3.10 3.43
—_—
31 _Employee benefits expenses
Pirtiuiars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salaries and wages 786 431
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 023 0.20
Provision for gratuity expense 0.23 018
Staff welfare expenses 036 030
Total 8.08 4.99

32 Finance Cost

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Interest expense on borrowing 6027 50.79
Other Borrowing Cost 646 B.15
Interest on late payment of statutory dues 1,07 012
Total 67.80 59.06

33 Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 428 231
Total .28 2.31
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34  Other exy

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Repair and maintenance -
- Plant & building L2 -
- Others 118 0.87
Rent expenses* 38z 242
Legal and professional expenses 18.43 6.97
Insurance expenses 1.50 =
Travelling, dation and yance exp 379 278
Adveru 1 and bust P expenses 1.04 U.Eg
Payment to auditor 21z 0ls
Office expenses 0.95 039
Corporate social responsibility expense 1.40 =
Rates and taxes 097 039
Provision for impairment of non-current mvestment - 247
[nvestment written off 244 -
Bad debts and advances written off 20.63 %
Provision/(reversal ) for foreseeable losses on construction contracts - 1353
Miscellaneous expenses 0.85 0.64
Total 60.35 31.49
* Represents lease rentals for short term leases

35 Earnings per share (EPS) computed in accordance with Ind AS 33 "Earnings Per Share"

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit{loss) for the years attributable to equity shareholders of the Com by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the

years, Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they were entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the
reporting years. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the years 1s adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse
share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attnibutable to equity shareholders by the weighted age number of equity shares outstanding during the years plus the weighted average
number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares,

The following 15 a reconeiliation of the equity shares used in the computation of basic and diluted earnings per equity share.
Dariicilars For the year ended For the year ended|
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Met profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders Rs. 516.91 148 36
|Number of equity share at the beginning of the year 3,20,000 3,20,000
Add: Stock split (refer note 51) 3,20,000 3,20,000
Add: Bonus share issued (refer note 51) 6,40,00,000 6,40,00,000
Number of equity share at the end of the year 6,46,40,000 6,46,40.000
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year- Basic 6,46 40 000 6,46,40,000
Weighted average number of equity shares outstandmng dunng the year-Diluted 6,46.40, 000 6,46,40,000
Nominal value of Share (refer note 51) 5.00 5.00
Earning per Share (Basic) (Rs)) * 8.00 2.30
Earning per Share (Diluted) (Rs ) * 8.00 2.30

* Inline with the requirements of Ind AS 33, the basic and diluted earnings per share for the current period and previous year presented have been caleulated/ restated afler considering
the share split and bonus issue
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36 Disclosure pursuant to IND AS - 19 - Employee benefit expens
(A) Post employment benefit plans: The Group has the following defined benefit plans

Gmatity: In 1 with the applicable laws, the Group provides for gramity. a defined benefit retirement plan (*The Gratuily Plan™) covering eligible employees The gratuity plan
provides for a lump sum | 1o vested empl on réti . death, incapacitation or ter 1on of employment that are based on last drawn salary and tenure of employment.
Liabilities wath regard to the gratuwity plan are d med by I val on the reg dale,
As atl As at As ai
March 31, 2024| March 31, 20234 April 01, 2022
|Reconciliation of preseat vilue of defined benefit obligation
Present value of the obligation at the beginning of the
year 0.64 066 073
Acquired pursuant to scheme of arrangement - - -
(Current service cost 01e 013 016
1 cost 0.05 0.05 0.0s
Changes m financial assumptions 0.04 (D.01) (0.06)
Changes  expenence adjusuments 003 {019} D21y
Present value of the obligation at the end of the year 0.94 0.64 0.66
Particulurs Asar As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Reconciliation of (net assets)liability recognized
Provision for gratuity anised as per ial valuati
report 094 0.64 0.66
Add: Add | pravision d for empl .
within the Group - -
Add. Additonz] provision on account of terminal benefits
done under anthmeue calculation B : )
Liability/ (assets) r ised in the lidated bal.
Shect 094 064 0.66
7 As at As at A
Particulars 5 i)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Fresent value of funded obligation 0.94 064 Q.66
Farr value of plan asset - N =
Net (asset)liability recognised 0.94 0.64 0.66
I Amount recognised in the lidated of profit and loss under employee benefits expens.
{i) Expense recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and los:
|Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023/
Current service cost 019 013
Interest cost 0.05 0.05
Actugnal gain/{loss) on obligation for the year {007y 0.21
Total 0a7 0.39
(i} Breakup ol aciuarial gainfioss
| Particulars For the year ended| For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
(i) Expense recognised in the lidated S of other comprehensive incon:
Changes in financial assumptions (0.04) 0.01
(Changes in experience adjustients (0.03) 019
Total (0.07) 0.20
(iii) Assumptions
B As at As at Asat
Farticula
LA March 31,2024 March 31,2023 April 01, 2022
Dhiscount rate T.12 7.39% 7.26%
Salary escalation 10, 0% 10.00% 10
Mortality 100% of TALM 2012-14 100% of TALM 2012-14 LK of LALM 2012-14
Weighted average duration of the projected benefit
bligati 17.20 1673 17,510
(iv) Sensitivity analysis
Particulars As at Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 April 01, 2022
Drecrease Increase Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
Discount rate (50 basis point movement| 0.09 0.08 0.06 0.05 0,07 0.06
Salary escalation rate (50 basis point movement .08 0.08 005 0.06 0.06 006
Emploves turnover (50 basis point movement) 0.10 007 002 0.01 0.02 002
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(B)

{v) Maturity profile of defined benefit vbligation

" As As af| As at

| Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Oto | Year 001 001 0.0
1102 Year 0.06 0.02 0.02
2103 Year 0.03 0.04 0.0z
310 4 Yeur 0.03 002 0,03
4105 Year 0.03 0.02 002
S0 & Yaar 0.02 0.02 0.02
6 Year anwards 0.77 05 0.55

Current/ non-currenl classification

Particulars

Current
Non current

As atl
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37 Related party disclosures:
A. List of related parties as per the requirements of Ind-AS 24

Holding Company of joint venture (Pioneer Facor IT Infradevelopers Private Limited)
Pioneer Securities Private Limited

Joint venturers

Pioneer Facor IT Infradevelopers Private Limired
Anandi Telna {Till March 08, 2024)

Kartik Telua ( w.e.f March 08, 2024)

Companies where joint venture exercise significant influence
Pioneer Fil-med Private Limited

Enterprises controlled or significantly infl ed by key Il t personnel or their relatives
Ayaan Solarworld Private Limited

Pioneer Global Enterprises Private Limited ( Till July 26, 2022)
Kartik Solarworld Private Limited

One Marketing Solutions Private Limited

Simplehealihy Foods Private Lumited

Pioneer Fincap Private Limuted

Telua Trading Pnvate Limited

Pioneer Eserve Private Limited

Sushil Jeetpuria and Company

MC Teltia HUF

Associate
Pioneer Global Enterprises Private Limited { we.f July 26, 2022)

Joint Venture

Ankita Agro and Food Processing Pavate Lunited { Till Apnil 10, 2024)
Kehan Solarworld Private Limuted

Futurelife Foods Private Limited (w.e.f 16 August 2021)

Danton Power Private Limited (w.e.f March 15, 2021)

Subsidiary

Futurelife Foods Private Limited { woe.£ 02 Angust, 2020 ull 16 August 2021)
Ortusun Renewable Power Private Limited (w.e.f January 10, 2024)

Key Managerial Person

Mangal Chand Teltia ( w.e.f November 30, 2021) Director

Kartik Teltia Director

Rishabh Jain Director

Sushil Kumar Jain (w.e.f March 26, 2024) Additional Director
Aastha Gupta (w.c.f March 26, 2024 Till June 27, 2024) Additional Director
Samiksha Jain ( w.e.f March 26, 2024 Till June 27, 2024) Additional Director
Mukut Goyal (w.e.f August 22, 2024) Chief Financial Officer
Varsha Bharn (w.e.f August 22, 2024) Company Secretary

Relative of key gerial person
Anandi Teltia

Gauray Telua

Aastha Gupta

Samiksha Jan

Mangal Chand Telta

Umesh Agarwal

Sushil Kumar Jain
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37.1 Related party disclosures:

B. Transactions with the related parties

(i) Transactions with the related parties for the year ended

— For the year ended For the vear ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Sale of products
Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Limited = 297
Poneer Global Enterprises Private Limited 160 -
Kehan solarworld Private LimitedPrivate Limited 0.84 =
Sale of services
Kehan solarworld Private LimitedPrivate Linited - 04z
Sales return
Kehan solarworld Private LimitedPrivate Limited 042 .
Purchases
Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Limited 65.50 -
Ayaan Solarworld Private Limited - 2.73
Pioneer Fil-med Private Limited - 170.29
Purchase return
Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Limited 1.52 =
Pioneer Fil-med Private Limited - 213
Engineering, procurement and construction project expenses
Danton Power Private Limited 36122 207.78
Electricity expenses
Pioneer Facor IT Infradevelopers Private Lumited 60 0.04
Rent expenses
Pioneer Facor 1T Infradevelopers Private Limited 370 233
Pioneer Fincap Private Limited 0.09 .09
Other expenses
Futurelife Foods Private Limited - 012
Pioneer Facor IT Infradevelopers Private Limited 0.55 =
Remuneration paid to key managerial person
Mangal Chand Teltia 0.24 024
Professional fee to key rial person and their relatives
Kartik Teltia 385 200
Rishabh Jain 347 .
Sushil Jeetpuna and Company 0.18 1.80
Interest income om loans
One marketing Selutions Private Limited - 007
Umesh ¥ 0.45
Kartik Solarworld Prvate Limited 027 il
Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Limuted 011 =
Pioneer Eserve Private Limited 1089 19.23
Finance cost
Aastha Gupta 0.81 0.47
Gaurav Teltia 116 107
Pioneer Fil-med Private Limited 02! 0.81
Pioneer Fineap Povate Limited 199 1428
Samiksha Jain - 043
Rishabh Jain = 0.16
Sushil Kumar Jain E 0.72
Kartik Teltia 141 0.67
Mangal Chand Telua 0.28 .
Pianeer Facor IT Infradevelopers Private Limited 24 559
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37.1 Related party disclosures:

For the vear ended

Faor the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Loan given

Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Limited 63.00 i
Loan received back (including interest ]

Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Limited 65.00 =
Umesh Agarwal = 3545
One marketing Solutions Private Limmted 2 1537
Pioneer Eserve Private Limited 21939 2.00
Loan repaid {including interest )

Aastha Gupta 1.00 =
Kartik Teltia 1410 10.05
Rishabh Jain - 238
Gaurav Teltia ~ 045
Proneer Eserve Private Lumnted - 2.00
Samiksha Jain - 548
Anandi Telua 2.00 x
Sushil Kumar Jain - 3nde
Pianeer Facor IT Infradevelopers Private Limited 105.72 51.54
Pioneer Fil-med Prnivale Lunuted 5026 81.81
Pioneer Fincap Private Limited 149 24 8650
Loan taken

Anandi Teltia 18.00 -
Kartik Teltia 14.30 12.23
Mangal Chand Teltia 6.00 -
Pioneer Facor IT Infradevelopers Private Limited 72,50 4
Aastha Gupta £ 7.00
Sushil Kumar Jam - 3.00
FPioneer Fil-med Private Linted 50.00 50,00
Pioneer Fincap Privare Limited 2900 94.00
Recoverable expenses received

Simplehealthy Foods Private Limited - 0.01
Kartik Teltia - 0.02
Futureh fe Foods Private Limited om .
Reimbursement paid by related party on behalf of Company

Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Limited - "
Rishabh Jain 033 =
Kartik Teltia 370 4,08
Danton Power Private Limited 0.04 (.80
Sushil Jeetpuria and Company 228 037
Reimbursement payable repaid

Sushil Jeetpuria and Company 228 038
Rishabh Jain 033 @
Kartik Teltia 435 353
Danton Powe: Private Limited (.26 0.80
Reimbursement paid by Company on behalf of entity

Pioneer Global Enterprises Private Limited 002 042
Kartik Teltia - 0.02
Fuurelife Foods Private Limited 0.08 :

Investment written off
Futurelife Foods Private Limited 15.05




SOLARWORLD ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
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Nates to the lidated financial for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Amounts are T in millions unless otherwise stated)

37.1 Related party disclosures:

—— For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
lovestment made
Pioneer Global Enterprises Private Limited - 002
(i) The following bal are outstanding at the end of the reporiing period
Asat As at

Bhctiesian March 31,2024 March 31, 2023 _April m,;;:zl
Borrowings*®
Aastha Gupla 7.16 743 £
Anand; Teltia 9.00 - -
Pioneer Facor IT Infradevelapers Privare Limited - 3103 71.54
Pioneer Fincap Private Lumited - 11846 9810
Gaurav Teltia 1066 9.62 o1l
Karmik Telna 425 278 =
Mangal Chand Telua .25 - e
*Borrowings are inclusive of interest
Loons and advances*
Kartik Solarworld Privaie Limited 129 .06 1.06
Pioneer Eserve Private Limited - 209.58 194 28
Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Limiied on - 2
*Loans and advances are inclusive of interest
Advance to suppliers
Ayaan Solarworld Private Limited 012 057 368
Other receivable
Futurelife Foods Private Limited 0.08 0.01 =
Danton Power Private Limited 022 - &
Pioneer Global Emerprises Private Limited 0.02 - 5
Trade payable
Kartik Teltia - .65 009
Futurelife Foods Private Limited - 012 %
Danten Power Private Limited 3578 4025 =
Pioneer Facor IT Infradevelopers Private Limited 0.05 0.04 0,60
Trade Receivables
Pioneer Global Enterprises Private Limited - 045 1.13

1.07 0.59 010

Kehan solarworld Private LimitedProvate Linuted




SOLARWORLD ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U15100DL2013PTC255455
Notes to the lidated fi ial stal is for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Amounnts are ¥ in millions unless otherwise stated)

37.1 Related party disclosures:
C. Related party transaction of associate and joint ventures:

(a) Danton Power Private Limited

(i) Tr tions with the related parties for the year ended
= For the year ended For the year ended
Particul
articulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Reimb 1 of exy (paid by related party on behalf of Company)
Sushil Jeetpuria and Company i 202
Reimbursement payable repaid
Sushil Jeetpuria and Company 377 2.02
Reimbursement receivable received
Solarworld Engery Solutions Private Limited 0.20 0.80
Direct expense
Ashutosh Mishra - 0.57
Peeyush Salwan - 022
Other expense
Ashutosh Mishra 189 1.06
Peeyush Salwan 0.91 0.46
The following balances are ontstanding st the end of the r riod in relation to transactions with related parties
As at Agal As
Particulars al
MESKR March 31,2024 March 31,2023 April 01, 2022
Other payables
Ashutosh Mishra 016 - 005
Peeyush Salwan a.07 0.03 “
(b) Futurelife Foods Private Limited
{i) Transactivns with the related parties for the year epded
St i For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Loan received
Sale of products
Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Limited 0.07 =
Kartik Teltia - 0.01
Purchases
Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Limited 15.60 16,87
Loans received back
Pioneer Fincap Private Limited 871 977
Interest income on lnans
Pioneer Fincap Private Limited 2.0 270
Reimk ol ex {paid by related party on behalf of Company)
Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Limited 0.06 =
Sushil Jeetpuna and Company 033 013
Kartik Teltia 045 0.05
Reimbursement payable repaid
Sushil Jeetpunia and Company .33 015
Kartik Teltia .52 =
Direct expenses
Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Limited 041 041

Other expense
Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Limited 0.05 0.48




SOLARWORLD ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U15100DL2013PTC155455
Notes to the d i

[T 3al stat,

ts for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Amounts are Tin millions unless otherwise stated)

37.1 Related party disclosures:

(i) _The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting period in relation to transactions with related parties
o As at As at Asal
articulars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 April 01, 2022
Loans and advances
Pioneer Fincap Private Limited 2351 30,13 37.21
Sundry creditors
Arkita Agro and Food Processing Private Limited 719 423 1 67
Other receivable
Kartik Teltia 0.03 4 g
Other payables
Kartik Teltia - 0.05 .
{¢) Pioneer Global Enterprises Private Limited
(i) Transactions with the related parties for the year ended
Piiticubiis For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Loan received
Pioneer Fil-med Private Limited 041 041
Adeshat Agarwal - als
Loan Repaid
Pioneer Fil-med Private Limited 0.60 3
(i) The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting period in relation (o transactions with related parties
. As at As at As ul
Fariculars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 April 01, 2022
Unsecured loan payable
Pioneer Fil-med Private Limited 021 a4 8
Akshal Agarwal - als ]
Trade paysble 0.02 045 =
{d) Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Limited
(i) _Transuctions with the related parties for the year ended
% For the year ended For the vear ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Purchases of goods
Haldiram Snacks Private Limited 074 |82
Chandigarh Sweets Limited 0.00 ]
Haldiram Manufacturing Co Private Limited 014 -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Haldiram Snacks Private Limited - .52
Haldiram Products Private Limited 080 5
Sale of property, plant and equipment
Haldiram Snacks Private Limited Z 052




SOLARWORLD ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U15100DL2013PTC255455
Notes to the lidated fi ial for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Amounts are T in millions unless otherwise stated)

37.1 Related party disclosures:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31,2024

For the year ended
l\‘_‘&rl:h 31, 2023

Loans taken

Sushil Kumar Jain = 540
Loans repayment
Haldiram Snacks Private Limited 30.00 =
Haldiram Preducts Private Limited - 80 00
Sushil Kumar Jain a 540
Services availed
Sushil Jeetpuria and Company 0.10 o
Rent paid
MD Fresh Private Limited 1.50 x
Interest on loan
Haldiram Snacks Private Limited 0.52 79
Haldiram Products Private Limited - 2
Advance
MD Fresh Private Limited 500 .
Repayment of advance
M Fresh Private Limited 500 2
Reimbursement of expenses
Haldiram Snacks Private Limited .00 -
Sushil Kumar Jain 0.94 .40
Sushil Jeetpuria and Company 0.04 o
Ethnic Food and Hospitality Private Limited 0.02 2
Rajender Kumar Khanna 136 034
Sale of goods
Haldiram Snacks Private Limited 015 6132
MD Fresh Privale Lumited 18.60 .
Chandigarh Sweets Limited 55.67 -
Ethinic Food and Hospitality Private Limited 20.03 .
Interest received
Ethric Food and Hospitality Private Limited 0.60
Chandigarh Sweets Limited 241 i
MD Fresh Private Limited 0,05 0
Rental Income
Ethnic Food and Hospitality Private Limited 0.29 -
Interest paid
Haldiram Snacks Private Linited 1:23 i
Managerial remuneration
Manohar Lal Agarwal 30.29
Sushi] Kumar Jain 505 -
Karuk Teltia 505
Rajender Kumar Khanna 218 203
{ii) The following balances are oulstanding at the end of the reporting period in relation to transactions with related parties

Puiticulie As at As at As ot

bl March 31,2024 March 31,2023 April 01, 2022
Balance Outstanding - Payable
Haldiram Snacks Private Limited » 002 1212
Balance Qutstanding - Receivable
Haldiram Products Private Limited - 489 =
Sushil Jeetpuria and Company 0m - =
Ethnic Food and Hospitality Private Limited 335 - &
Chandigarh Sweets Limited 57 34 - =
MD Fresh Private Limited 18.60 - .
Managerial Remuneration - Payable
Rajender Kumar Khanna 015 0.09 012
Manohar Lal Agarwal 136 .
Sushil Kumar Jam 023 4 =
Kartik Teltia 026 - =
Reimbut t of exp payabl
Sushil Kumar Jain 028 -
Rajender Kumar Khanna 003 .

D
%o
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Notes to the ¢ lidated financial for the year ended March 31, 2024
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38 Financial instrument
This section gives an overview nF the signifi of fi 1l for the Group and provides additional information on balance sheet items that contain financial instruments.

The details of ial acc licies, mcluding ibe entena for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class
of finanesal asset, financial llahli:t)' and equity instrument are disclosed in the eonsalidated financial statements.

(8) Financisl assets and liabilities
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of fi | assets and fi | habilines. It does not include fair value information for i | assets and fi ial liabilities

not measured at fair value if the carrymg amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

38.1 Category-wise classification of linancial instrument

As at . ;
|March 31, 2024 FVTPL* Amortised Cost Total Carrying Value|

A. | Financial assets

Cash & cash equivalents = 203.81 203.81
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents - 201.23 201,23
Trade recervables - 89598 89598
Other financial assets = 19.87 19.87
Loans = 140 140
Investments 017 88.13 88.30
Tatal 0.17 1,410.42 1,410.59
B. | Financial liabilities
Borrowings = 611.04 611.04
Trade payables = 122.04 122.04
Other financial habilities - 1631 1631
Total - 74939 749,39
As at 2 - E .
March 31,2023 FVIPL Amartised Cost Total Carrying Value
A | Financial assets
Cash & cash equivalents - 4331 4331
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents * 13176 13176
Trade receivables - 509.91 50991
Other finaneial assets * 243 243
Loans - 25390 25370
Inyestments 16 6828 68.44
Tatal 0.16 1,009.39 1,09.55
B. | Financial liabilities
Borrowings 2 646,66 646.66
Trade payables = 113.04 113.04
Other financial habilines - 0.07 007
Total = 759.77 789,77
As ar -
FVTPL* Amortised Cost Total Carrying Value

April 01,2022
A. | Financial assels

Cash & cash equvalents = 18.31 18.31
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents - 9917 o917
Trade receivables - 106,87 106,87
Other financial assets - 11.82 11.82
Loans - 296.24 29628
Investments 0.13 56,70 5685
Total 0.15 580.15 £80.30
B. | Financial liabilities
Borrowings - 524.02 52402
Trade payables = 3275 32.75
Other financial Labilites - 038 038
Total - 557.15 557.15

* Fair value through profit and loss
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CIN: UIS100DL2013P1C155455

Notes to the lidated fi ial stat ts for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Amounts are ¥ in millions unless otherwise stated)

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

1 The section explains the judg; and made i determuining the faur values of the financial instruments that are:
a) recogmzed and measured at fair value
b} measured at amortized cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the fi 1al stat

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inbuts used in determining fair value, the Group has classified ils financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting
standard. An explanation of each level is mentioned below

For assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value as at balance sheet date, the classification of fair value calculations by category is summarised below:

Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
As at March 31, 2024

Investment in mutual fund 017 - - -
As at March 31, 2023

Investment in mutual fund 016 - - _
As at April 01, 2022

Investment in mutual fund a.1s - - =

Transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3
There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3 during the year ended March 31, 2024, year ended March 31, 2023 | Apnil 01, 2022,
Note: The above information should be read with v of basis of preg and matenal accounting policies as disclosed in note no 2.

Determination of fair values

Fair values of financial assets and habilities have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods. When applicable, further information about
the made ind fair values i3 disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.

1) The fair value of mutual funds are based on price quotations at reporting date.
i) The fair values of other current financial assets and financial liabilities are considered 1o be equivalent to their carrying values.
i) The carrying amounts of current borrowings a1 fixed rate and other borrowings at floating rate of interest are cansidered to be close to the fair value
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38 Financial instrument- fair values and risk management (continued)

The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) being the Board of Directors (Board) has overall responsibility for the hlist and oversight of the Group nsk management framework,
Board of Directors regularly reviews the changes in the market conditions, management policies and procedures and the adequacy of risk fi ork in relation to the risks faced
by the Group. The framework seeks to identify, asses and muiligate financial risk in order to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

In the course of irs business, the Group is exposed primarily to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, equity prices, liquidity and eredit risk, which may adversely
impact the farr value of its financial instruments

The Group has exposure to the following nsks ansing from financial instruments:

1) Credit risk

2) Liquidity risk

3) Market risk

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above nisks. the Group's objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s

management of eapital

1) Credit risk

Credit risk 15 the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. Credit nisk encompasses of both, the direct
risk of default and the risk of deterioration of ¢reditworthiness as well as concentration of risks. Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits and creditworthiness of customers on a
continuous basis to whom the credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for eredit Financial instruments that are subject o rations of eredit risk principally consist of
trade receivables, investments, cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits and other financial assets,

Credit risk exposure
The following table shows the exposure to the eredit risk at the reporting date:
March 31, 2024

|Particulars Carryi
Estimated gross carrying amount . Arrying
abacei Expected eredit losses amount n.et of]
provision
| Other financial assets 19.87 - 1587
Loans 140 - 1.40
Investments 8330 = 8830
March 31, 2023
Particulars Estimated gross carrying amount Carrying]
St dibali Expected credit losses amuount IF! of]
Other financial assets 243 - 2.43
Toams 25370 : 25370
Investments 6843 - 6843
April 01,2022
Particulars s
Estimated gross carrying amount Expected credit C&rnrmg‘
at default losses Aimsunt-astul]
provision
Other financial assels 1182 - 11.82
Loans 296.28 - 206 28
Investments 56.85 - S6 85

(i) Trade & other receivables:

The Group has an established process to evaluate the credi
render services are entered into with p ]

P
customer receivables are regularly

of the outstanding trade receivable as at March 31, 2024 (March 23, 2023 : One customer, and Apnl 01, 2022 One customer)

The Group's major customers includes public sector undertakings. For private
Group's lustoncal experiences. The Group's

Durectors (Board). Credit period varies as per the contractual terms with the cusiomers. Group doesn’t have significant financing component in the contracts with customers.

ial credit sk, Credit evaluations are performed by the Group before agreements 1o
monitored. One customer of the Group individually accounted for more than 70%

s, the Group eval the ereditworthiness based on publicly available financial information and ihe
ly reviewed and monitored by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) being the Board of
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Expected credit loss under simplified approach for trade receivables:

As at Asat As ai
Farticulars 31 March,2024 31 March, 2023 __ April 01, 2022
Ageing of gross carrying amount
Unbilled revenue 2603 122 -
Not due 59395 30492 3568
less than 180 days 27558 12361 6726
181-365 days - B80.01 341
More than 1 year 0.26 035 0.51
2-3 years # - -
More than 3 year 0.16 - 0,01
Gross carrying amount B95.08 509,91 106,87
Expected credit loss -
Net earrying amount 595.98 509.91 106.87
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances:
Credit nisk 1s linited as the Group generally invests in deposits with banks with high credit ratings assigned by i | and d ic credit rating agencies; Counterparty credit limits are
reviewed by the Group periedically and the limits are set 1o the ation of risks and thereft fi ial loss through counterparty s potential failure to make payment

Impairment on cash and cash equivalents, deposits and other financial instruments has been measured on the 12-month expected credit loss basis and reflects the short maturities af the
exposures. The Group considers that its cash and cash equivalents have low credit nsk based on external credit ratings of counterpartics.

2) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the nsk that the Group will encounter difficulty in g the obl 1ated with its fi ial liabilities that are proposed to be settled by delivering cash or other
financial asset. The Group's financial planning has ensured, as far as possible, that there 15 sufficient liquidity to meet the liabilities whenever due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurning unacceptable losses or nsking damage to the Group's reputation

The Group regularly the rolling fi to ensure it has sufficient cash on an on-going basis L0 meet operational needs. Any short-term surplus cash generated, over and above the
amount required for working capital and other op | req is retained as cash and cash equivalents (to the exient required) and any excess is invested in interest
bearing term deposits with appropriate maturities 1o optimise the cash returns on 1nvestments while ensuring sufficient hquidity to meet its liabilities.

Maturity profile of financial labilities
The following table details the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The tables include principal cash flows along with interest: To the extent that interest

fows are Noaung rate, the und 1 amount 15 derived from interest rate curves ar the end of the reporting period. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the
Group may be required to pay
Particulars
On demand| Less than 1 year] 1-5 years MoreTian S Tuotal
years
As at March 31, 2024
Barrowings 8232 378 52 12178 11023 692,85
Trade payables = 12203 0.01 - 122.04
(Other financial liabiliti = 16.31 - 16.31
As at March 31, 2023
Heoiogs 21431 273.74 122,66 13312 743.83
Trade payables - 113.00 004 - 113.04
Orther fi ial liabilines d 0.07 E 0.07
As at April 01, 2022
Borrowings 276.98 152.26 G3.18 100.92 593.34
Trade payables - 26.41 634 = 32.75
[Other financial hiabilities - 038 = 0338

3) Market risk -
Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from adverse changes in market rates and prices (such as interest rates, foreign currency

exchange rates) or in the price of market risk-sensitive instruments as a result of such adverse changes in market rates and prices. Market risk is attributable to all market risk-sensitive
financial nstruments, all foreign currency recetvables and payables and all short term and long-term debt. The Group is exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk,
mterest rate risk and the market value of its investments. Thus, the Group’s exposure to market nisk is a function of investing and borrowing activities and revenue generating and operating
activities in foreign currencies
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(a)

(b)

(c

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk 1s the nisk that the future consolidated cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group exposure to the risk of

changes in market interest rates relates primarily to its long-term: debt obligations with floating interest rates.
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk because entities in the Group, borrow funds at floating interest rates.

. As at Asat As al
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 April 01, 2022
Financial liabilities
Fixed rate borrowings 8331 21789 271827
Vanable rate borrowings 52573 42877 24575
Total borrowings 611.04 646,66 524.02

Interest rale sensitivily - variable rate instruments
The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure 1o interest rates for financial instruments at the end of the reporting year and the stipulated change taking place at

the beginning of the financial year and held constant throughout the reporting period in the case of instruments that have floating rates. A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in
interest rates at the reporting date would have increased /(decreased) profit /loss by the amounts as under:

Profit or loss
Particulars 160 basis point | 100 basis point
increase decrease
Asat March 31, 2024 526 (5.26)
Asa March 31, 2023 4.29 (4.29)]
As at Apnl 01, 2022 2.46 {2.46)

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk 1s the nisk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will Auctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The functional currency of the Group is Indian
Rupees and its revenue 1s generated from operations in India. The Group does not enter into any derivative instraments for trading or speculative purposes. The Group borrowings are all in

Indian rupees. The impact of foreign currency risk on the Group is not matenial.

Price risk

The Group is mainly exposed to the price risk due to its investment in mutual funds and equity investments. However, Group's equity investments are held for strategic rather than trading
purpuoses.

The price nsk anses due to uncertainties about the future market values of these investments. However due to the very short tenor/amount of the underlying portfolio in the funds, these do not
pose any significant price nisk
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39 Capirtal management
The Group manages its capital structure in a manner to ensure that it will be able to continue as a gowng concern while optimising the return to stakeholders through the appropriate debt and equity balance

10 equity shareholders of the Group which comprises 1ssued share capital (including premium) and

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, cash and cash equivalents and equity atirit
e lated reserves disclosed in the § of Changes in Equity.

The Group's management reviews the capital structure of the Group on an annual basis. As part of this review, the management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital,
The Group’s plan is to ensure that the gearing ratio (debt equity ratio) 15 well within the limit. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or process for managing its capital during the yvear ended March
41, 2024, March 31, 2023, April 01, 2022,

Consistent with others i the mdustry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of the fellowing gearing ratio:
= net debt (total borrowings and lease habilities net of cash and cash equivalents)

= divided by total “equity” {as shown in the balance sheet, including trolling 1]
« there have been no breaches in the fi ] of any interest-beaning loans and borrowings in the reported period
_ As at Asat As al
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 April 01, 2022
Current borrowings 440,05 466,93 416,64
Non current borrowings * 170.59 179.74 107.38
Less. Cash and cash equival luding bank bal 405.05 175.08 117.48
Total debi (A) 205.99 47159 406,54
Total equity (B) 73595 219.12 7064
Capital and net debt(C=A+B) 941.94 690.71 47718
Gearing ratio A/C 21.87% 68.28% 85.20%
* Includes current maturities of long term borrowings
40 Trade receivable ageing schedule
As on March 31, 2024
Cabilla O ling for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars v Not due Less than 6 | 6 months - 1 1-2 yeurs 2-3 years More than 3 Total
™ months year Years
Undisputed trade receivables- dered goed 26.03 593 95 275.58 E 0.26 - 016 595,08
Undispured trade receivables- which have
significant increase in credit risk o - = @ _ R . =
Undisputed trade bles- eredit impaired = = = = = = = =
Disputed trade recervables- considered good - - - - - - -
sipmificant increass in credi nsk - - - - - - =
Disputed trade roceivables- eredit impaired - - - - = > = R
(Total 26.03 593,95 275.58 - 0.26 > 0.16 §95.98
Less: Credit impaired -
nbet 595.08
As on March 31, 2023
—— Ot ling for following periods from due date of payment
i ! Less than 6 6 hs - o
Particulars i Not due eds tha months - | 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
muonths year years
Undisputed trade recervables- considered good 1.22 304,72 123 61 B0 035 7 5 509.91
Undisputed trade recervables- which have e
significant increase in credit risk = 2 = = - ~ . -
Undisputed trade ivables- credit impaired = - = = = = 3 =
Disputed trade receivables- considered good - - - - = s . =
significant increase in eredit sk - - < ] - - = =
Disputed trade receivables- credit impaired - - - - = = : -
Total 122 304.72 123.61 80.01 0.35 . = 509.91
Less: Credit impaired -
Net
. 509.91
As on April 01, 2022
) 0 ling for following periods from due date of payment
3 Unbilled
Particulars o Notdue | Lessthan6 | 6 months-1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
e maonths year years
Undisputed trade receivables- considered good - 3568 67.26 3.4l 05l - 0.01 106.87
Undisputed trade receivables- which have )
significant increase in credit nsk - - = Z - . -
Undisputed trade bles- eredit impaired - - = 15 _ = 5 =
Disputed trade receivabl lered pood . - - = = - 5 =
significant increase in credit risk = - - - - - 5
Dhsputed trade receivables- credit impaired - - - - = = 3 N
Total - 35.68 67.26 341 0.51 - 0.01 106.87
Less: Credit impaired .
Nel 106.87
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41 Trade payable ageing schedule
As on March 31, 2024

O ling for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Nat due Less than one 1-2 years 2-3 yvears More than Taotal
year 3years
Total outstanding dues of micro cnlerpnses and small enterprises - 855 - - - 8.55
Tatal fing dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises - 113.48 0.01 - - 113.49
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - = i E
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprise: - - - 5 A E
Total = 122,03 0.01 - - 122.04
As on March 31, 2023
O ling for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not due Less than one 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
year 3vears
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises = 184 - - = 1.54
Total ling dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises - 111.16 0.03 0.01 - 111.20
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises = - " = = =
|Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises - = - = = r
Total 2 113.00 0,03 0.01 - 113.04
As on April 01, 2022
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not due Less than one 1-2 years 2-3 years Mare than Tatal
year Jyears
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises = - - = - a
Total ding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises - 2641 6.34 = 32.75
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - . " .
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - . = z
Taotal - 26.41 6,34 - = 32.75

42 Segment reporting:
Operating segmen.s are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial is lable that is eval i regularly by the chief operating deci winker; s deciding: b 1o illoExs
resources and ascessing performance.

The Group 15 primarily ged in the b of Eng ing, Proc and Ci ion (EPC) refating 1o infrastructure. Information reported to and évaluated regularly by the chief operating decision
maker (CODM) for the purposes of Hocation and g perforniance focuses on the business as 4 whole and accordingly, in the context of Operating Segment as defined under the Indian
Accounting Standard 108, there is single reportable segment.

Otber information
Revenue from three customer of the Group represents 93.52% (March 31, 2023: 96.83%) of the Group total revenue

Geographical information
The following table shows the camying amount of segment assets by gec hical area 1o which these areas are atinibutable |

Non - current assels* As al As at As al
31 March 2024 31 March 2023] 01 April, 2022}
o 1533 17.59 2263
Outside India = - .
N assets excludes financial 1 and deferred 1ax assets
43 Capital and other commitmen|
Estimated amount of ining to be d on capital account and not provided for year ended March 31, 2024 is Nil (March 31,2023: Nil, and April 01, 2022: Nal)
44 Contingent liabilities
Particulars aa ALK Abat
: g March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 01 April, 2022
Corg for finanmal obl of other related party (refer note (iv)) 70.27 - =
Coip for 1 I oblig of joint ventures (refer note (iv)) 948 15.51 2213
Disputed statutory hability of Holding Company (refer nate (i) & (ii)) 771 _ 201
Disputed loan and advances of Holding Campany (refer note (1)) - 3856 38.56

Disputed demand for income tax includes a dispute of Rs. 7.71 million (March 31, 2023 Rs Nil and March 31, 2022 Rs, Mil} for financial year 2022-23 between the Holding Company and income tax
department for which the Company has filed appeals with respective authorities. In the opinion of management, no matenal liability is likely to arise on account of such claims.

(i) Disputed demand for DVAT includes a dispute of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2023. Rs. Nil and March 31, 2022 Rs. 22 01 million) for financial year 2016- 17 between the Holding Company and Department of trade

and taxes (DVAT) The Holding Company has filed an objection against the order passed by the assessing officer During the vear ending March 31, 2023, the Holding Company has received a favoursble order

and accordmgly, no contingent habuluy has been disclosed
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(iii) The Holding Company had given total advances of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2023: Rs 38 56 million and April 01, 2022: Rs 38 56 million) in different wranches requirements to Karmic Energy Private Limited

("KEPL") for acquiring majority stake in the said Company. The Company had also d ns & partial payment towards one Lime setilement of Karmie Energy Private Limited Loan Account with State Bank of
India in financial year 2020-21. The matter is subjudice & being followed up.
Sut ly, several disp had arisen b Company and "KEPL" in relation (o the agreement and both parties had filed Criminal complaints with Econonue Offences Wing of Crime Branch of Delhi

Police amang other Authorities
Stare hank of India had agreed to the request made by "KEPL" to release the amounts during the FY 23-24 and bank has released the funds in favour of the Halding Company.

The Halding Company had provided a cor g 1o the bank for financing extended to its joint venture and related party. Tn the event that the joint venture and related partyfuls to meet its pay
abligations of loan, the Holding Company will be required to fulfill the loan obligations. Hi " was issued based on the joint s and related party credi hi and ifs strong
repayment lustory, with no prior defaults. Therefore, the Hokding Company has not recognized a liability in relation to this corporate guarantes given (o joint venture and related party. The impact of eorpporate

BuUarantee commission 1s not material to the Group.

(iiv]
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45 Additivnal information pursuant to Division Il of Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013 *General instructions , of enterprises lidated as | joint ventures for

the preparation of lid

d financial stat

(i) As of March 31, 2024

Net assels i.e. total assets . - B Share in lotal comprehensive
minus total liabilities Skars s profiv:fien) Sharei OCY inmmep
Name of the entity % of consolidated
% ol consolidated % of consolidated % of consolidated total other
T Amount profit/ {loss) Amount ocI Amount comprehensive Amount
income
Holding Company:
Solarwerld Energy Solutions Private Limited 41.38% 572.52 94 67% 48935 62.72% (D.05)] 94.67% 489 30
Subsidiaries:
Ortusun Renewable Power Private Limited -0, 29% (2.11) 0,028 (011} 0.00% - -0.02% (.11
Joint Venture:
Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private
Limted 6.68% 49.20 4 68% 24.12 42 26% (0.03) 4.67% 24.16
Danton Power Private Limited -1.64% (12 08) 0.20% 1.06 00085 = 0,20% 1.06
Kehan Solarworld Private Limited 2.18% 16.08
Futurelife Foods Private Limied 091% 6.68 -0.56% (2.88) 0.00% = -0.56% (238)
Associate
Pioneer Global Enterprises Private Limited 0.00% 0.00 101% (0.03) 0.00% - -0.01% (0.03)
Sub total 99.23% 730.29 93.97% 511.58 104.98% (0.08)) 98.97% 511.50
::::":;'i“:;f;'l“’.djm;’:‘;‘""“" Ll 0.77% 567 1.03% 533 -4.98% 0.00 1L.03% 533
Total 100.00%: 735.96 100.00% 516.91 100.00%, (0.08){ 100.00%% 516.83
(ii),ia of March 31,2003
Net assets Le, total assets : < g Py Share in total comprehensi
minus total liabilities Share in profit/ (loss) Sharein OCI incumep "
Name of the entity % of consolidated
% of consolidated Keibiior % of consolidated s Yo of consolidated A ot total other -—
nel assets profit! (loss) ol mou comprehensive SmomnL
income
Holding Company;
Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited 83.59% 183.16 90.52% 134 29 138.91% 016 90.55% 134.45
Joint Venture:
Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private
Limited 11.42% 25.03 10.29%% 1527 -38.91% {0.04) 10,25% 1522
Danton Power Private Limited -0.08% (0.17) 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% 2
Kehan Solarworid Private Lumuted 6850 15.02 0.84% 1.24 0.00% - 0.84% 1.24
Futurelife Foods Private Limited 4 36% 955 -1.67% (247) 0.00%% - -1L.67% (2.47)
Associate
Pioneer Global Enterprises Private Limited 0:01% 0.02 0.02% .04 .00% = 0.02% 004
Sub total 106.15% 232.61 100.00% 148.36 100.00% 0.12 100.00% 148,48
Intercomp liminati and] . ;
consolidation adjustments S:16% (13.49) R (0.00) a.00s z 003 (0.00)
Total 100.00% 219.13 100.00% 148.36 100.00% 0.12 100.00% 148.48
(iii) As of April 01, 2022
Nﬂ‘assels e l}:tal 'nlsael,s Share in profit/ (loss) Share in OCI Share in total comprehensive
minus total liahilities income
: % of consolidated
Nameaf ety % of consolidated Amouni Y of consolidated pr— %a of consolidated Amdki total ather A
net assets profit/ (loss) 01 com prehensive -
income
Holding Company:
Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited GB.96%) 48.71 30.12% 5,62 308 21%, 0.20 30.97% 6.82
Joint Venture:
Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private
Limited 13.90% Q.82 46.64% 10.25 -298.21% (0.15) 45.87% .o
Danton Power Private Limited -4 54% (3.21) 0.00%% - 0.00% =] 0.00% n
Kehan Solarworld Private Limited 19,5080 13.78 597% 131 0.00% - 5.06% 131
Futurelife Foods Private Linuted 17.02% 12.03 -8.00% (1.76) 0.00%% - -7.98% (1.76)
Associate
Pioneer Global Enterprises Private Limited 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% =
Sub total 114.84% 8113 T4.73% 16.42 100.00% 0.05 T4.81% 16.47
l“"".f"."p;::y o ok = -14.84% (10.49) 2527% 555 0.00% . 25 168, 555
Total 100.00%% 70.64 1040, 00%% 21.97 100.00% 0.05 100.00%% 212.02
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46 Business combinations

A) Transactions during the year ended 31 March 2024
Acquisition of Ortusun R ble Power Private Limited
On 10 January 2024, the Holding Company has entered into a Share Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with M/S Sirius Renewable Power Private Limited to acquire 100% of the share of Ortusun
Renewable Privete Limited and consequently control over Ortusun Renewable Private Limited. Total purchase consideration of Rs 4.00 million was discharged fully 1n cash. The excess of the
purchase consideration paid over the fair value of assets acquired has been attributed to goodwill
Ortusun Renewable Private Limited is engaged in business of development, ser up and running of solar energy generation plant. The Holding Company obtained 20MW solar park final in
principal grid connectivity approval from Maharashtra State Electricity Transmission Company Limited (MSETCL). The Group lers this acquisition 10 be a busi under Tnd AS 103 -
Bust Combinations and has ac i for the same by applying the acquisiti thod of ac ng.

Details of consideration transferred given below:
The total fair value of the consideration transferred is determined as follows:

Particalars Amouing

(in Rupee)

Cash consideration paid 4.00
Deferred purchase consideration ”

4.00

Total fuir value of the consideration transferred for purpose of computing goodwill
This table represents the fair value of asssets and liabilines:

Particulars Fair value
Cash and cash equivalent 0.07
Total assets acquired (a) 0.07
iabilites assumed
Borrowings 2.00
Trade payable 0.07
Tatal linbilities assumed (a) 2.07
Net identifiable assets acquired (a-b) (2.00)
Caleulation of goodwill:
The excess of the consideration transfarred over the fair value of the net assets acquired 15 allocated 1o goodwill as computed below
Particulars i Amaiat
(in Rupee)
Total fair value of the consideration transferred for purpose of computing goodwall 4.00
Net identifiable assets acquired (2.00)
Goodwill on acquisition 6.00

During the year ended 31 March 2024, Ortusun Renewable Private Limited contributed Nil and loss of Rs 0.11 million to the consolidated revenue and profits/ (loss) respectively.
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47 The list of subsidiaries and associates/ joint ventures in the ¢ lidated fi ial stat. ts are as under;
Saricci Country of Principal activity of As at Asat As at
AXHCIAES incurErulion business March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 Aer_i; 01, 2022
Subsidiary
Ortusun Renewable Power Private Limited India Independent power producer 100.00%, 00094 00004
Associate
Pioneer Global Enterprises Private Limited India Trading business 20.00% 20.00%, 0.00%
Joint ventures
Danton Power Private Limited India Service business 51.00% 51.00% 51.00%
Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Limited India Manufacturing business 24.00% 24.00%, 24.00%,
o endent roducer
Kehan Solarworld Private Limited India Toeprdont pesen prodic 51.00% 51.00% 51.00%
Futurelife Foods Private Limited India Trading business 25 00%| 25.00% 25 00%

ities, following is the disclosure reluting to joint ventures and associate of the Company:

48 Pursuant to para B14 of Ind AS 112, Discl ¢ in other
(a) Associates:
(i) The Company has no material associate. The ised fi tal il n respect of the Company s not material associate that are accounted is set forth below
. . As at As al As at
Particulass March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Carrying amoun! of the Company's interest 1n associate 0.02 0.06 =
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Company's share of profit in associate (0.03) 0.04
Company's share of other comprehensive income in associate - 3
(0.03) 0.04

Company's share of total other comprehensive income in associaie

(b} Jdoint ventures:
(i) The aggregate summanized financial information 1n respeet of Company 's not matenial joint ventures that are accounted is set forth belaw

Particulars asat Asat it
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Carrying amount of the Company's mterest in joint ventures 16 08 2035 2404
Partiulars For the year ended For the year ended
Mﬂch 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Campany's share of profit in joul ventures (1.82) (1.23)
Company's share of other comprehensive income in joint ventures - 2
Company's share of total other comprehensive meome in joint ventures (1.82) (123
(ii) The ageregate summarized financial information in respect of Company 's material joint venture that are accounted is set forth helow:
(a) Summarised balance sheet of material joint venture:
Particulars (Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Limited) March 3 I,‘;:l:c: — ";;;; ek Mla:;;;
Non current assets 131.05 120,62 13872
Total current assels 328.93 159.23 151.18
Cash and cash equivalents 0.29 034 4577
Other current assets 328 64 258.89 10541
Total assets 459.98 379,85 289.90
Non carrent liabilities 1233 38.78 118.10
Finaneial hiabilines (excluding trade pavables) - 3123 112.12
Other Liabilities (including trade payables) 12:33 7.55 598
Current Liabilities 242,66 236.75 130.90
F ial liabiliues (excluding trade payables) 154,24 169,81 6323
Other liabilities (including trade payables 8842 66,94 67.67
Total linbilities 254.99 275.53 249.00
Nel assets 204.99 104.32 40.90
{b} Reconciliation of carrying amounts of material joint venture:
i As at As al As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Opening net assets 104.32 4090 =121
Profit! for the year 100,81 63.61 42.74
Orther comprehensive income (0.14) (0 15) {0.63)
Closing net assels 204.99 104.32 40,90
Group's share in % 24.00% 24.00% 24.00%
Group’s share 49.19 25.03 981
Add: Goodwall ineluded in carrying amoumt of investment in joint veniure 2283 22 83 2283
72.03 47.87 32.65

Carrying amount
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() Summarised statement of profit and loss of material joint venture:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024 Murch 31, 2023
Revenue 1,263 67 S71.60
Interest income M Lo3
Finance cost 937 14.44
Dep and amor 14.83 16.19
Tax expenses 35.65 24 76
Profit/ for the yesr 100.81 63.61

Other comprehensive income {0.14) (0.19)
Total comprehensive income 100.67 63,42

(d) € i ts and ingent liabilities in respect of and joint venture

. As at As at Asat

Fiiticlirs March 31,2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
0.80 4424 194 89

Contingent liabilities
Capital commitment
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49 First time adoption of Ind AS ('FTA")

These lidated fi for the year ended March 31, 2024, are the first consolidated fi 12l stat, ts, the Group has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For periads up to
and in¢luding the year ended March 31, 2023, the Group prepared its lidated fi 1al st in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companics Act
2013, read 1ogether with p ph 7 of the Companies (A ) Rules, 2014 ("Indian GAAP" ar "Previous GAAP")

Accordingly, the Group has prepared lidated financial stat ts which comply with Ind AS appheable for the year ended on March 31, 2024, together with the comparative period data as
at and for the year ended March 31, 2023, as described in the summary of material accounting policies.

In preparing these lidated financial the Group's opening balance sheet was prepared as at April 01, 2022, the Group’s date of transition to Ind AS. This note explains the
principal adjustments made by the Group in restating its Indian GAAP lidated fi i luding the bal sheet a5 at April 01, 2022 and the Tidated fi S ATeTy +

as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

A, Exemptions availed on first time adoption of Ind AS:
Ind AS - 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions and certain optional exemptions from the spective application of certain requi under Ind AS The Group has applie the

following exemptions and optional exemptions:
(i) Mandatory Exceplions

(a) Estimates :-
On assessment of the estunates made under the previous GAAP financial statements, the Group has concluded that there is no necessity 1o revise the estimates under Ind AS, as there is no
objective evidence of an error in those However, esti that were required under Ind AS but not required under previous GAAP are made by the Group for the refevant reporting

dates reflecting conditions existing as a1 that date. Key estimates considered in preparation of financial staterments that were not required under the previous GAAP are listed below:
- Fair valuation of financial instruments carried at FVTPL

- Determination of the discounted value for financial instruments carried are amortized cost.

= Impairment of financial assets based on the expected credit loss model,

(b} Classification and measurement of financial assets:
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification of financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances existing as at the date of transition. Further, the standard permits measurement of

financial assets accounted at umortized cost based on facts and cireumstances esasting at the date of ranisition if refrospective application is impracticable, Accordingly, the Group has determined
the classification of financial assets based on facts and circumstances that exist on the date of transition, Measurement of financial assels accounted at amortized cost has been done
retrospectively except where the same is impracticable

(c} De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities

Ind AS 101 requires a firsl-tune adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions oceurring on or after the date of transition to Ind AS However, Ind
AS 101 allows a first-time adopier to apply the de-recognition requirements in Ind AS 109 retrospectively from a date of entity's choice provided that the information needed 10 apply Ind AS 109
tofi ial assets and fi il liabilities derecognized as a result of past transactions was obtained at the time of initially ing for those tr:

There are no items of financial asset and liabilities which are required to be de-recognized as per Ind AS 109

(d) Classification of security deposit
Under Ind AS, secunity deposit received/given are recorded as current financial liabiliry/current financial assets as the same (s repayahble/receivable on demand,

(i) Optional Exemptions

(a) Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment:

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equip as recogmized in the fi 1 as at the date of rransition
to Ind AS, measured as per previous GAAP and used that as ils deemed cost as ar the date of transition afier making v ad) for dect issioning liabilities. A lingly, the
Company has elected 10 measure all of its property, plant and equipment al their previous GAAP carrying value as at ransition date Apnl 01, 2022 The Group has followed the same i

pobicy o (both datory ptions and optional ions availed as per Ind AS 101) as initially adopted on the transition date 1e. Apnil 01, 2022 while preparing the restated

. ] 5 For the pur of fi ial for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 the Company has provided the depreciation based on the
estimated useful life of respective years,

(b) Business combination

Ind AS 101 provides the option to apply Ind AS 103 prospectively from the ition date or from a specific date prior 1o the rransition date This provides relief from full retrospective
application that would require restat of all business comb prior to the ition date.

The Company elected to apply Ind AS 103 prospectively to busi combinations occurring after its ition date. Busi binations occurring pror to the transition date have not been
restated. The group has applied same ption for in in 1ate and joint ventures,

(e} I ents in subsidiaries, iate and its joint ventures and impairement of financial assets

Under previous GAAP, juinl ventures were classified as subsidiaries and accordingly accounted for using the line by line mcthod at the time of consolidation Based on an assessment under Ind
AS 111 Joint Arrangements, these have been d as jountly lled operations using the proportionate consolidanon method. The assessment is based on the fact that there is a
contractual arrangement that indicate that the parties Lo the joint ventures have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities of the joint arrangement.

The Company has elected to carry its investments in subsidiary and associate and its joint ventures at deemed cost being carry ing amount under previous GAAP on the transition date.

(iii} Reconciliation between previous GAAP and Ind AS
A. Transition from previcus GAAP to Ind AS, balance sheet and statement of profit and loss accounts does not have any impact expect the reclassification as required by the Ind AS,

B. Financial assets measured al amortized cost
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities The Group has financial receivables and payables that are non-derivative financial instruments Under previous GAAP, these were carried at

cost less all for impai . if any. Under Ind AS, these financial assets and liahilities are mitiafly recognized at fawr value and subsequently measured at amortized cost, less
! for imp if any, For entered inta on or after the date of transition to Ind AS, the qui of initial r ition at far value is applied prospectively

C. Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Under previous GAAP, the vestments in mutual funds were recognized at cost, Whereas under Ind AS, the same are subsequently recogmzed at fair value at the end of every financial reporting
year. Accordingly, the difference between the cost and the fair value of the mutual funds is recognized as a gam / (loss) in the statement of profit and loss
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D. Remeasurement gain/{loss) of net defined benefit obligation
Under previous GAAP, actuanial gains and losses were recogmised in profit or loss. Under Ind AS, the actuanial gains and losses form part of (cm:ammmem of the net defined benefit Liability /

asset which is recogmised in other comprehensive income Consequently . the tax effect of the same has also been ised in ather p ive income under Ind AS instead of profit or
loss. This change does not affect total equity.

E. Deferred tax adjustments
Under Previous GAAP, deferred taxes were recognized for the tax efTect of timing differences between accounting profit and taxable profit for the year using the income statement approach,

Under Ind AS, deferred taxes are recognized using the balance sheel approach for future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying value of assets and liabilitics and their
respective tax bases. The above difference, together with the quential tax impact of the other Ind AS transitional adjustments lead to temporary diff Deferred tax adj are
recognized in correlation o the underlying transaction erther in retained earnings or through statement of profit and loss or other comprehensive income,

F. Revenue from contracts with customers:
Under Previous GAAP, revenue is recognised when the seller has transferred the property in goods. Under Ind AS, the Company shall recognise revenue when it

by transferring a promused goods or services to the customers.

Certain sales centracts were accounted under the previous GAAP on a gross hasis. However, under Ind AS, based on an evaluation carried oul, the group has determined that it is acting as an
agent after idering a ber of factors, including, among other things, whether the Group is the primary obligor under the has inventory risk. has ‘s credit risk and has
latitude in establishing prices. Thus, under Ind AS, revenue has been recorded on a net basis. The change does not affect the total equity as at April 01, 2022 and March 31, 2023, profit before tax

or total profit for the year ended March 31, 2023

. i 5

a perfi |

G. Inv in subsidiaries and iate and its joint ventures
Under previous GAAP, joint ventures were classified as subsidiaries and dingly d for using the line by line method at the time of consolidation, Based on an assessment under Ind

AS | these subsidiaries are treated as joint venture because the Company has joint control over the above entities and there is no contractual arrangement or any other facts and circumstances that
wdicate that the parties to the joint venture have rights to the assets and obligations for the lLiabilities of the joint arangement Group has also joint control over above companies as the
of its di and the allocation of voting nghts for key business decisions require unammous approval of the shareholders

H. Explanatory notes for prior period adjustments
Under its previous GAAP, the Group discovered that certain adjustments pertaining to cut off of revenue and purchase at year end, overhead loading in inventories, and estimate of long term

luation were erfc | tledd This lted in an adj 10 the affected financial statement line items for prior years that is not the result of

employee benefits on the basis of actuanal
a change o accounting policy.

L. Liability on onerous contract
The Group has recognised the liability on onerous contract in accordance with Ind AS 37 regarding costs that an entity needs to include when assessing whether a contract 15 onerous or loss-

making,

J. Regrouping / reclassification **
Appropriate adjustments have been made in the lidated financial wherever required, by a reclassification of the corresponding items of i P assets, liabilities and
cash flows in order to bring theni in line wath the Ind AS presentation requirements.
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B.

Transition of balance sheet as at March 31, 2023

Particulars Notei M:sﬂ_:e; IIC;;;]: Reclassifications ** Remeasurement Prior period error Mt’::;i:‘;'ﬁ‘
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant & equipment 1i{ G) 54.27 (42.51) . 11.76
Financial Assets
(D) Lnvestments iii (FI) S581 (010 15.06 (5.49) 63 38
& (G)
11) Other financial assets = 2.11 = = 211
Other non current assets uyG) 000 - (0.00) e
Deterred tax assets (net) ut (H) (2.92) - 431 328 468
& ()

Non-current tax assels (net) : 3.72 - s 3.72
Total non current assets 110.16 573 (23.14) (2.21) 90.54
Current assels
Inventories il S05.78 = (490.59) 15.19
Financial assets

(i) Investments i C) - 010 0.06 = 016
(i1) Trade receivables (G & 350 80 - (41.38) 0.49 509.9]

Hi(H)

(i1} Cash and cash equivalents 1i{G) 180.54 (133 .87) (3 36) - 4331
(iv) Bank balances other than {iii) above - 131.76 - - 131 76
(v} Loans i) 460 56 {199.66) (7.20) = 253.70

({vi} Others fmancial assets - 032 = = 0.32
Other current assets n(G) & 6.94 15137 (0.23) 1.30 15938

1i(H)
Tatal current assels 1,704.62 (49.98) (52.11) (488.80)) 1,113.73
Total assels 1,814.78 (44.25 {75.24) (491.01) 1,204.27
Equity & liabilities

| Equity
Equity share capital 3.20 - = = 320
Other equity 22643 1.3l (12 01) 21592
Total equity 229.63 - 1.51 (12.01) 219,12
Minority Interest 1i{ (3) 14 27 - (14.27) - =
Non current liabilities

| Financial liabiliti
(i) Borm\\-:i_r_lgs ni(G) 181.87 2 (11.41) = 170,46
Provisians i () 185 = {1.22) - (.63
Total non current lighilities 183.72 - (12.63) - 171,09
Current linbilities
Financial habilities

(1) Borrowings 477 68 2.61 {4.09) - 476.20

(11} Trade payables i (H) 637 90 398 (36.31) (492.53) 113.04

& (G)

(111} Other financial habilities 2 0.07 = s 0.07
Other current liabilities 1i( ) 223,80 (3.91) (5.88) - 21121
Provisions i (H) 4778 (47.20) (0.57) 13.53 13.54

& (D)

Total current liabilities 1387.16 (44.25 (49.85) (479.00) 814.06

Total equity & liahilities 1,814.78 (44.25) {75.24) (491.01) 1204.27
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C. Transition of statement of profit and loss for the year ended on March 31, 2023
Particulars hotes .\htlfe;l,uz:l)‘::f Reclassifications ** Remeasurement Prior period error Mtlr::f;in:a‘::
Revenue from operations il () & 2.584.23 - (213,20} (46.42) 2324 61
i (H)
Other income i1 () 26.08 - 017 = 250
Total income 2.610.31 - (213.37) (46,42 2,350,852
Cost of materials consumed - 1.866.30 - (4885 181745
Purchase of stock in trade 2,296 86 2.203.43) - - 3.43
Change in inventory (490.55) 490,55 A = 0.00
Direct expenses 111 () 468.27 (302.13) (166.14) = 00
Engineering, procurement and construction project expenses 1 Gy - 252,56 - - 152 55
| Employee benefit exg ui (D) 37.08 - (32.09) - 499
Finance cost nt (H) 6316 (2.800 (1.30) 59.06
& (G
Depreciation and amortization expense iii (G) 5.12 - (2.31) - 23]
Cther expense ui (H) 34.70 (13.85)/ (536) 16.00 31.49
& (G)
Taotal expenses 2.414.64 0.00 (209.20) (34.15) 2.171.29
Profit before share of profit/(loss) of an associate/ joint venture ER, (0.00) &1 (222 179.23
Share in profit/(loss) of joint ventures/associate (net of taxes) i () - 12.83 1.24 - 1407
Profit before tax 195,67 12.83 (2.93) (12:27) 193.30
Tax Expenses
Current tax 1 (G 47 46 - (0.26) = 47.20
Deferred tax iii (E) 038 (635 (3.28)) (2.26)
Mat credit 1 (H) - - - =
& (G)
Total tax expenses 47.84 - 0.39 (3.28) 44.94
Profit/{loss) after fax 147.84 12.83 (3.32) (8.99) 148.36
Other comprehensive income for the year
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans - 0.20 020
:::1:‘;{, ta: relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit i (D) . (©.05) (0.05)
z?;r:[!?:‘:::r comprehensive income of joint ventures/associate 4 (E) R (0.03) S 0
Other comprehensive income for the year - 10.03) 0.15 - 0.12
Tatal comprehensive income for the year 147.84 12.80 (3.17) (8.99) 148.48
Profit for the year attributable to ;
Owier of the Company iii (G} 143.72 1283 0.80 (8 99) 148.36
Non-controlling interests i (G) 412 - (4.12) - -
147.84 12.83 (3.32) (8.99) 148.36
Other comprehensive income atiribulable to :
Owner of the Company (0.03) 015 - 0.12
| Non-controlling interests - - £ - =
= (0.03) 0.15 - 0.12
Total other comprehensive income attributable to :
Cwner of the Company 11 () 143.72 12 80 0.95 (8.99) 148.48
Non-controlling interests ut (G) 4.12 - (4.12) - =
147.84 12.80 (3.17) (8.99)) 148,48
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Notes to the lidated financial ts for the year ended March 31. 2024
{Amounts are ¥ in millions unless otherwise stated)

Transition of balance sheet as at A[nril 01, 2022

Particulars Nates As per IGAAP s £ As per Ind AS|
April 01, 2022+ Reclassilications Remeasurement Prior period error April 01, 2022)
Assets
Non-current assets
Property plant & equipment 1ii( () 4961 (45.29) - 4.32
Financial Assels
(1} Investments i (H) 46.04 (0,10} 13.78 13.02)] 56.70
& (G)
(ii} Other fi ial assets - 11 59 - = 1159
Deferred tax assets (net) 1i((3) {2.54)) - 399 1.02 2,46
Other non current assets i (H) 0.00 - {0.00) .00
& (E)
Non-current lax assets (net) - 672 - - 672
Taotal non current assets 93.11 18.21 (27.52) {2.00) £1.79
Current assets
Inventaries 1i(H) 1523 = - - 1523
Financial assets
(i) Investments Hi(C) - 0.10 0.05 - 0.15
(i1) Trade receivables (G} 108.36 - (1.49) - 106,87
& 1ii( H)
(111) Cash and cash equivalents i G) 133.44 (110.76) (4.37) B 18.31
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii} above - 99.17 - - 99,17
(v) Loans (G} 32548 (24 85) (4.35) - 29628
(vi) Others financial assets - 0.23 - - 0.23
Other current assets i G3) 5409 204 (0.14) = 3500
& uigH)
Total current assets 636,60 (34.07) (10.30) - 59223
Total assets 729.71 (15.86) |37.82}_ [2.00) 674.02
Equity & liabilities
[ Equity
Equity share capital 3.20 = - - 3.20
Other equity 6995 - 0.52 (3.02) 6744
Total equity 73.15 - 0.52 (3.02) 70.64
Minority interest i11{G) 10.15 & {10.13) - -
Non current linbilities
Financial Liabilits
(1) Berrowings 11892 - (1731) - 101.41
Provisions = = 0.65 - (.65
Total non current liabilities 118,92 - (16.86) 5 102.06
Current linhilities
Financial habilities
(1) Borrowings 42568 1.25 {4.62) = 42261
(11} Trade payables ;I(i};’} 45.69 (9.80) (4.18) 102 32.75
(111) Orher financial hiabil - 038 - = 0.38
Other current liabil (G 32 (2.65) (2.09) - 4557
Provisions i (H) 5.50 {5.04) (0.45) 0.01
& (D)
Total current liabilities 51749 (15.86) {11.33 1.02 501.32
Tatal equity & liabilities 729.71 (15.86) (37.82) (2.00 674,02

* The audited financial statements figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purposes of this note.
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Notes to the lidated financial siat ts for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Amounts are ¥ in millions unless otherwise stated)

49 First time adoption of Ind AS ('FTA') {cont'd)
Reconciliation between previous GAAP and Ind AS

The fullowing reconciliations provide the explanation and qualification of the dif arising from the transition from previous GAAP 10 Ind AS in accordance with Ind AS 101, First time
doption of Indian A g Standards.
1. Equity reconciliation
. As at As at
Particulars Notes March 31. 2023 April 01,2022
Equity as reported under previous GAAP 226.43 69,95
Ind AS adjustments
Remeasurement of graity and other comprehensive income i (D) (0.15) (0.66)
Financial assets measured at FVTPL i (C) 0.03 0.02
Remeasurement of mutual fund i1 {€) 0.03 003
R of pr ing fees on borrowing il (H) 1.30 (1.02)
Remeasurement of impairment on investment 1 (H) (5.49) (3.02)
Provision for onerous contract i (H) (13.53) -
Remeasurement of revenue as per Ind as 115 i (F}) 1.66 (2.43)
Recognition share in profit’(loss) of joint ventures/associate (net of taxes) m {G) 255 131
Change in share of profit from subsidiary on sccount of Ind AS adoption and other comrection il (G) (2.69) 1,42
Prior period adjustment on inventory i (H) 195 _
Dieferred tax impact on the aforesaid adjustments 1t (E) 383 1.84
Other equity as per Ind AS 215.92 67.44
2. Total comprehensive income reconciliation
N As ot
Particulars Notes N 51 3545
Profit after tax as per previons GAAP 147 84
Ind AS adjustments
Fair value adjustments’

Investments at fair value through profit and loss account w (C) 001
Remezaurement of employee benelit obligation (net of tax) iii (DY 0.46
Remeasurement of Imparrment on investment 1 (H) (247)
Provision for onerous contract iii (H) (13.53)
Remeasurement of processing fees on barrowings it (H) 232
Remeasurement of revenue as per Ind as 113 m(F) 410
Change in share of profit from subsidiary on account of Ind AS adoption and other correction (8.42)
Recognition share in profit/(loss) of joint ventures/associate (net of taxes) 14.04
Prior period adjustment on inventory iii (H) 194
Deferred tax impact on the aforesaid adjustments m {E) 204
Net profit after tax as per Ind AS 14833

(iher comprehensive income (net of 1ax) ni oy 015
Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS 148.48
3. Cash flow recoaciliation for the vear ended March 31, 2023

As per previous GAAP Ind AS Adjustments As per Ind As
Net cash flows from operating activities (20.68) (50.72) (71.40)
Net cash flows used in investing activities 354 2928 3232
Net cash flows from financing activities 64.23 (0.63) 63.58
Net increase/(decrense) in cash and cash equivalents 47.09 (22.10) 24,99
Cash and cash equivalents at the April 01,2022 133.45 (L15.14) 1831
Cash and cash equivalents at the March 31, 2023 180,54 (137.23) 43,30

Statement of cash flow
Other than effect of cenain reclassications due to difference in presentation, there was no other material effect of cash flow from operating. financing, investing activities for all years presented
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Notes to the lidated fi ial stat ts for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Amounts are ¥ in millions unless otherwise stated)

50 Other statutory information
(1) The Group do not have any inmovable property wlich is not held in the name of Group.
(i1} The Group has not provided any loan or advances to specified persons
(i11) The Group do not have any benami property, where any p fing has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any benami property.
{iv) The Group has not availed any facilities from banks on the basis of security of current assels
{v) The Group is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or any financial instilution.
(v1) The Group does not have any transactions with struck-off companies.
(i) The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which 1s yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory penod

(viii) The Group have not received any fund from any person or entity. including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the und ling (whett ded in writing or otherwise) that the Group
shall

{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries,
(ix)The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person or entity, including foreign entities (intermediaries) with the understanding that the intermediary shall.

{a) directly or mdirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (ultimate beneficiaries); or
(b) provide any guarantee, secunty or the like 1o or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries
(x) The Group does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the vear in the tax assessments under the

Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961)

(x1) The Group has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual Currency during the financial year.

(xit)The Group has complied with the number of layers for its holding in d 1 E0 prescnibed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies

(Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017
(11} The Group has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial years.

{x1v)The Group had sanctioned werking capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks and/or financal mstitutions in the previous years on the basis of security of current assets
of the Group The quarterly returns/statements filed by the Group with such banks and financial institutions are generally m ag with the fited books of of the Group except

wiven as below® -

Working capital limit |Nature of current | Amount as per Amount as per
Period ended [Name of bank |sanclion :;:::; “o;t::i:;em Annety assels/current boalks (Rs. injstock summary (Rs.| Difference(R] l?_leamn fof m alerial
(Rs. in million) linbilities million) i million)| s. in million) discrepancies
; Debtars 15 As  explined by the
s " 208 .1 2 }
Sep-23 HDEC Bank 1,174.00 Pari-passu charge on current .208.07 1,209,438 (141 the Quarterly
assels Creditors statement  submitted  wath|
101.88 101.88 - |Banks were prepared and filed
) . Debtars 1.186.61 1.187.79 1 194|before the completion of all
Dec-23 HDFC Back B Pari-passu charge on current — (19 2 S s
assets Creditors . 3
112.36 118 96 0.40 |which led to the abovel
Inventory i dif between the bouks]
Pari-passu charge an current 222 i 2222 ot accounts and quarterly
Mar-24 HDFC Bank 1174.00 o Deblors 747.47 763 56 (16 08)|statement  submitted  with)
Creditors Banks based on provisionall
119.52 117.92 160 |books of account

* Group has not filed return for the first quarter of year ended March 31, 2024 and for the year ended March 31, 2023 and April 01, 2022, afterwards the quarterly returns or statements comprising
(stock statements, book debt statements, statements on ageing analysis of the debtors/other receivables, and other stipulated financial information) filed by the Group with such banks or financial

institutions are not in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Group of the respestive quarters

51 Subsequent Events
(1) The Board of directors of the Group in their meeting held on April 17, 2024 and April 22, 2024, has approved a private placement of 16,874 and 14,673 equity shares at a issue price of Rs

15,625/~ and Rs 17068.70/- per equity shares respectively. Further these shares have been allotied in two tranches on Apnil 17, 2024 (16,874 shares) and Apnil 22, 2024 (14,673 shares)

(1) On April 10, 2024, the Group has entered into a share transfer agreement with Teltia Trading Private Limited, Rishabh Jam and Sushil Kumar Jain, Pursuant to which the Group has transferred
its 13,50,000 shares in Ankita Agro and Food Processing Private Limited to the mennoned individuals for Rs. 38.67 each equily shares.

(i1} The Board of Directors, af their meeting held on August 19, 2024, recommended for the sub-division of equity shares of the Company from exsting face value of INR 10/~ each into face value
of INR. 5/- each (i.c. split of | equity share of INR. 10/~ each into 2 equity shares of INR. 5/- each), and the same has been approved by the shareholders in the Extracrdinary General Meeting of the
Company held on August 22, 2024

{1v) On Septemher 13, 2024, the board proposed the issue of bonus shares of 70,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/~ each in the proportion of 11100 , i.e 100 (One Hundred) Bonus Equity Shares of Rs,
5/- each for every 1 (one) fully paid-up Equity Share of Rs. 5/- each held by the existing shareholders of Company

(v) The Holding Company has inereased its Authorised capital from Rupees 10 million to Rupees 450 million after the approval sought in shareholder's meeting held on August 22, 2024

(vi) The Company has passed a special resolution in the Extra Ordiniary General Meeting (EGM) of the shareholders of the © pany on August 24, 2024 to conven the Company from Private
Limited to Public Limited and consequently Company has filed form for fresh certificate of incorporation. The approval from Registrar of Company (ROC) has not received till the date of approval

of the financial statements.
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52 The Holding Company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, but the Holding Company has not plemented the feature

of recording audit trail (edit log) facility during the year,
In respect of one . ong subsidiary Is and four joint ventures companies which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughaut

the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the accounting soitware sy stem

53 Previous year figures have been regrouped’ rearranged, wherever considered necessary to conform to current year's ¢lassification.

Basis of preparation and material accounting policies 2
See accompanying notes that form an intergal part of these lidated financial stat 1
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Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
CIN: U15100DL2013PTC255455
Notes to consolidated financial statement for the vear ended March 31, 2024

Corporate Information

Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited (‘the Company” or the *Holding Company’) is a Private
Limited Company domiciled in India & was incorporated on July 17, 2013, under the provisions of
Companies Act-2013 (the “Act’) applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located at
501. Padma palace .86, Nehru Place, South Delhi. New Delhi-110019. India. The Company is principally
engaged in the business ot solar power plant set up. engineering, procurement and construction (EPC) elc.

The Holding Company, together with its subsidiary (hercinafter, the 'Group') and its and its associate and
joint ventures, is primarily engaged business of solar power plant set up, engineering, procurement and
construction (EPC), solar accessories. and undertakes related construction/project related activities. Refer
note 48 for entities considered in consolidation.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024 are approved

for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on September 16, 2024.

The following entities are considered in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Parriculars Plant nature Country of Principal As at As at As at
incorporation | activity of March | March April 01,
business 31,2024 31, 2022
2023
Subsidiary
Ortusun Renewable Power Private Operational India Independent 100.00% 0.00% 0.00%,
Limited solar power
producer
Associate
Pioneer Global Enterprise Private Operational India Trading 20.00% | 20.00% 0.00%
Limited business
Joint ventures
Danton Power Private Limited Operational India Service 51.00% | 51.00% 51.00%
Ankita Agro and Foods Processing | Operational India Manufacturing 24.00% | 24.00% 24000,
Private Limited business
Kechan Solarworld Private Operational India Independent SLO0% | 51.00% 51.00%
Limited solar power
. producer :
Futurelife Foods Private Operational India Trading 25.00% | 25.00% 25.00%
Limited business

Basis of preparation, measurement and material accounting policies

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards ('Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA') under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ('Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015, as
amended and other relevant provisions of the Act,




Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
CIN: U15100DL2013PTC255455
Notes to consolidated financial statement for the yvear ended March 31, 2024

There were no requirement to prepare consolidated financial statements up to year ended March 31,2023
in accordance with the accounting standards notitied under the section 133 of the Act, read together with
paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 ("Indian GAAP", "Previous GAAP"). These
consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, are the first set of consolidated
financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. The date of transition to Ind AS is April 01, 2022
(hereinafter referred to as the 'transition date’).

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 and the opening balance sheet as
at April 01, 2022 have been restated in accordance with Ind AS for comparative information.
Reconciliations and explanations of the effect of the transition from Previous GAAP to Ind AS on the
balance sheet, statement ot protit and loss (including comprehensive income) and cash flow statement are
provided in note no.49.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except where a newly issued
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change
in the accounting policy thereto in use.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on going concern, accrual and historical cost basis
except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

= Defined benefit plans-plan assets measured at fair value.

» Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy
hitherto in use.

Functional & presentational currency

The consolidated financial statements has been presented in Indian Rupees (Rs. or INR), which is also the
Gtroup’s functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest millions and decimals
thereof, unless otherwise mentioned.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the consolidated financial statements of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary. associate and its joint ventures. Control is achieved where the Company.

a) has power over the investee

b) is exposed to, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

¢) has the ability to use its power to atfect its returns.

The Group reassess whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically. income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year arc included in the consolidated statement of profit and loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.
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Notes to consolidated financial statement for the vear ended March 31, 2024

Consolidation procedure:

Subsidiary

a)

b)

d)

Combine items of assets. liabilities, equity. income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those
of its subsidiaries. For this purpose. income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts
of the assets and labilities recognized in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

Offset (climinate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s
portion of cquity of cach subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any
related goodwill.

Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity. income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between entities of the Group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions
that are recognized in assets. such as inventory and fixed assets, are climinated in full). Intragroup
losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements.
Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applics to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits
and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

The interest of non-controlling sharcholders is initially measured cither at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests™ proportionate share ot the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Subsequent to acquisition, the
carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition
plus the non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity of subsidiaries.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiary is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Associate

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control or joint control.
This is generally the case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments
in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting (see below), after initially being
recoganizedat cost. -

Joint ventures

Interests in joint venturcs are accounted for using the equity method (see below), after initially being
recoganizedat cost.

Equity method

a) The Group’s investments in its associate and joint venture are accounted for using the equity
method. Under the equity method. the investment in an associate is initially recognizedat cost.
Goodwill relating to the associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not
tested for impairment individually. The statement of profit and loss reflects the Group’s share of
the results of operations of the associate. The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of
an associate is shown on the face of the statement of profit and loss.
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b) Ifan entity’s share of losses of an associate and joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate and its joint venture (which includes any long term interest that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the entity discontinues recognising its share of
further losses.

¢) Upon loss of significant influence over the associate and its joint venture, the Group measures
and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognizedin profit or loss.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration paid or received is recognized within equity.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an investment because of a loss of control,
Jjoint control or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value
with the change in carrying amount recognizedin profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed.
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

D. Current vs non-current classifications

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statement based on current / non-
current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company normal operating
cycle.

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded:

c) it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
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Notes to consolidated financial statement for the vear ended March 31, 2024

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) it is expected to be settled in the Company normal operating cycle:

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded:

¢) it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or the Company does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months atter the reporting date. Terms
of liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its scttlement by the issue of cquity
mstruments do not aftect its classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents.

Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are classified as non-current only.
Material accounting policies:
Business combination

Acquisitions of businesses arc accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date
fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition related costs are recognized in consolidated statement of profit and loss as incurred

At the acquisition date. the identifiable assets acquired. and the liabilities assumed are recognized at their
fair value at the acquisition date.

Goodwill 1s measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree. and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed.

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transterred
and the amount recognized for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held over the net
identitiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. It the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess
of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of
the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the
amounts to be recognized at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair
value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognized in
OCT and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain
purchase, the entity recognizes the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the same
through OCL

Goodwill is not amortized but is reviewed for impairment at least annually. For the purposcs of impairment
testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units or Group’s of cash-generating
units that is expected to benetit from the synergies of the combination.
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A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the
carrying amount of cach assct in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss. An impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

Use of estimates, assumptions and judgements

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management
to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the period.

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances
surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the consolidated financial statements in
the period in which changes are made and. if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Fair value measurement

Certain accounting policies and disclosures of the Company require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilitics.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The
valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a tair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows:
- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or liability,
cither directly (i.c. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far
as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a lability fall into different levels of
the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of
the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benetits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the
payment is being made. When a performance obligation is satisfied, the revenue is mecasured at the
transaction price which is consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade
discounts and volume rebates after taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and
excluding taxes or duties collected on behalt of the government.

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a customer, the Group determines
whether the nature of its promise is a performance obligation to provide the specitied goods or services
itself (i.c., the Group is a principal) or to arrange for the other party to provide those goods or services
(i.e., the Group is an agent). When the Company considers itselt as a principal and satisfies its
performance.

Obligation in a given arrangement, the Company recognizes revenue in the gross amount of consideration
to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services transferred. When the Company
considers itself as an agent and satisfies its performance obligation in a given arrangement, the Company
recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled in exchange
for arranging for the other party to provide its goods or services. The Company’s fee or commission is the
net amount of consideration that the Company retains after paying the other party the consideration
received in exchange for the goods or services to be provided by that party.

The Group derives revenues primarily from sale of solar modules, solar cells, solar accessories and
construction/project related activity, engineering, procurement and construction (EPC) and operation and
maintenance.

Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue is recognized at point of time when the control of the same is transferred to the customer and it
is probable that the Company will collect the consideration to which it is entitled for the exchanged goods
The point at which control passes is determined based on the terms and conditions by cach customer
arrangemenr.

Revenue from construction/project related activity

Contract revenue is recognized over time to the extent of performance obligation satisfied and control is
transterred to the customer. Contract revenue is recognized at an allocable transaction price which
represents the cost of work performed on the contract plus proportionate margin, using the percentage of
completion method. Percentage of completion is the proportion of cost of work performed to date, to the
total estimated contract costs. With respect to contracts, where the outcome of the performance obligation
cannot be reasonably measured, but the costs incurred towards satisfaction of performance obligation are
expected to be recovered, the revenue is recognized only to the extent of costs incurred.

Revenue from operation and maintenance

Revenue from operation & maintenance is recognized as the proportion of the total period of services
contract that has elapsed at the end of the reporting period.
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For contracts where the aggregate of contract cost incurred to date plus recognized profits (or minus
recognized losses as the case may be) exceeds the progress billing, the surplus is shown as contract asset
and termed as “Unbilled revenue™. For contracts where progress billing exceeds the aggregate of contract
costs incurred to-date plus recognized profits (or minus recognized losses. as the case may be), the surplus
is shown as contract liability and termed as “Excess of billing over revenue™, Amounts received before
the related work is performed are disclosed in the Balance Sheet as contract liability and termed as
“Advances from customer”. The amounts billed on the customer for work performed and are
unconditionally due for payment i.e. only passage of time is required before payment falls due, are
disclosed in the Balance Sheet as trade reccivables. The amount of retention money held by the customers
pending completion of performance milestone is disclosed as part of contract asset and is reclassified as
trade receivables when it becomes due for payment.

Contract balances

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or the amount is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before
the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment
1s made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlicr). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when
the Company performs under the contract.

(ii) Trade receivables

Areceivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i .¢., only
the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

(iii) Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transterred to customer. If
the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration
or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the carned consideration that is conditional.

Other income

Interest Income from bank deposits and loan:
Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis by reference to the principal outstanding and the

effective interest rate.

Other items of income are accounted as and when the right to receive arises and it is probable that the
cconomic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably

Property, plant and equipment

i) Recognition and measurement

Items of property. plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses if any, cost of an item of property, plant and cquipment comprises its
purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes. after deducting trade discounts
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and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use
and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

ii) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other expenses on existing fixed assets. including day-to-day repair
and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

iii) Depreciation and useful lives
Depreciation on property. plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated

useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment which coincide with Schedule IT to the Companies Act, 2013.
Estimated usetul life of the assets is given below:

Tangible assets Useful life
Plant and Equipment 15 Years
Furniture and fixtures 10 Years
Office equipment S Years
Computers 3 Years
Motor vehicles 8 Years

iv) Gain and loss on disposal of item of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant rind equipment are climinated from consolidated financial statements, either on disposal
or when retired from active use. Losses/gains arising in case retirement/disposals of property, plant and
equipment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year of occurrence.

v) Residual values

The Company reviews the residual value, useful lives and depreciation method annually and. if
expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate
on a prospective basis.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value,

a) Raw materials, components, construction materials, stores, spares and loose tools: cost
includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on Cost is determined on “First in First Out’
(“FIFO™") method.

b) Cost of finished goods include cost of direct materials and labor and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing
costs. Cost is determined on “First in First Out’ (“FIFO™) method.

¢) Cost ot traded goods include purchase cost and inward treight. Costs are determined on “First
in First Out’ (“FIFO™) method.
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Assessment of net realizable value is made at each reporting period end and when the circumstances that
previously caused inventories to be written-down below cost no longer exist or when there is clear
evidence of an increase in net realizable value because of changed economic circumstances, the write-
down, if any. in the past period is reversed to the extent of the original amount written-down so that the
resultant carrying amount is the lower of the cost and the revised net realizable value

Financial instruments

Financial assets and/or financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes party to a contract
embodying the related financial instruments. All financial assets, financial liabilities and financial
guarantee contracts are initially measured at fair value except for trade receivables not containing a
significant financing component are mitially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial Liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from as the case may
be, the fair value of such financial asscts or liabilities. on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
arc recognized in profit or loss.

In case of funding to subsidiary companies in the form of interest free or concession loans and prefercnce
shares, the excess of the actual amount of the funding over initially measured fair value is accounted as
an equity investment.

A financial asset and a financial lability is offset and presented on net basis in the balance sheet when
there is a current legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and it is intended to either
settle on net basis or to realise the asset and settle the lability simultaneously.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is described below.

I. Financial assets

Classitication and subsequent measurement for the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets
are classified into the following categories upon initial recognition:

(i) Financial assets at amortized cost — a financial instrument is mecasured at amortized cost if both the
following conditions are met: ;

The asset 1s held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash tlows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement. such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.

(ii) Financial assets at fair value

Investments in equity instruments — All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair
value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at fair value through profit and loss
(‘'EVTPL"). For all other equity instruments, the Group decides to classify the same cither as at fair value
through other comprehensive income ("FVOCT") or FVTPL, The Group makes such election on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.




Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited
CIN: U15100DL2013PTC255455
Notes to consolidated financial statement for the vear ended March 31, 2024

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends. are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from
OCI to profit or loss. even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain
or loss within equity. Dividends on such investments are recognized in profit or loss unless the dividend
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the profit or loss.

De-recognition of financial assets

Financial assets (or where applicable, a part of financial asset or part of a Group of similar financial assets)
are derecognized from the consolidated financial statements when the contractual rights to receive the
cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or when the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards are transferred. The Group also derecognizes the financial assct if it has both transferred the
financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

I1. Financial liabilities

Initial recognition

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVIPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at
fair value and net gains and losses. including any intercst expense, arc recognized in consolidated
statement of profit and loss.

Subsequent measurement
After initial recognition, the financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate ("EIR") method.

Amortised cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The effect of EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expired. When-an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or

modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in consolidated statement of profit and
loss.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109. the Group uses "Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) model, for evaluating

impairment of financial assets other than those measured at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:
The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on
the financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date): or
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Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the life of the financial instrument)

Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The Group periodically asscsses the
financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition. current economic trends,
and analysis of historical data and ageing of accounts receivable. The Group creates allowance for
unsecured receivables based on historical credit loss experience, industry practice and business
environment in which the entity operates and is adjusted for forward looking Statement. Subsequently
when the Group is satisfied that no recovery of such losses is possible, the financial asset is considered
irrecoverable and the amount charged to the allowance account is then written off against the carrying
amount of the impaired financial asset.

Impairment of non-financial assets

As at the end of each financial year, the carrying amounts of PPE. investment property, intangible assets
and investments in subsidiary, associate and joint venture companies arc reviewed to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If such indication exists. PPE,
investment property, intangible assets and investments in subsidiary, associate and joint venture
companies are tested for impairment so as to determine the impairment loss, if any. Goodwill is tested
for impairment each year. Impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is determined:

(1) in the case of an individual asset, at the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and the value-
in-usc; and

(ii) in the case of a cash generating unit (the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates
independent cash tlows), at the higher of the cash generating unit’s fair value less costs of disposal and
the value-in-use. (The amount of valuc-in-use is determined as the present value of estimated future
cash flows from the continuing use of an asset, which may vary based on the future performance of the
Company and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. For this purpose, the discount rate (post-tax)
is determined based on the weighted average cost of capital of the Company suitably adjusted for risks
specified to the estimated cash tlows of the asset). If recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount. such deficit is recognized immediately in the
Statement of Profit and Loss as impairment loss and the carrying amount ot the asset (or cash generating
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. When an impairment loss recognized carlier is subject to full
or partial reversal, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit), except impairment loss
allocated to goodwill, is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, such that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss is recognized for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss (other than impairment loss allocated to goodwill) is recognized immediately in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognized in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the
EIR amortization process.
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Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that arc an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition of financial instruments

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows trom the financial
asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under Ind AS
109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Group’s balance
sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Provisions, contingent liabilities & contingent assets

General

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it 1s probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Long-term provisions are determined by discounting the expected tuture cash flows at a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money. Short term provisions are carried
at their redemption value and are not offset against receivables from reimbursements.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilitics are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from past
events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable
estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Contingent Assets

A contingent asset is not recognized unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits
will arise. When an inflow of economic benefits is probable, contingent assets arc disclosed in the Ind AS
consolidated financial statements.

Onerous contract

Provision for onerous contracts. i.e. contracts where the expected unavoidable cost of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it, are
recognized when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle a present obligation as a result of an obligating event based on a reliable estimate of such
obligation.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash & cash equivalents in the comprise cash at banks and cash on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash flow statement

Consolidated cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments. The consolidated cash flows from operating, investing and financing activitics of
the Group are segregated. Certain arrangements entered with financiers have been classified as borrowings
by the Group. The Group presents cash outflows to settle the liability arising from financing activities in
its statement of cash tlows.

Share Capital

Financial instruments issued by the Group are classified as equity only to the extent that they do not meet
the definition of a financial liability or financial asset. The Group's ordinary shares are classified as equity
instruments.

Income tax
Current tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted

or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates
taxable income. Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income (“OCI”) or in equity). Current tax items are
recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provision where appropriate

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit

under Income-tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax
assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled. based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deterred tax relating to items recognized outside protit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either
in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offsct if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part
of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they oceur,
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange difterences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing costs.

Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic Earnings Per Share ('EPS') is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity share outstanding during the year. The weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for treasury shares.

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit by the weighted average number of
cquity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of
equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive
potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the year, unless issued at a later date.
In computing diluted earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that cither
reduces earnings per share or increases loss per share are included.

Segment reporting

The Group has engaged in the business of providing Engineering, Procurement and Construction (EPC)
and has only reportable segment in accordance with IND AS-108 'Operating Segment'. The information
relating to this operating segment is reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors to make decisions about
resources to be allocated and to assess its performance. The accounting principles used in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements are consistently applied to record revenue and expenditure in the
segment, and are as sct out in the material accounting policies.
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Employee benefits

i.  Short term employee benefits
Employee benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated absences. bonus, ex-gratia and
performance-linked rewards falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are
classified as short-term cmployce benefits and are expensed in the period in which the employee
renders the service

ii. Post-employment benefits

a) Provident fund

The Group's state governed provident fund scheme, employee state insurance scheme and employee
pension scheme are defined contribution plans. The contribution paid/payable under the schemes is
recognized during the period in which the employee renders the service. The Group has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. It the contribution payable to the scheme
for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the
contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet
date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example,
a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

b) Defined benefits plan
Gratuity
The Group provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the 'Gratuity Plan") covering eligible
employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 Gratuity liability is a defined benefit
obligation and is provided on the basis of its actuarial valuation based on the projected unit credit
method made at each balance sheet date.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets

(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subscquent periods.

Short-term and other long-term emplovee benefits

The Group records all short-term obligation for such compensated absences as well as performance
bonus on the basis of amount paid in the period during which the services are rendered by the employees.
all such expenses are recognize in the period in which they actually arise.

T. Foreign currency transactions and balances:

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at its functional currency spot rates
at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Group uses
an average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.
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Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated into the functional currency
at the exchange rate at the reporting date, Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at the fair
value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of transaction.

Leases
Identifving leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is or contains a lease. That is. if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Lease contracts entered by the Group majorly pertains for premises and equipment’s taken on lease to
conduct its business in the ordinary course.

Group as a lessee

On April 1, 2022, the Group had adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases™ using the modified retrospective approach
by applying the standard to all leases existing at the date of initial application. The Group also clected to
usc the recognition exemption for lease contracts that, at the commencement date, have a lease term of
twelve months or less and do not contain a purchase option (“short-term leases™) and lease contracts for
which the underlying asset is of low value other than land. (“low value assets™). The Group recognizes
lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
asscts.

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e.. the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred. and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful
lives of the assets.

The right-of-usc assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in "Impairment of
non-financial assets".

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease. the Group recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate. and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease. if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized
as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.
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In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the leasce is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term. a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change
in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group has applied the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option) and low-value assets recognition exemption.

V. Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies

When preparing the consolidated financial statements, management makes a number of judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses

Income tax and deferred tax assets

The Group uses estimates and judgements based on the relevant rulings in the arcas of allocation of
revenue, costs, allowances and disallowances which is exercised while determining the provision for
income tax. A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized.
Accordingly, the Group exercises its judgement to reassess the carrying amount of deferred tax assets
at the end of each reporting period.

Useful lives of depreciable assets

The Group reviews the useful lite of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period.
This reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods.

Actuarial Valuation

The determination ot Group’s liability towards defined benefit obligation to employees is made
through independent actuarial valuation including determination of amounts to be recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss and in Other Comprchensive Income. Such valuation depend upon
assumptions determined after taking into account discount rate, salary growth rate, expected rate of
return, mortality and attrition rate. Information about such valuation is provided in notes to the
consolidated tinancial Statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets

In assessing impairment. management estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or cash-
generating units based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to discount them.
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Estimation uncertainty relates to assumptions about future operating results and the determination of
a suitable discount rate,
Contingencies

Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect
of contingencies/ claim/ litigation against Group as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending
matters with accuracy.

Revenue recognition

For performance obligation satisfied over time, the revenue recognition is done by measuring the
progress towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation. The progress is measured in terms of
a proportion of actual cost incurred to date. to the total estimated cost attributable to the performance
obligation.

W. Recent accounting pronouncements and changes in accounting standards

There are no standards of accounting or any addendum thereto, prescribed by Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (‘MCA’) under section 133 ot the Companies Act, 2013, which are issued and not effective as at
March 31, 2024.

X. Adoption of new accounting principles

l. Ind AS 12 Income taxes: The amendments clarified that lease transactions give rise to equal and
offsetting temporary differences and consolidated financial statements should reflect the future
tax impacts of these transactions through recognizing deferred tax assets/liabilities on gross basis.

2. Ind AS 1 Presentation of financial statements: The amendments require to disclose 'material
accounting policies’ instead of 'significant accounting policies' and related guidance to determine
whether the policy is material or not.

3. Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors: Definition of
accounting estimates have now been included in the standard enabling distinction between change
in accounting estimates from change in accounting policies.

The Group has adopted these amendments effective April 01, 2023, and the adoption did not have any
material impact on the consolidated financial statements,
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